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Betsy Wright

To: Craig A. Parton

Subject: RE: AVG--Ramp Down and Carry Over

From: Doug Evertz [mailto:DEvertzCa~mur~hvevertz.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 4:21 PM
To: Craig A. Parton; Craig A. Parton
Cc: Keith Lemieux (klemieux@omlolaw.com) (klemieuxCa~omlolaw.com); 'jeffrey.dunn@bbklaw.com';
'eric.garner@bbklaw.com'; Warren Wellen; Wendy Wang
Subject: AVG--Ramp Down and Carry Over

Dear Craig,

am following up on your recent communications with Keith Lemieux and in advance of our call tomorrow regarding the

applicability of the Rampdown to the Public Water Suppliers and Carry Over of federal reserved rights. I represent the

City of Lancaster and the Rosamond Community Services District.

RAMPDOWN

At the Phase 6 trial/prove up of the Judgment and Physical Solution ("Judgment"), several experts were called to discuss

the mechanics of the physical solution. In the event you have not reviewed the testimony before the trial court in

support of the Judgment, we wanted to provide you with the attached information. The first is the trial transcript of Dr.

Dennis Williams. The Stipulating Parties were joint proponents of Dr. Williams' testimony. Critical portions of Dr.

Williams' testimony are highlighted on pages 25380 and 25384-25385. This testimony corresponds to attached Exhibit

numbers 543-44 through 543-46.

As you will see, these exhibits—presented to Judge Komar to graphically illustrate the mechanics of the Rampdown--all

show that the Stipulating Parties fully contemplated, and presented uncontroverted evidence, that the Rampdown

applies to all "Parties" including the Public Water Suppliers. Specific pumping figures are included for each group of

pumpers during the period of the Rampdown. These figures show the Public Water Suppliers having a collective Pre-

Rampdown pumping allocation of 40,450.02 afy, including the unused federal reserve right (543-44). In the first year of

Rampdown, next year, the Public Water Suppliers are expected to collectively reduce their pumping to 36,807.79 (543-

46). This number is reduced in each subsequent year until the Public Water Supplier pumping reaches 18,596.66,

including the unused federal reserve right (Id; 543-45). This represents a more than 50% reduction in pumping by the

Public Water Suppliers over 5 years.

Consideration of the gradual reduction of Public Water Supplier pumping during the Rampdown Period was a crucial

unpinning of the Court's determination that the Rampdown would not harm the Basin. It is also important to note that

these numbers were the only numbers presented to Judge Komar to support the Rampdown. There was no model

presented that excluded the Public Water Supplier pumping from the Rampdown.

Further, this evidence belies the suggestion that the Public Water Supplier group had already ramped down prior to the

settlement. As you can plainly see, the Public Water Suppliers will now need to reduce pumping from approximately 40k



afy to only 18 afy. In the case of Rosamond, it has to reduce current pumping from roughly 3000 afy all the way down to

a post-Rampdown Production Right of only 404 afy — a reduction of approximately 85%.

have also attached a series of exhibits presented by AVEK's counsel at trial marked 6-AVEK-2 in connection with the

testimony of Stipulating Party expert Charles Binder. Slide 5 again shows the Rampdown applying to the Public Water

Suppliers, and during his testimony Mr. Binder referenced the Exhibit 3 parties as part of his discussion of the

Rampdown.

None of the Stipulating Parties, including, notably, the landowners or public overlyers, introduced any evidence

whatsoever supporting the idea that the Public Water Suppliers are not entitled to a Rampdown. Nor did any of the

Stipulating Parties object to, or present evidence rebutting, the aforementioned testimony and exhibits. To the

contrary, this evidence was jointly presented on behalf of the Stipulating Parties.

Any interpretation of the Judgment will necessarily be based on the evidence that was before the Court. We are not

aware of any evidence put before the Court that supports the idea now advanced for the first time that the Public Water

Suppliers are not entitled to Rampdown. The Public Water Suppliers are concerned that having the Watermaster

advance a "no ramp down" theory that controverts the only testimony used to support the Judgment could undermine

the Judgment by supplying arguments to those parties that are still challenging the Judgment on appeal.

CARRY OVER

Additionally, Exhibits 543-45 and 6-AVEK-2, Slide 5 show the Parties' intention in stipulating to the physical solution to

put the Native Safe Yield of the Basin to "the fullest extent of which they are capable." (Const., Art. X, ~2.) Both Exhibits

as well as Dr. Williams' testimony demonstrate the parties' and the Court's intent that the entirety of the Native Safe

Yield be put to beneficial use. As set forth in Section 5.1.4 of the Judgment, the 7,600 afy of federal reserved water

right is a portion of the Native Safe Yield. Allowing Public Water Suppliers to pump and carry over the unused federal

reserved right would not harm the Basin as the evidence before the Court demonstrates and is consistent with the

Constitutional mandate that the water resources of the State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which they

are capable.

The Public Water Supplier's right to carry over unused reserved rights is further supported by Section 5.1.4.1 of the

Judgment, which provides that any unused federal reserved rights "will be allocated to the Non-Overlvin~ Production

Rights holders [e.g., PWS] ... in the following Year, in proportion to Production Rights set forth in Exhibit 3." First, once

the unused water has been "allocated" to the Public Water Suppliers, it is automatically subject to the carry over

provision of Section 15.3 which permits carrying over by Public Water Suppliers of all "Production Right[s]." Production

Right by definition includes federal reserved rights (i.e., all Native Safe Yield production rights not subject to

assessment). (Judgment, §3.5.32.) Second, as a practical matter, all unused reserved rights are carried over, because

neither the Watermaster nor the Federal Government would know what amount of reserved water remains unused

until an accounting has been done "in the following Year." Carrying over the unused federal reserved right is necessary

to allow the Watermaster and the Federal Government to account for the Federal Government's (lack of) water usage,

and for the Public Water Suppliers to plan for their water supply. If unused federal reserved right waters are not

allowed to be carried over, Section 5.1.4.1 would effectively be rendered null and void, which the law abhors.

For these reasons, the Public Water Suppliers respectfully request that you present this information to the Watermaster

Board at its next regular meeting instead of presenting this matter to the Court.

We look forward to our call tomorrow.

Doug

Douglas J. Evertz
Partner
650 Town Center Drive •Suite 550 •Costa Mesa, CA 92626

z
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JCCP4408

ANTELOPE VALLEY GROUNDWATER

CASES PHASE SIX

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2015

HON. JACK KOMAR, JUDGE

AS HEI:ETOFORE MENTIONED

AUDREY L. MOLINAR, CSR #12462

9:01 A.M.

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

ROOM NO. 222

APPEARANCES:

REPORTER:

TIME:

(THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS

WERE HELD IN OPEN COURT:)

THE COURT: GOOD MORNING. PLEASE BE SEATED. WE HAD

A COUPLE OF THINGS WE NEEDED TO REVIEW THIS MORNING IN

ADVANCE OF THE WITNESS. PLEASE.

MR. TOOTLE: GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR. JOHN TOOTLE

ON BEHALF OF CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE COMPANY. WOULD THIS

BE AN APPROPRIATE TIME FOR US TO SUBMIT OUR GROUNDWATER

PUMPING DECLARATION?

THE COURT: YES.

MR. TOOTLE: YES. I'VE BROUGHT COPIES OF JOHN FOE'S

DECLARATION, WHICH WAS POSTED SEPTEMBER 21ST. AND IN THE

DECLARATION, HE BASICALLY STATES THAT HE'S PREPARED A

HISTORY OF GROUNDWATER PUMPING FOR ~:.ALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE

COMPANY BASED OFF PRODUCTION METER READS AND --

UNIDENTIFIED ATTORNEY: (VIA COURT CALL) YOUR HONOR,

I DON'T KNOW IF ANYONE ELSE ON COURT CALL CAN HEAR, AT

LEAST I CANNOT HEAR THE PERSON SPEAKING. HE'S GOING IN AND
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OUT.

THE COURT: WE'RE DOING THE BEST .WE CAN. I CANNOT

PROMISE YOU THAT YOUrLL HEAR EVERYTHING IF YOU'RE ON COURT

CALL.

MR. TOOTLE: JOHN FOE'S DECLARATION STATES THAT HE

HAS PREPARED A HISTORY OF GROUNDWATER PUMPING FROM 1965 TO

2014 BASED OFF OF PRODUCTION RECORD , CALIFORNIA WATER

SERVICE COMPANY. HE ALSO DISCUSSES THAT WE'RE A PUBLICLY-

REGUL~TEu COMPANY BY THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION. AND

UNDER ARTICLE 5 OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE, WE ARE

REQUIRED TO FILE AN ANNUAL REPORT. THOSE ANNUAL REPORTS

ARE ALSO ATTACHED.

THE COURT: MR. TOOTLE, IT SEEMS TO ME THAT YOU HAVE

AN EXHIBIT YOU WISH TO OFFER.

MR. TOOTLE: YES.

THE COURT: LET'S MARK IT. .AND THIS HAS NOT

PREVIOUSLY BEEN OFFERED;, IS THAT CORRECT?

MR. TOOTLE: THAT IS TRUE.

THE COURT: AND THIS IS OFFERED IN CONJUNCTION WITH

THE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT AND GLOBAL SOLUTION -- PHYSICAL

SOLUTION; IS THAT CORRECT?

MR. TOOTLE: YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. SO MARK IT NEXT IN ORDER FOR

CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE.

MR. TOOTLE: IT WILL BE CALIFORNIA WATER SERVICE

PHASE 6 1-l. AND THAT'S THE HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER PUMPING

FROM 1965 THROUGH 2014. DO YOU WANT ME TO GO THROUGH ALL

THE EXHIBITS?
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THE COURT: NO, I JUST WANT YOU TO TELL US WHAT --

GENERALLY, WHAT YOU'RE OFFERING AND WHAT THE NUMBERS ARE SO

THAT THE RECORD IS CLEAR AND ANYBODY WHO WANTS TO READ IT,

CAN. AND IF THEY WANT TO CALL YOUR CLIENT OR YOUR WITNESS

TO TESTIFY, THEY'LL BE ABLE TO DO THAT.

MR. TOOTLE: YES, YOUR HONOR. EXHIBIT CAL WATER

PHASE 6 2-1 IS THE HISTORICAL HISTORY OF ANTELOPE VALLEY

SYSTEM AND IT'S ADJUDICATION -- I MEAN, IT'S JURISDICTION

UNDER THE CALIFORIQIA PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE, THE CERTIFICATE

OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY ISSUED IN 1957.

THE COURT; OKAY. WHAT I'D LIKE YOU TO DO IS TO USE

SHORTHAND --

MR. TOOTLE: OKAY.

THE COURT: -- IN YOUR DESCRIPTION.

MR. TOOTLE: N0. CAL WATER 2 -- I'M SORRY -- 3-1

ETCETERA ARE THE ANNUAL REPORTS FROM 1965 FILED WITH THE

UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE WATER BOARD SUBMITTAL FOR

PARTICULAR YEARS METER PRODUCTION RECORDS AND WELL RECORD

SHEETS. NO. 4 IS A HISTORY OF OWNERSHIP OF A PROPERTY ON

WHICH THE WELLS ARE LOCATED AND WE ALSO HAVE A SERVICE AREA

MAP OF THE RECOGNIZED SERVICE AREA FROM THE PUBLIC

UTILITIES COMMISSION. AND N0. 5 IS THE INTENT FOR CAL

WATER TO TAKE IMPORTED WATER IN THE FUTURE IN OUR

CONNECTION WITH AVEK. AND N0. 6 IS JOHN FOE'S

QUALIFICATIONS.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. THANK YOU.

MR. TOOTLE: AND THOSE ARE ALL CAL WATER PHASE 6 AND

THEN THAT NUMBER.
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THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. THANK YOU.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION, EXHIBIT NOS. CAL

WATER PHASE 6-1 THROUGH 6-6, DOCUMENTS.)

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR, WE REACHED A STIPULATION

OF FACTS ON THE WILLIS CLASS THAT I'D LIKE TO READ INTO THE

RECORD IF POSSIBLE.

THE COURT: SIIPUL~TIuN WITH WHOM?

MR. KALFAYAN: WITH, I BELIEVE, THE PUBLIC WATER

SUPPLIERS, BUT SPECIFICALLY MR. DUNIJ.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. KALFAYAN: IF I MAY READ THEM INTO THE RECORD?

THE COURT: DO YOU HAVE A WRITTEN VERSION OF IT?

MR. KALFAYAN: I HAVE AN E-MAIL THAT REFLECTS IT,

ALTHOUGH IT'S NOT -- I DON'T HAVE IT IN WRITING, BUT IT'S

NOT ANYTHING MORE THAN THE NUMBERS OF THE -- REGARDING THE

SIZE OF THE WILLIS CLASS. AND BASICALLY THE WILLIS

CLASS -- THE STIPULATION IS AS FOLLOWS: THE WILLIS CLASS

HAS OVER 65,000 PARCELS COMPRISED OF THE FOLLOWING: 49,070

ARE FIVE ACRES AND LESS, 14,157 PARCELS ARE BETWEEN FIVE

AND 20 ACRES.

THE COURT: I'M SORRY. GIVE ME THAT AGAIN. 49,070

ARE WHAT?

MR. KALFAYAN: 49,070 ARE LESS THAN FIVE ACRES,

14,157 ARE BETWEEN FIVE AND 20 ACRES, 3,683 ARE BETWEEN 20

AND 100 ACRES AND THERE ARE 638 PARCELS THAT ARE OVER 100

ACRES. THERE ARE AT LEAST OVER 18,000 CLASS MEMBERS IN THE
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WILLIS CLASS. AND MR. DAVID ESTRADA IS A CLASS

REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE WILLIS CLASS WHO OWNS REAL PROPERTY

WITHIN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION.

THE COURT: TELL ME WHERE HIS PROPERTY IS AND HOW

MUCH IT IS.

MR. KALFAYAN: HE OWNS FIVE DIFFERENT PARCELS; FOUR

ARE 80 ACRES, ONE IS 160 ACRES, THREE PARCELS OVERLAP THE

AREA OF ADJUDICATION WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE

I~DJUDICATIuN AND TWO ARE OUTSIDE. THE THREE THAT ARE

INSIDE THE AREA OF ADJUDICATION, ONE IS AT LEAST 90

PERCENT, IF NOT 100 PERCENT, IN THE AREA OF ADJUDICATION.

THE OTHER TWO ARE SLIGHTLY MORE THAN OR LESS THAN -- TAKE

THAT BACK. THE OTHER TWO THAT ARE WITHIN THE AREA OF

ADJUDICATION, I BELIEVE ONE IS ABOUT 20 PERCENT IN THE AREA

OF ADJUDICATION AND THE THIRD ONE IS A LITTLE BIT MORE THAN

HALF IN THE AREA OF ADJUDICATION.

THE COURT: NOW, THOSE ARE NOT STIPULATED FACTS,

THAT'S BASICALLY AN OFFER OF PROOF?

MR. KALFAYAN: YES.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. KALFAYAN: JUST AS TO THE LAST PORTION, YOUR

HONOR, BUT EVERYTHING ELSE WAS PART.

THE COURT: I GOT THAT. MR. DUNN, DO YOU SO

STIPULATE AS --

MR. DUNN: YES, WITH JUST AN EXPLANATION. THE

REASON WHY THIS STIPULATION IS BEING PRESENTED NOW TO THE

COURT IS THAT WE RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM THE WILLIS CLASS

FOR INFORMATION THAT HAS NOW BEEN PROVIDED TO THE COURT.



25306

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WE SERVED -- OUR LAW FIRM SERVED A -- SORT AS CLASS

ADMINISTRATOR WITH A NOTICE FOR THE WILLIS CLASS, SO

INFORMATION WHICH WAS WITHIN OUR POSSESSION BASED ON WHAT

WE CURRENTLY KNOW THESE NUMBERS APPEAR TO BE CORRECT. IF

IT LATER TURNS OUT THERE NEEDS TO BE AN ADJUSTMENT, WE'LL

ADVISE THE COURT BUT WE'LL STIPULATE THAT THERE ARE 65,000

PARCELS AND TO THE BREAKDOWN IN PARCEL ACREAGE AS INDICATED

BY MR. KALFAYAN. AND AGAIN, AS TO REGARDS TO MR. ESTRADA

~Nu HIS OWNERSriIP, WE'RE TJOT -- THAT'S -- THAT IS P10T PART

OF THE STIPULATION. THANK YOU.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. THANK YOU.

MR. DUNN: OH, COUNSEL FOR T.~E WILLIS CLASS REMINDED

ME THAT THE AGREEMENT OR STIPULATION INCLUDES THE

REPRESENTATION BY MR. KALFAYAN THAT THERE ARE AT LEAST, AS

I WROTE IT DOWN, AT LEAST OVER 18,000 CLASS MEMBERS IN THE

WILLIS CLASS, YES, SO STIPULATION ON ACREAGE AND NUMBERS OF

CLASS MEMBERS.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. ARE WE READY TO PROCEED,

THEN, WITH A WITNESS?

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR, DOES THE COURT WANT TO

ENTERTAIN THE MOTION IN LIMINE AT THIS TIME?

THE COURT: PROBABLY A GOOD IDEA. WHAT DID YOU

HAVE, MR. ZIMMER?

MR. ZIMMER: I HAD AN ISSUE WITH REGARD TO DR.

WILLIAMS' TESTIMONY, BUT THAT MAY BE BETTER TAKEN RIGHT

BEFORE THAT, SO I'LL YIELD TO MR. KfiLFAYAN'S PROPOSAL.

THE COURT: BEFORE WE DO THAT. COUNSEL?

MR. LENTON: I'M ROBERT LENTON. I'M THE PRESIDENT
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OF THE WHITE FENCE FARMS NO. 3 MUTUAL WATER COMPANY.

THE COURT: I'M SORRY. I COULD NOT HEAR YOU.

MR. LENTON: I'M ROBERT LENTON; I'M THE PRESIDENT OF

THE BOARD OF THE WHITE FENCE FARMS N0. 3 MUTUAL WATER

COMPANY. WE ARE A VERY SMALL WATER COMPANY OF ONE SQUARE

MILE AND WE BUY ABOUT 390 ACRE FEET FROM AVEK --

THE COURT: WHY DON'T YOU STEP RIGHT OVER THERE AND

SPEAK INTO THAT MICROPHONE RIGHT IN THE CENTER OF THE

TABLE. SG START OVER.

MR. LENTON: I'M ROBERT LENTON, PRESIDENT OF THE

BOARD THE WHITE FENCE FARMS NO. 3 MUTUAL WATER COMPANY.

WE'RE ARE A VERY MUTUAL WATER COMPANY, ONE SQUARE MILE. WE

PURCHASE ABOUT 390 ACRE FEET FROM AVEK. WE PUMP ONLY ABOUT

EIGHT ACRE FEET AS WE'VE BEEN TRYING TO REHABILITATE OUR

TWO WELLS TO MEET STATE STANDARDS. IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING

THAT MR. WILSON WHO NOW REPRESENTS US CANNOT REPRESENT US

AND THAT I CANNOT REPRESENT OURSELVES, SO I'M ASKING FOR A

LITTLE BIT OF TIME SO WE CAN GET ANOTHER ATTORNEY.

THE COURT: HOW MUCH TIME DO YOU WANT?

MR. LENTON: HOW MUCH TIME DO I HAVE? TWO WEEKS? A

WEEK?

THE COURT: WELL, MR. WILSON'S GOING TO BE HERE IN

15 MINUTES SO --

MR. LENTON: SURE. I WANTED TO PUT THAT BEFORE YOU.

THE COURT: HE MIGHT GIVE YOU SOME ASSISTANCE IN

ANSWERING QUESTIONS OF HOW MUCH TIME YOU NEED.

MR. LENTON: GREAT. THANK YOU.

THE COURT: THANK YOU VERY MI1CH.
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MR. MCLACHLAN: YOUR HONOR, WE ALSO HAD THE NOTICED,

MOTION TODAY TO AMEND THE WILLIS CLASS JUDGMENT, WHICH

WOULD BE -- MR. O'LEARY IS GOING TO TAKE THE LEAD IN

ARGUING THAT. HE'S AT A DEPOSITION AT 10:00 A.M.

THE COURT: OKAY, THEN LET'S TAKE THAT UP NOW. THIS

WAS THE MOTION TO CORRECT THE CLASS DESCRIPTION IN THE

JUDGMENT.

MS. O'LEARY: GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR. DAN O'LEARY

FOR THE WGGD CLASS AND THE P~vVING PARTY. NOT SUP.PR~SINGLY

THIS CAME ABOUT WHEN WE WERE LOOKING AT THE WILLIS CLASS

COUNSEL MOTION TO WITHDRAW SIX OR EIGHT WEEKS AGO, BUT TWO

THINGS THAT I THINK THAT ARE SET OUT PRETTY CLEARLY IN THE

MOTION. N0. 1, THE CURRENT WILLIS CLASS JUDGMENT, THE LAST

SENTENCE OF THE CLASS DEFINITION HAS JUST A TYPOGRAPHICAL

BLUNDER IN IT. I'M SURE THE GOAL IN 2008 WAS NOT TO EXEMPT

THE KERN COUNTX ASSESSOR'S OFFICE I`rSELF FROM THE CLASS,

BUT TO INCLUDE THE FULL SENTENCE FROM THE MAY 2008 ORDER

AMENDING THE CLASS DEFINITION.

THE SECOND ISSUE INVOLVES THE CHANGE IN THE WILLIS

CLASS DEFINITION BY WAY OF THIS COURT'S SEPTEMBER 2, 2008

ORDER. IN THAT SENTENCE THAT SAYS THE WILLIS CLASS SHALL

EXCLUDE ALL PERSONS TO THE EXTENT THEY OWN PROPERTIES

WITHIN THE BASIN IN WHICH THEY HAVE PUMPED WATER AT ANY

TIME. WE TALKED A LOT ABOUT THAT SENTENCE LAST MONTH WITH

THE MOTION TO WITHDRAW. BUT THE -- BUT THE CLASS JUDGMENT

ITSELF SAYS', THIS IS THE DEFINITION OF THE CLASS AS AMENDED

TWICE BY THE COURT. AND THEN WHAT'S PUT INTO THAT JUDGMENT

FRANKLY IS NOT THE DEFINITION OF THE WILLIS CLASS. IT
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NEEDS THE TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR FIX AND IT SHOULD HAVE THAT

QUALIFICATION ADDED AT SOME POINT. SO WHAT I -- I DON'T

KNOW WHY THIS WASN'T NOTICED IN 2011 WHEN THE WILLIS CLASS

JUDGMENT WAS ENTERED, BUT BE THAT AS IT MAY, HERE WE ARE.

THE COURT: I'M JUST TRYING TO REVIEW MY NOTES.

IT'S BEEN A WHILE SINCE I LOOKED AT THAT CONCERN. THERE

WAS AN OBJECTION TO PART OF THAT I THINK, ONLY A PART OF

IT.

NiR. i{ALFAYAN: THtiT' S RIGHT, YOUR HONOR.

MR. O'LEARY: I THINK EVERYBODY AGREES THAT THE

TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR NEEDS TO BE FIXL~,D.

THE COURT: YES. AND TELL US WHAT -- REMIND ME AS

TO WHAT THE OBJECTION IS AS TO THE OTHER SENTENCE.

MR. KALFAYAN: WELL, THE OBJECTION AS TO THE OTHER

SENTENCE, YOUR HONOR, IS IT JUST ADDS MORE CONFUSION TO THE

ACTUAL DEFINITION. THE COURT WORKED HARD IN GETTING THE

DEFINITION PUT IN PLACE. AND I THINK THE MORE YOU PUT IN

THE DEFINITION, THE MORE CONFUSING IT GETS. THE

INTERLINEATION, THE -- THE PART THAT WAS DELETED, I AGREE,

SHOULD BE ADDED. IT WAS THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS THAT,

WHEN THEY TOOK AND TRIED TO AMEND THE JUDGMENT, I THINK

THEIR WORD PROCESSOR INADVERTENTLY MAY HAVE DELETED AND

TRUNCATED ONE PORTION OF THE SENTENCE. SO AS TO THAT, WE

HAVE NO OBJECTION.

BUT AS TO THE ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE, I THINK THE

DEFINITION OF THE CLASS CLEARLY DEFINES WHO'S IN THE CLASS.

THIS JUDGMENT IS FOUR YEARS OLD, AND I THINK IT ADDS A

LAYER OF CONFUSION AND IT'S NOT NECESSARY AT THIS JUNCTURE.
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AND I WOULD JUST ADD ONE OTHER THING, YOUR HONOR. IF WE'RE

GOING TO BE -- IF WE'RE GOING TO MAKE THAT MODIFICATION ON

THE TRUNCATED PORTION, I'D LIKE TO INCLUDE AS EXHIBIT 2 THE

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT. AND THAT WASN'T PRECLUDED SO IT

WILL JUST BE ONE SENTENCE THAT SAYS ATTACHED TO THE

JUDGMENT IS THE STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT.

THE COURT: I'M STILL TRYING TO FOCUS ON THE

ADDITIONAL SENTENCE THAT YOU'RE CONCERNED ABOUT.

MR. KALFAYAN: SURE. WOULD YGU LIKE ME TO READ IT,

YOUR HONOR?

THE COURT; I'D LIKE TO FIND IT IN THE PAPERS. READ

IT.

MR. KALFAYAN: I BELIEVE THE SENTENCE THAT THEY WISH

TO ADD IS THIS: "THE CLASS SHALL [FURTHER] EXCLUDE ALL

PERSONS TO THE EXTENT THEY OWN PROPERTIES WITHIN THE BASIN

ON WHICH THEY HAVE PUMPED WATER AT ANY TIME." I THINK WE

WENT THROUGH THIS MULTIPLE TIMES BEL'ORE, YOUR HONOR, AND I

THINK THE DEFINITION IS CLEAR IN AND OF ITSELF WITHOUT

ADDING THAT LANGUAGE.

THE COURT: WELL, THAT HAPPENS TO BE AN ACCURATE

STATEMENT, HOWEVER. TRUE?

MR. O'LEARY: WELL, IT'S IN THE COURT'S SEPTEMBER 2,

2008 ORDER MODIFYING THE DEFINITION OF THE WILLIS CLASS.

MR. KALFAYAN: TO BE A LITTLE BIT MORE TECHNICAL,

YOUR HONOR, YOUR SEPTEMBER 2ND ORDER PROVIDED THAT THERE

SHALL BE NO OVERLAP. SO IT SAID THt~T TO THE EXTENT THEY

OWN A PROPERTY INSTEAD OF PROPERTIES, SO THAT SEPTEMBER 2ND

ORDER, THE PURPOSE OF IT WAS TO MAKE SURE THAT THE TWO
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CLASSES DID NOT OVERLAP. SO I THINK INJECTING THIS MIGHT

CREATE FURTHER UNCERTAINTY OR AMBIGUITY REGARDING THE

DEFINITION OF THE CLASS.

THE COURT: I'M NOT SURE I FOLLOW THAT, BUT IN ANY

EVENT, I'M GOING TO GRANT THE REQUEST TO MODIFY.

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR, MAY I SUBMIT THE ACTUAL

JUDGMENT FOR THE COURT WITH THE INTERLINEATION --

THE COURT: YES.

l~R. KtiLrtiYAN: -- THAT WAS REQUESTED APED THE TWO

EXHIBITS? I'LL HAND THEM TO THE COURT. AND I'LL REPRESENT

TO THE COURT THAT I'VE MADE THE CHANGES THAT WERE REQUESTED

IN THE MOTION IN ADDITION TO ATTACHING THE STIPULATION OF

SETTLEMENT AS AN EXHIBIT 2.

THE COURT: I'M NOT SURE WE HAVE TO ADD THE COPY OF

THE STIPULATION SINCE IT'S ALREADY IN THE RECORD.

MR. KALFAYAN: IT'S REFERENCED IN THE JUDGMENT, BUT

IT'S NOT ATTACHED. AND IN THE FIRST JUDGMENT, IT WAS; IN

THE SECOND AMENDED JUDGMENT, IT WAS NOT.

THE COURT: BUT IT'S IN THE RECORD BECAUSE IT WAS

FILED.

MR. KALFAYAN: IN THE PAST, BUT --

THE COURT: NO, IT WAS FILED. IT'S PART OF THE

COURT RECORD AS TO THE STIPULATION.

MR. KALFAYAN: BUT, YOUR HONOR, THE DOCUMENT IS NOT

COMPLETE THEN BECAUSE IT REFERENCES A STIPULATION OF

SETTLEMENT AND IT DOESN'T ATTACH IT.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. I DON'T SEE ANY HARM IN

DOING IT.
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MR. KALFAYAN: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR. I'LL HAND IT

TO THE CLERK.

MR. O'LEARY: FOR WHAT IT'S WORTH, I AGREE

INTERLINEATION IS DONE PER MOTION.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. YOU'VE REVIEWED IT AND

APPROVED THE FORM?

MR. O'LEARY: YES.

MR. DUNN: YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE PROCEDURALLY AS

I UNllExS1^AND IT, THIS -- I'M 2dGT SURE IF THIS IS A NUP1C PRO

TUNC ORDER?

THE COURT: IT IS.

MR. DUNN: ALL RIGHT.

THE COURT: AND NOW --

MR. WILSON: GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR. WALTER

WILSON --

THE COURT: YES. YOUR FORMER CLIENT IS HERE. HE'S

REQUESTING ADDITIONAL TIME. WOULD YOU LIKE TO TALK TO HIM

AND DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT YOU CAN BE OF ANY ASSISTANCE

TO HIM?

MR. WILSON: YOUR HONOR, THE ONLY THING THAT

PRECLUDES ME FROM ASSISTING HIM IS MY AGREEMENT WITH THE

STIPULATING PARTIES. THEY BELIEVE THAT THERE'S A CONFLICT

OF INTEREST BETWEEN MR. LENTON AND WHITE FENCE FARMS MUTUAL

WATER COMPANY NO. 3 AND THE STIPULATING PARTIES. HE HAS

VERY LIMITED WATER PRODUCTION. HE PUMPS ABOUT EIGHT ACRE

FEET A YEAR TO REHABILITATE THE PUMP BECAUSE THAT'S NOT

WORKING. HE BUYS 395 ACRE FEET FROM AVEK AND HAS FOR

YEARS. THAT'S ABOUT THE EXTENT OF HIS WATER USAGE.
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THE COURT: WELL, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, YOU'RE -- IF

THERE'S A CONFLICT OF INTEREST, IT'S A VERY TECHNICAL

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. AND YOU'RE NOT GOING TO TALK TO HIM

ABOUT THE FACTS OR ADVISE HIM ADVERSELY, BUT HE DOES NEED

ASSISTANCE IN GETTING COUNSEL AND I THINK THAT YOU MIGHT BE

ABLE TO TALK TO HIM ABOUT HOW HE MIGHT ACCOMPLISH THAT AND

HOW MUCH TIME HE NEEDS TO DO THAT SO WE CAN HAVE HIM COME

BACK REPORT TO THE COURT WITH NEW COUNSEL.

~R. WILSON: WOULD THE COURT CONSIDER A T6~0-WEEK

EXTENSION FOR HIM? OR ARE YOU LOOKING FOR SOMETHING

SHORTER?

THE COURT: HOW LONG?

MR. WILSON: TWO WEEKS.

THE COURT: YES.

MR. WILSON: THE COURT WOULD CONSIDER TWO WEEKS?

THE COURT: I WOULD. I'LL ORDER IT, IN FACT. I'LL

DO IT BEFORE YOU TALK TO HIM BECAUSE HE ASKED FOR A WEEK.

TWO WEEKS AND THAT'S -- I THINK IT COMES UP TO OCTOBER 8 --

N0, I'M SORRY. IT WILL BE OCTOBER 15. OCTOBER 15 HE

SHOULD REPORT IN WRITING TO THE COURT. I DON'T THINK WE'RE

GOING TO BE NECESSARILY IN SESSION 'THAT DAY.

MR. WILSON: I CAN HELP HIM WITH POSTING IF THERE'S

ANY DIFFICULTY WITH THAT, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: THANK YOU VERY MUCH.

MR. WILSON: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. MR. TOOTLE?

MR. TOOTLE: YOUR HONOR, SORRY. I FAILED TO MARK

THE DECLARATION ITSELF AS AN EXHIBIT, SO I'D LIKE TO MARK
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THE DEPOSITION -- I MEAN, THE DECLARATION ITSELF AS CAL

WATER PHASE 6-7.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. TOOTLE: THANK YOU.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION, CAL WATER

EXHIBIT NO. 6-7, A DECLARATION.)

TriE COURT:

MR. TOOTLE:

LET THE CLERK KNOW.

THE COURT:

CLERK?

MR. TOOTLE:

THE COURT:

LIMINE.

NiAriE SURE --

THE DECLARATION OF JOHN R. FOE. I'LL

DID YOU HAND THE DECLARATION TO THE

SHE HAS IT.

ALL RIGHT. NOW WE CAN DO THE MOTION IN

MR. DUNN: YOUR HONOR, SINCE WE'RE DEALING WITH THIS

ISSUE OR THIS MATTER FOR MR. TOOTLE, THE COURT CLERK

ADVISED US THIS MORNING THAT WE NEED TO -- OR LAST NIGHT --

NEED TO RENUMBER OUR EXHIBIT YESTERDAY FOR MR. ARIKI'S

DECLARATION. IT SHOULD BE NOW IDENTIFIED AS 6-D40-10.

THIS WAS THE DECLARATION THAT WE SUP•MITTED AS LOS ANGELES

COUNTY WATER WORKS DISTRICT NO. 40, WHICH IS A DECLARATION

OF MR. ARIKI. IT CONTAINED JUST, FOR THE COURT'S

RECOLLECTION, A BOX OF DOCUMENTS THAT WERE EXHIBITS

ATTACHED TO THAT DECLARATION. SO THIS IS JUST TO CORRECT

THE IDENTIFICATION OF THE DECLARATION.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. ORDERED.
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MR. DUNN: AND IF I CAN INDULGE THE COURT ON ONE

MORE MATTER OF HOUSEKEEPING, YESTERDAY THE COURT REQUESTED

THAT WITH REGARD TO THE EXHIBITS RELATING TO

DR. LITTLEFIELD'S TESTIMONY, THAT WE PREPARE A PROPOSED

ORDER. WE HAVE DONE THAT. WE HAVE SUBMITTED A PROPOSED

ORDER TO THE COURT AND POSTED THE PROPOSED ORDER ON THE

COURT'S WEBSITE THIS MORNING.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. THAT'S APPROVED AS WELL.

MR. BUNN?

MR. BUNN: GOOD MORNING, YOU; HONOR. THOMAS BUNN.

AS LONG AS WE'RE DOING THAT STUFF, THE COURT ALSO ASKED ME

TO SUBMIT A DECLARATION AUTHENTICATING CERTAIN NEWSPAPER

ARTICLES. I HAVE THAT. IT'S A DECLARATION OF DANIEL HENRY

AND I'D LIKE TO OFFER THAT. AND I GUESS THE EXHIBIT NUMBER

WOULD BE 6-PALMDALE WD-1.

THE COURT: OKAY. ALL RIGHT.

MR. BUNN: THANK YOU.

THE COURT: THANK YOU VERY MUCH.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION, EXHIBIT

N0. 6-PALMDALE WD-1, A DECLARATION.)

MR. WEEKS: BRAD WEEKS FOR THE QUARTZ HILL WATER

SYSTEM. LAST NIGHT I POSTED MY DECLARATIONS.

THE COURT: LAST NIGHT WHAT?

MR. WEEKS: LAST NIGHT I POSTED MY DECLARATION WITH

THE NEWSPAPER ARTICLES ATTACHED AS WE DISCUSSED YESTERDAY.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.
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MR. WEEKS: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: THAT'S ALREADY BEEN NUMBERED?

MR. WEEKS: YES, IT'S ALREADY BEEN.

THE COURT: OKAY. ALL RIGHT.

MR. LEMIEUX: GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR. KEITH

LEMIEUX, L-E-M-I-E-U-X, FOR LITTLEROCK CREEK IRRIGATION

DISTRICT, ET AL. THIS MOTION COMES FROM, I GUESS, THE

WILLIS CLASS'S SORT OF UNIQUE POSITION AT THIS PHASE OF

TRIAL. AS THE COURT IS AWARE, AND I GUESS I DON'T PJEED TO

REITERATE, THE WILLIS CLASS ONLY CAUSES OF ACTION AGAINST

THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS, THOSE CAUSES OF ACTION WERE

SETTLED AND THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS PAID SIGNIFICANT

ATTORNEY'S FEES BECAUSE THIS WAS DEEMED TO BE A FINAL

RESOLUTION OF THESE DISPUTES. THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, I

THINK, ALLOWS FOR A VERY LIMITED ROLE FOR THE WILLIS CLASS

AT THIS POINT IN THE PROCEEDINGS. 1'HE WAY THE SETTLEMENT

AGREEMENT WAS WRITTEN, IT UNDERSTOOD THAT WE WERE GOING TO

HAVE THESE PROCEEDINGS AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THERE WOULD BE A

PHYSICAL SOLUTION POTENTIAL FOR A TRIAL OR -- OR A HEARING

OR WHATEVER. AND IT SAYS VERY CLEARLY THAT THE WILLIS

CLASS -- WELL, LET ME STEP BACK FOR A SECOND. THE UNUSUAL

THING IS THAT EVEN THOUGH THERE WAS A FINAL SETTLEMENT IN

WHICH ATTORNEY'S FEES WERE PAID, THE COMPLAINT WASN'T

DISMISSED, IT WAS STAYED PENDING FINAL RESOLUTION OF THE

CASE. SO IT'S CLEAR THAT THEY'RE NC~T COMPLETELY OUT OF

LINE BY BEING HERE PRESENT. BUT THE -- BUT THE SETTLEMENT

AGREEMENT LIMITED THEIR PARTICIPATION. IT SAID THAT IT WAS

UNDERSTOOD THAT THERE WOULD BE A -- A HEARING REGARDING
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PHYSICAL SOLUTION AND THAT THERE WOULD BE -- IT WAS SORT OF

AGNOSTIC AS TO WHAT THE TERMS OF THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

MIGHT BE. BUT IT SAID THAT -- IT SAID THAT ESSENTIALLY

THEY AGREED THAT THEY WOULD NOT CHALLENGE WHATEVER EVIDENCE

WAS PRESENTED AT THE TIME OF THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION TRIAL.

SO OUR MOTION IS DIRECTED TOWARDS LIMITING THEIR

INVOLVEMENT IN THIS PHASE OF TRIAL TO SIMPLY A -- WHATEVER.

LEGAL CHALLENGE THAT THEY WANT TO MAKE TO THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION BASED ON THE IDEA THAT THE SETTLEMENTS ARE

INCONSISTENT, ASSUMING THAT'S STILL A LIVE ISSUE AFTER THE

RULING. AND SPECIFICALLY, IT'S AIMED TOWARDS PREVENTING

THE WILLIS CLASS FROM PRESENTING -- AT THIS POINT, FROM

PRESENTING EVIDENCE OF AN ALTERNATIVE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

WHICH WE WOULD ARGUE -- WHICH I ARGUE IS CONTRARY TO THE

SETTLEMENT THEY ENTERED INTO.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR, AS JUST A MATTER OF

PROCEDURE, I THINK THE MOTION SHOULD HAVE BEEN BROUGHT AS A

NOTICED MOTION INSTEAD OF A MOTION IN LIMINE WHEN IT COMES

TO A STANDING ISSUE. SO I THINK AS A MATTER OF LAW, IT'S

IMPROPER. BUT TO THE MERITS, WHAT WE'RE DOING IN THIS

PROCEEDING -- WHAT THE WILLIS CLASS IS DOING IN THIS

PROCEEDING IS OPPOSING A PHYSICAL SOLUTION BECAUSE THE

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT THAT WAS REACHED WITH THE PUBLIC

WATER SUPPLIERS CLEARLY PROVIDED PARAGRAPH ROMAN NUMERAL

FIVE B THAT THE SETTLING PARTIES AGREE TO BE PART OF SUCH A

PHYSICAL SOLUTION TO THE EXTENT IT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE

TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT AND TO BE SUBJECT TO COURT
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ADMINISTERED RULES AND REGULATIONS CONSISTENT WITH

CALIFORNIA AND FEDERAL LAW AND THE TERMS OF THIS

STIPULATION.

SO THE WILLIS CLASS AGREED TO BE PART OF A PHYSICAL

SOLUTION, BUT NOT AN UNLIMITED PHYSICAL SOLUTION. IT'S A

PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT HAS TO BE CONSISTENT WITH ITS

JUDGMENT. THEY'RE GOING TO MAKE HAY AND ARGUE THAT IT'S

ANY PHYSICAL SOLUTION BECAUSE OF SOME LANGUAGE IN THE

NOTICE. BUT THE AGREEMENT AND THE uUDGMENT THAT THIS COURT

DECREED SAID WE'RE GOING TO BE BOUND BY A PHYSICAL SOLUTION

PROVIDED IT'S CONSISTENT WITH THIS JUDGMENT.

SO WE'RE HERE IN THIS PHASE TO DEMONSTRATE TO THE

COURT THAT THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT'S BEING PROPOSED BY

THE PARTIES IS NOT ONLY INCONSISTENT, BUT ALSO EXTREMELY

UNFAIR BECAUSE IT GIVES ZERO RIGHTS FROM THE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD TO THE NON PUMPTNG LAND OWNERS AND ALLOCATES IN

PERPETUITY ON A PERMANENT BASIS THE ENTIRE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD WHICH IS THE ONLY RELIABLE SUPPLY OF WATER FROM THE

BASIN. THE OTHER POINT THAT'S IMPORTANT --

THE COURT: YOU'RE DROPPING YOUR VOICE.

MR. KALFAYAN: THE OTHER POINT THAT IS IMPORTANT

WITH RESPECT TO REASONABLE -- IS WITH RESPECT TO REASONABLE

AND BENEFICIAL USE. THIS PROCEEDINt~ IS RELATED TO THE

GROUNDWATER RIGHTS THAT EVERYONE IS ASSERTING AND TRYING TO

ASSERT IN THIS CASE. HOWEVER, THAT IS SUBJECT TO THE

CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE ARTICLE 10 SECTION 2 THAT ALL WATERS

BE PUT TO REASONABLE AND BENEFICIAL USE. AND THAT IS A

FACT BASED INQUIRY THAT THE COURT HAS TO DIVE IN AT LEAST
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FOUR DIFFERENT COMPONENTS THAT THE CITY OF BARSTOW

DESCRIBED, ONE OF WHICH IS METHODS OF USE WHICH REQUIRES AN

EXPERT TO HELP. TWO, AT A MACRO LEVEL, WHETHER OR NOT IT'S

REASONABLE AND BENEFICIAL TO GROW ALFALFA IN THE DESSERT.

THREE, CONSERVATION MEASURES. THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

CLEARLY SAYS CONSERVATION IS PARAMO~TNT AND TMPORTANT.

JOSLIN, CITY OF BARSTOW -- TWO CASES ARTICULATED THAT

PRINCIPLE. THE THIRD IS FAIRNESS. WE'RE HERE IN ORDER TO

ENSURE THAT THE FHYSiCAL SOLUiIOP1 IS FAIR TO THE WILLIS

CLASS. AND IT CAN BE MADE FAIR. THE ONLY WAY WE CAN SHOW

THE COURT IS BY GIVING THE COURT AN ALTERNATIVE, AN

ALLOCATION, IF YOU WILL, TO THE WILLIS CLASS SO THAT WHEN

THEY DO COME IN ONLINE THERE'S AN AVAILABLE SUPPLY OF WATER

THAT THEY CAN DRAW UPON AND MAKE THEIR PROPERTY

DEVELOPABLE.

NEXT, YOUR HONOR, THE STIPULATION OF THE SETTLEMENT

DOES PROVIDE IN PARAGRAPH ROMAN NUMERAL SEVEN -- I TAKE

THAT BACK -- ROMAN NUMERAL EIGHT, B, LAST SENTENCE OF THE

SECOND FULL PARAGRAPH SAYS, "NOR SHALL THIS STIPULATION

PRECLUDE SETTLING PLAINTIFFS FROM PF~RTICIPATING IN ANY

FURTHER PROCEEDINGS THAT MAY AFFECT THEIR RIGHTS." UNDER

THE CITY OF LOWDI THE COURT SHOULD ENTERTAIN AND ADMIT

EVIDENCE AND DETERMINE WHAT IS FAIR AND --- AND EQUITABLE

FOR EVERYONE IN THIS BASIN. THE PROPOSAL THAT'S IN FRONT

OF THE COURT IS A ZERO ALLOCATION OF THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD

TO THE WILLIS CLASS. NO LAWYER IN THIS ROOM WILL DISAGREE

WITH THAT. AND IT FORCES THE CLASS TO RELY UPON THE

POTENTIAL FOR FINDING IMPORTED WATER. YOU'RE GOING TO HEAR
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FROM DR. WILLIAMS THAT IMPORTED WATER FOR THE LAST TWO

YEARS AVERAGED 12-AND-A-HALF PERCENT OF THE STATE WATER

CONTRACTOR'S TABLE "A" AMOUNT AND TIDE RETURN FLOWS FROM

THAT WERE MEAGER. SO THE WILLIS CLASS MAY CONCEIVABLY NOT

HAVE SOURCE -- A SUPPLY OF WATER IN ORDER TO DEVELOP THEIR

PROPERTY IN THE FUTURE IF THE COURT ADOPTS THIS PHYSICAL

SOLUTION. THAT'S ALL, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: OKAY.

MR. LEt~iIEUX: WELL, IT SOUi~'DED A LITTLE BIT LIKE WE

WERE ARGUING THE MERITS OF THIS INCONSISTENCY ARGUMENT.

WE -- I CAN -- WE CAN SEE, OR AT LEAST I CAN SEE THAT THEY

HAVE A RIGHT TO BE HERE AND ARGUE TIiAT THE SETTLEMENTS ARE

INCONSISTENT. AND THAT'S A LEGAL ARGUMENT SIGNIFICANTLY,

BUT THAT -- THERE'S NO DISPUTE ABOUT THAT. WHAT I'M

TALKING ABOUT AND WHAT I'M DIRECTING THE COURT'S ATTENTION

TO IS THE IDEA THAT THEY INTRODUCE A -- EVIDENCE OF AN

ALTERNATIVE PHYSICAL SOLUTION, WHICH I BELIEVE GOES BEYOND

THE BOUNDS OF WHAT WE'VE AGREED TO IN THE SETTLEMENT

AGREEMENT. IT -- THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ALSO SAYS THAT

THE WILLIS CLASS AGREES NOT TO CHALLENGE OR OTHERWISE

CONTEST THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD PROPOSED BY SETTLING

DEFENDANTS AS LONG AS IT'S AT LEAST 82,300 ACRE FEET PER

YEAR.

THE SETTLING PARTIES UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT IN

THE ABSENCE OF STIPULATION BY ALL PARTIES IN THE

COORDINATED ACTION, THE COURT WILL DECIDE THE BASIN'S

NATIVE SAFE YIELD FOLLOWING TRIAL AND THE SETTLING PARTIES

AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE COURT'S DETERMINATION IN THAT
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REGARD EVEN IF SOME OR ALL OF THEM DO NOT PARTICIPATE IN

SUCH A TRIAL. IT SEEMS TO ME THAT THEY UNDERSTOOD THAT

THAT

WAS -- THAT WE WOULD HAVE THIS TRIAL AND THERE WOULD BE

SOME KIND OF PROPOSAL, POTENTIALLY, OR STIPULATION THAT

WOULD COME FORWARD AND THEY AGREED TO BE BOUND BY THAT AT

THE END. SO THAT -- BASICALLY, THE WAY I'M LOOKING AT THAT

IT DOESN'T SEEM TO ALLOW THEM TO COME IN AND PROPOSE AN

ALTERIQATIVE VERjION FOR THE COURT' S CGPvSIDERATIGi~.

THE COURT: OKAY.

MR. LEMIEUX: SO WE WOULD ASK -- AGAIN, JUST FOR

CLARITY, WE WOULD ASK THAT THE COURT LIMIT THE WILLIS CLASS

INVOLVEMENT TO THE ISSUE OF THE INCONSISTENCIES OF --

ALLEGED INCONSISTENCIES BETWEEN THE SETTLEMENT AT WHICH CAN

BE RESERVED, WE THINK, AS A LEGAL ISSUE OR MAYBE IT HAS

ALREADY BEEN.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. FIRST OF ALL, MOTIONS IN

LIMINE, AND THIS IS APPROPRIATELY A MOTION IN LIMINE, IS

MERELY A RULING IN ADVANCE ON AN OBJECTION TO EVIDENCE.

AND THE -- ANY RULING ON A MOTION IN LIMINE IS LIKELY TO BE

TENTATIVE BECAUSE YOU REALLY DON'T KNOW WHETHER OR NOT THE

OBJECTION'S GOING TO BE SUSTAINED, EXCEPT IN RARE CASES,

UNTIL YOU HEAR THE EVIDENCE. IN THIS CASE, WE'RE TALKING

ABOUT WHETHER OR NOT YOU SHOULD BE ABLE TO PRODUCE EVIDENCE

AND MAKES ME GO BACK TO WHAT THE WHOLE PURPOSE OF THIS

PARTICULAR PHASE OF TRIAL IS.

AND THERE ARE SEVERAL THINGS. ONE IS THE 4UESTION

OF DEFAULTING PARTIES AND CLAIMS OF PRESCRIPTION AGAINST
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THOSE PARTIES. THAT CLEARLY IS SOMETHING THAT IS OF NO

INTEREST TO THE WILLIS CLASS AND YOU WOULD HAVE NO RIGHTS

WITH REGARD TO THOSE CLAIMS. THE SECOND PART OF THIS IS TO

DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE COURT IS GOING TO APPROVE A

GLOBAL SETTLEMENT. THAT IS A YES OR NO ANSWER. IT IS NOT

AN OPPORTUNITY TO HEAR EVIDENCE CONCERNING OTHER TYPES OF

PROPOSALS THAT MIGHT BE DIFFERENT. THE COURT HAS REVIEWED

THIS PROPOSED GLOBAL SETTLEMENT AND THE COURT IS EITHER

GOING TO tiPPROVE IT OR DISAPPROVE IT. THAT'S A SGLE ISSUE

WITH REGARD TO THAT QUESTION AND IT INVOLVES TWO

SETTLEMENTS. IT INVOLVES THE WOOD CLASS, AS WELL AS THE

PROPOSED GLOBAL SETTLEMENT, SO-CALLED, THAT HAS BEEN

ENTERED INTO BY VIRTUALLY EVERY LAND OWNER, PRODUCER AND

PUBLIC WATER PROVIDER IN THE VALLEY. SO -- AND THERE ARE

ONLY FOUR PARTIES, AS I UNDERSTAND 1.T, WHO ARE STILL ARE --

WHO ARE NOT IN AGREEMENT TO THE STIPULATION, BUT THEY MAY

BE.

SO TO THIS EXTENT, I'M GOING TO SUSTAIN THE

OBJECTION AS TO THE PRODUCTION OF WITNESSES TESTIFYING TO

ALTERNATIVE PROPOSALS. THE COURT IS EITHER GOING TO GRANT

OR DENY THE GLOBAL SETTLEMENT AND THE NEW WOOD CLASS

SETTLEMENT. THE COURT HAS ALREADY TENTATIVELY AGREED TO

APPROVE THE WOOD CLASS SETTLEMENT. SO THE ONLY ONE LEFT

REALLY IS GOING TO BE WHETHER OR N01' THE GLOBAL

SETTLEMENT'S APPROVED. IF IT'S DISAPPROVED, THE WOOD CLASS

SETTLEMENT GOES BACK TO ZERO AND THE SAME WOULD BE TRUE AS

TO GLOBAL SETTLEMENT. AND WE WOULD THEN SET THIS MATTER

FOR TRIAL WITH REGARD TO THE CLAIMS THAT EACH OF THE
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PARTIES, WHO ARE EXTANT, STILL HAVE IN THIS PROCEEDING IN

THE ABSENCE OF A SETTLEMENT OF THOSE CLAIMS.

IN EVERY REAL SENSE, THE WILLIS CLASS DOES HAVE THE

RIGHT TO PROTECT WHAT IT THINKS IS ITS CLAIMS AND RIGHTS

UNDER THE JUDGMENT. MR. LE~IEUX MENTIONS THAT THE

COMPLAINT IS STAYED. WELL, THE COMPLAINT'S REALLY NOT

STAYED. THE JUDGMENT'S BEEN ENTERED. THE COMPLAINT IS NO

LONGER VIABLE. THE ONLY THING WE HAVE IS THE STIPULATED

SETTLEMEtdT IN THE GJILLIS CLASS AND THE JUDGMENT APPROVING

THAT. SO -- AND I WILL TELL YOU THAT THERE'S SOME -- SOME

LANGUAGE USAGES IN THIS PROPOSED GLOBAL SETTLEMENT THAT ARE

A LITTLE BIT PERPLEXING BECAUSE OF THEIR PHRASEOLOGY.

WE'LL GET INTO THAT WHEN WE START TALKING ABOUT WHETHER OR

NOT THE COURT'S GOING TO GRANT IT OR DENY APPROVAL OF THAT.

AT THIS POINT, WE'RE STILL HEARING EVIDENCE

CONCERNING IT AND I GUESS DR. WILLI~MS IS THE FIRST WITNESS

AND I DON'T WANT TO KEEP HIM WAITING ANY LONGER SO I WANT

TO PROCEED TO HEAR THAT. NOW MR. ZIMMER, YOU HAD SOMETHING

YOU WANTED TO RAISE?

MR, ZIMMER: YES, YOUR HONOR. YOUR HONOR, AT THE

END OF THE DAY YESTERDAY, THERE WERE SOME COMMENTS BETWEEN

MR. DUNN AND MR. BRUNICK THAT RELATED TO THE TESTIMONY OF

DR. WILLIAMS. AND SO I THINK IT'S A GOOD IDEA THAT THE

COURT AT LEAST UNDERSTANDS WHAT THAT'S ABOUT SO WE DON'T

END UP IN OBJECTIONS WHILE DR. WILLIAMS IS TESTIFYING. AS

THE COURT KNOWS, ALL THE PARTIES THAT HAVE STIPULATED ARE

RESERVING THEIR OBJECTIONS ACROSS THE BOARD INTER SE.

THIS -- THIS CASE HAS BEEN GOING ON SINCE 2000 AND I DON'T
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THINK I COULD COUNT THE NUMBER OF TIMES THAT WE HAVE

DISCUSSED SETTLEMENT THROUGHOUT THAT TIME. TO THE CREDIT

OF ALL THE PARTIES THAT ARE SEATED IN THIS ROOM, A

SETTLEMENT HAS BEEN REACHED WHICH REDUCES, THROUGH A LOT OF

PAIN AND VERY HARD FOUGHT NEGOTIATIONS, REDUCES THE OVERALL

PUMPING TO BELOW OR AT WHAT THE COURT DETERMINED THE SAFE

YIELD TO BE. AND IT IS THAT GLOBAL REDUCTION TO THE SAFE

YIELD WHICH IS AT THE HEART OF THE ~;TIPULATED JUDGMENT AND

PHYSICAL SGLUTION. THAT, AS THE COURT IS -- CAN PROBABLY

IMAGINE, A LOT OF THE PARTIES HAD VARIOUS CONCERNS ABOUT

HOW THAT WOULD ALL WORK OUT. BUT IN A CONSISTENT WAY TO

WHAT THE COURT HAS ARTICULATED IN THE PAST, THAT THERE

WOULD BE SOME MECHANISM SET UP TO MANAGE THIS BASIN IN THE

FUTURE IN CONJUNCTION WITH REDUCTION TO THE SAFE YIELD,

THAT THERE WOULD BE THIS MECHANISM TO MANAGE THE BASIN,

THAT THE BASIN WOULD THEN BE PROTECTED AND THAT WAS THE

BASIS OF THE SETTLEMENT. HOW THAT C~~OULD BE DONE, YOU CAN

IMAGINE THERE WOULD BE A LOT OF DISAGREEMENT AS TO EXACTLY

HOW THAT WOULD BE DONE BUT THE PROCEDURE CERTAINLY IS SET

FORTH IN THE STIPULATED JUDGMENT.

THE COUNTY HAS DONE SOME ADDITIONAL WORK IN WORKING

ON A MODEL THAT TALKS ABOUT VARIOUS SCENARIOS ABOUT WHAT --

HOW THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION COULD BENEFIT THE BASIN. THE --

THE PARTIES, LAND OWNERS HAVE NOT ALL AGREED TO THE MODEL.

AS THE WAY TO DO THAT IN THE FUTURE AS THE MANAGEMENT TOOL,

BUT ALL THE LAND OWNERS AGREE THAT r MODEL CAN BE A VERY

EFFECTIVE TOOL IN THE FUTURE TO DO THAT. THE PARTIES, I

ALSO THINK, AGREE THAT THE MODEL THAT'S BEING PRESENTED BY
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THE COUNTY IS THEIR VIEW OF HOW THIS PHYSICAL SOLUTION WILL

BENEFIT THE BASIN AND NONE OF THE LAND OWNER PARTIES ARE

OBJECTING TO THAT BEYOND RESERVING THE RIGHTS TO CHALLENGE

A MODEL, IF NECESSARY IN THE FUTURE, TO HAVE CONTRIBUTION

TO A MODEL IN THE FUTURE, TO HAVE A MODEL IN THE FUTURE

VETTED WHICH WILL BE USED FOR PURPOSES OF ULTIMATE -- WHICH

WILL BE THE ULTIMATE MODEL THAT'S USED.

SO PUTTING THAT ASIDE, MR. DUNN AND I HAVE TALKED

ABOUT THIS BRIEFLY AtvD THERE MAY BE SOME DIFFERENCES Iii

PHRASEOLOGY BUT WHAT HAS BEEN AGREED IS DR. WILLIAMS'

TESTIMONY WILL NOT BE OBJECTED TO BY THE LAND OWNERS FOR

EXPEDIENCY, AND BECAUSE THOSE RIGHTS ARE RESERVED THE

PARTIES HAVE AGREED THAT THIS PRESENTATION OF THIS PHYSICAL

SOLUTION IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF SHOWING HOW A MODEL COULD

HELP THE BASIN UNDER THIS OVERALL MANAGEMENT PROCESS OF

REDUCING THE SAFE YIELD THAN HAVING A PROCEDURE IN PLACE IN

THE FUTURE TO WORK OUT THE DETAILS, WHICH OBVIOUSLY AS THE

COURT HAS EXPRESSED MANY TIMES WOULD BE INFLUX AND WILL

HAVE TO BE DEALT WITH IN THE FUTURE. SO THEY'VE AGREED

THAT THAT'S WHAT THE PURPOSE IS. IT'S NOT FOR PURPOSES OF

MANAGEMENT, IT'S NOT FOR PURPOSES OF SELECTING A WATER

MASTER. THE MODEL WILL NOT BE INTRODUCED IN EVIDENCE AND

THE SLIDES WILL NOT BE INTRODUCED IIlTO EVIDENCE, BUT WILL

BE USED FOR DEMONSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY AS TO UNDERSTANDING

DR. WILLIAMS' TESTIMONY.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MS. AILIN: JUNE AILIN FOR PHELAN PINON HILLS

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT. YOUR HONOR, IN RULING ON THE
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MOTION IN LIMINE, YOU REFERRED SEVERAL TIMES TO A GLOBAL

SETTLEMENT AND I JUST HAVE TO POINT OUT THAT IT IS NOT

QUITE GLOBAL BECAUSE MY CLIENT HAS I~OT SIGNED ONTO IT.

THE COURT: YOU NOTICED I USED THE WORD "SO-CALLED."

MS. AILIN: NO, I ACTUALLY DID NOT, BUT I APPRECIATE

THAT.

THE COURT: WELL, I DID.

MS. AILIN: AND IN RESPONSE TO MR. ZIMMER'S COMMENTS

FUR OUR PURPGSES uR. WILLIA~S' TESTIMONY HAS A VARY

DIFFERENT EFFECT. AT LEAST PART OF IT APPARENTLY IS GOING

TO GO TO MY CLIENT'S IMPACT ON THE ADJUDICATION AREA SO IT

IS REALLY NOT JUST DEMONSTRATIVE IN THAT SENSE.

MR. ZIMMER: YOUR HONOR, JUST TO BRIEFLY RESPOND TO

MS. AILIN'S POINT AND ALSO TO MR. KALFAYAN'S, TO A CERTAIN

EXTENT. THE TESTIMONY IS NOT BEING INTRODUCED, AS I

UNDERSTAND IT, MR. DUNN COULD HIGHLIGHT THIS, TO SHOW

THAT'S EXACTLY HOW IT WILL HAPPEN IN THE FUTURE, SO I THINK

SOME OF THESE COMMENTS ABOUT HOW EXACTLY THEY WILL BE

IMPACTED WOULD BE PREMATURE.

THE COURT: DO I UNDERSTAND CORRECTLY THIS IS A

HYPOTHETICAL EXAMPLE? IS THAT WHAT THE MODEL IS?

MR. DUNN: AND I APPRECIATE MR. ZIMMER'S COMMENTS

AND CONCUR. WHAT I'D LIKE TO ADD IS, FIRST OF ALL, ANSWER

THE COURT'S QUESTION. WHEN WE COME BEFORE THE COURT TO

PROVE UP A PHYSICAL SOLUTION, A PHYSICAL SOLUTION TO BE

SUCCESSFULLY PROVED UP WOULD SHOW THAT, OVER TIME, IF

IMPLEMENTED, THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION WILL SOLVE A PROBLEM AND

THE PROBLEM HERE IS A LONG STANDING OVERDRAFT. SO IT
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DOESN'T HAPPEN INSTANTANEOUSLY, IT TAKES PLACE OVER TIME.

AND WHAT DR. WILLIAMS' TESTIMONY WILL SHOW IS THAT THIS

PHYSICAL SOLUTION IS IN FACT A PHYSICAL SOLUTION. HE HAS

DEVELOPED A MODEL, WHICH CAN BE USED TO SHOW OVER TIME HOW

THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION WILL IMPACT THE BASIN. AND IT SHOULD

BE NO SURPRISE COMING FROM US THAT WE'RE OFFERING THIS TO

SHOW THAT IT IS IN FACT A PHYSICAL SOLUTION. SO YES, IT

DOES SHOW, OVER TIME, HOW THE BASIN WILL RESPOND.

THE COURT: BliT MR. DUTdN, THE PURPOSE OF OUR

PROCEEDINGS HERE IS TO DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE COURT

IS GOING TO APPROVE THE SETTLEMENT. THE COURT IS GOING TO

EVALUATE THE SETTLEMENT BOTH IN TERMS OF THE IMPACT ON THE

PARTIES TO THE SETTLEMENT, THE IMPACT ON THE FUTURE, THE --

AND IN PARTICULAR, THE PUBLIC INTEREST WHICH INCLUDES, BY

THE WAY, COUNSEL, EVERYBODY THAT IS IN AREA OF THE VALLEY

DOES NOT INCLUDE EVERYBODY EXCEPT THE WILLIS CLASS. I -- I

DO NOT UNDERSTAND WHERE THAT LANGUAGE CAME FROM. YOU DON'T

HAVE TO TELL ME NOW, EITHER, BUT I rIND IT NONSENSICAL WHEN

THE COURT TALKS ABOUT THE PUBLIC INTEREST, THAT YOU THINK

IT EXCLUDES SOMEBODY. SO IF THE COURT WERE TO SAY THE

COURT FINDS THAT THE PROPOSED PHYSIrAL SOLUTION IS A GOOD

ONE, IT'S EFFECTIVE BUT THE TERMS OF THE GLOBAL SETTLEMENT

AND THE IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST ARE NOT EXACTLY IN

THE PUBLIC INTEREST AND SHOULD BE MODIFIED, THE COURT WILL

BE ONLY ABLE TO TELL YOU THAT YOUR MOTION TO APPROVE IS

DENIED. I DO NOT HAVE BEFORE ME, AND NOBODY HAS PRESENTED

IT TO ME IN THIS FASHION, THAT THE COURT MAY FIND THAT

THERE IS A GOOD PHYSICAL SOLUTION BUT THE TERMS OF THE
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AGREEMENT ARE NOT APPROVED. SO I'M GOING TO GO AHEAD AND

APPROVE THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION AS I SEE IT AND I'M GOING TO

DENY YOUR SETTLEMENT IN TERMS OF THE TERMS. THAT'S NOT

BEFORE ME. I DON'T BELIEVE I CAN DO THAT AS MUCH AS I

MIGHT LIKE T0.

SO AT THIS POINT, WE'RE DEALING WITH THE GLOBAL

SETTLEMENT, SO-CALLED, MS. AILIN, AND WE ARE GOING TO

DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT IT AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF

T'HE SETTLEMENT AGREEMEtvT CAYJ BE APPROVED.

MR. DUNN: OKAY.

THE COURT: THAT'S ALL THAT`S BEFORE US WITH REGARD

TO THAT EXCEPT FOR THE DEFAULTING PARTIES.

MR. DUNN: YES.

THE COURT: TRUE?

MR. DUNN; YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: OKAY. THEN WITH THAT IN MIND, LET'S

HEAR THE EVIDENCE. MR. MCLACHLAN?

MR. MCLACHLAN: MICHAEL MCLACHLAN FOR RICHARD WOOD

AND SMALL PUMPER CLASS. I WAS A LITTLE SLOW TO STAND UP

EARLIER. I WANTED TO JUST PUT A COUPLE OF COMMENTS ON THE

RECORD REALLY BRIEFLY REGARDING THE MOTION IN LIMINE. I

DIDN'T GET A CHANCE TO DO THAT AND I'LL TRY TO BE SUCCINCT.

WHILE I DO, LIKE MOST OF THE OTHER SO-CALLED GLOBAL

STIPULATORS, DISAGREE WITH MR. KALFAYAN AND MS. ~BRENNAN'S

LEGAL POSITION, I DO HAVE SGME LEVEL OF SYMPATHY FOR THE

TASK THEY HAVE IN HAND. AND MY CONCERN MORE GLOBALLY, AND

I THINK THIS MOTION IN LIMINE WE'RE GOING TO SEE THIS COME

UP IN A FEW DIFFERENT AREAS, I MAY BE WRONG, BUT I THINK
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IT'S GOING TO COME UP AND THE -- THT NOTION THAT THIS --

POSED BY THIS MOTION IN LIMINE IN TERMS OF WHAT

MR. KALFAYAN CAN AND CANNOT DO IN -- IN OPPOSING THE

PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION, I WOULD URGE THE COURT TO BE A

BIT CAREFUL. AND MY CONCERNS ARE MORE WHAT HAPPENS AT THE

APPELLATE LEVEL, SO I WOULD LIKE TO SEE US BE NOT OVERLY

TRUNCATE HIS ABILITY TO DEFEND HIMSELF IN THE TRIAL COURT

LEVEL. I DON'T KNOW WHERE THAT LINE EXACTLY STANDS AND

1̂HANKFULLY I DOiv'T WEAR THE ROBE. I HAVE SCtiiE -- I ALSO

HAVE SOME SYMPATHY FOR YOUR HONOR BECAUSE IT IS A TOUGH

CALL. BUT AS A CLASS LAWYER, WE HAVE A BODY OF LAW OUT

THERE THAT STATES THAT YOU HAVE UNIQUE POST JUDGMENT DUTIES

TO PROTECT THE INTEREST OF A CLASS, AND CLEARLY THOSE ARE

IMPLICATED HERE VIS-A-VIS THAT SETTLEMENT WHEN THIS

PHYSICAL SOLUTION WAS CONTEMPLATED.

AND SO WHILE I WILL VERY VIGOROUSLY OPPOSE

MR. KALFAYAN, I'D LIKE TO DO IT ON A LEVEL PLAYING FIELD

AND I'D LIKE TO MAKE SURE WE TAKE REALLY GOOD CONSIDERATION

ABOUT LETTING HIM PUT ON THE CASE HF NEEDS TO PUT ON.

THAT'S ALL I HAD TO SAY.

THE COURT: YOU'RE OPPOSING THE MOTION IN LIMINE, IS

THAT WHAT I'M HEARING?

MR. MCLACHLAN: IN PART. THE MOTION IN LIMINE

SEEMED TO BE ORALLY TRUNCATED A LIT'T'LE BIT BECAUSE IT

DISCUSSED -- IT SAID THE THREE REMEDIES THAT HE SHOULD NOT

BE ABLE TO CHALLENGE THE PUMPING. I WOULD AGREE AS TO 2011

AND 2012, AS TO ALL OTHER PUMPING I SAY N0, THAT'S WRONG,

THAT HE SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO CHALLENGE THAT IF HE NEEDS TO.
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I THINK THE COURT DISCUSSED THAT YESTERDAY. THE -- THE

CONCERN I HAVE IS THAT YOU'RE LOOKING AT TWO SIDES OF THE

SAME COIN HERE. YOU HAVE OUR PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION

AND THEN MR. KALFAYAN WANTS TO PUT ON A PROPOSED

ALTERNATIVE. WELL, I AGREE THAT HE -- THAT IT'S NOT

NOTICED, IT'S NOT BEFORE THE COURT, BUT THERE ARE CONCEPTS

WITHIN THAT, POTENTIALLY, THAT HE Mr~Y WANT TO RAISE AND

SAY, WELL, LOOK THIS PORTION OF THE PROPOSED GLOBAL --

SO-CALLED GLuBAL STIPULATION IS ITQCGiJSISTENT WITH OUR PRICK

SETTLEMENT AND THIS IS THE WAY IT SHOULD BE FIXED AND

HANDLED. AND I DON'T THINK HE SHOULD BE, YOU KNOW,

PROHIBITED FROM ARGUING THAT. AND TO THE EXTENT THAT THE

COURT DEEMS NECESSARY ESTABLISHING THAT IT'S -- ACTUALLY,

WE CAN PICK A HYPOTHETICAL, BUT I WON'T -- IT'S SUCH AND

SUCH CONCEPT IS PHYSICALLY POSSIBLE. FOR EXAMPLE, IF HE

HAD TO PUT ON AN EXPERT TO PROVE THt~T, I WOULD -- YOU KNOW,

I WOULD PROBABLY LEAN TOWARDS ALLOWING HIM TO DO IT. OF

COURSE THIS IS A CASE-BY-CASE ISSUE AND I DON'T HAVE TO

MAKE THOSE DECISIONS BUT --

THE COURT: WELL, MR. MCLACHLAN, TO EASE YOUR

CONCERNS IN THAT AREA, THE ONLY THING I'VE DONE IS THAT

I -- I GRANTED THE MOTION AS A TENTATIVE SUSTAINING OF AN

OBJECTION TO THE PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE. AS THE

CIRCUMSTANCES EVOLVE, THAT COULD EASILY CHANGE. BUT AT

THIS POINT, THERE'S ONLY ONE THING ~iHAT I'M CONCERNED ABOUT

AND THAT IS WHETHER OR NOT I'M GOING TO APPROVE OR

DISAPPROVE THE GLOBAL SETTLEMENT WHICH HAS, AS PART OF IT,

A PHYSICAL SOLUTION. THAT'S ONLY PART OF IT. MR. KALFAYAN
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HAS, BEEN TOLD THAT HE CAN PROVIDE EVIDENCE,

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF THE WITNESSES WHO HAVE TESTIFIED TO

THE UNDERLYING FACTS, AND T SHOULD SAY YES -- AND TESTIFY

TO THE UNDER LYING FACTS EVEN THOUGH HE CHOSE NOT TO

PARTICIPATE IN THE PHASE FOUR TRIAL WHERE THE COURT MADE A

DETERMINATION OF WHAT THE PUMPING WAS AT THAT TIME. BUT

THAT'S ONLY PART OF IT, SO...

MR. MCLACHLAN: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

THE CvURT: I WANT i0 HEAR THE WITNESS. I DON'T

WANT TO HEAR ANYMORE, MR. KALFAYAN. I MADE MY RULING ON

THE MOTION IN LIMINE.

MR. KALFAYAN: THEN I'LL JUST MAKE MY POINT BRIEF.

THE COURT: WHEN I SAID I DON'T WANT TO HEAR

ANYMORE, WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?

MR. KALFAYAN: WELL, YOUR HONOR, YOU KNOW, HE MAKES

POINTS AND THE COURT RULES -- I JUST --

THE COURT: MR. KALFAYAN, PLEASE SIT DOWN.

MR. KALFAYAN: -- REAL BRIEF. THERE'S A DUTY --

THE COURT: MR. KALFAYAN --

MR. KALFAYAN: I WILL STAND DOWN.

THE COURT: I KNOW YOUR POSITION, OKAY? I WANT TO

HEAR THE WITNESS. HE'S SITTING HERE. CALL YOUR WITNESS.

MR. DUNN: THANK YOU. PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER CALLS

DR. DENNIS WILLIAMS.

DENNIS WILLIAMS,

CALLED AS A WITNESS, WAS SWORN AND TESTIFIED FOLLOWS:

THE CLERK: DO YOU SOLEMNLY STATE THAT THE TESTIMONY
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YOU MAY GIVE IN THE CAUSE NOW PENDING BEFORE THIS COURT

SHALL BE THE TRUTH, THE WHOLE TRUTH, AND NOTHING BUT THE

TRUTH, SO HELP YOU GOD?

THE WITNESS: I D0.

THE CLERK: THANK YOU. PLEASE BE SEATED. SIR,

WOULD YOU PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD?

THE WITNESS: DENNIS WILLIAMS; D-E-N-N-I-S,

W-I-L-L-I-A-M-S.

THE CLERK: TriANK YOU.

THE COURT: GOOD MORNING, DR. WILLIAMS.

THE WITNESS: GOOD MORNING.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. PROCEED.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. DUNN:

Q. THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

DR. WILLIAMS, BEFORE WE ASK FOR YOUR OPINIONS, I

WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU FOR YOUR BACKGROUND, YOUR EDUCATIONAL

BACKGROUND.

A. I HAVE A -- MY EDUCATION, I HAVE UNDERGRADUATE

DEGREE IN GEOLOGY AND A MASTER'S IN PH.D. IN GROUNDWATER

HYDROLOGY. I'M A REGISTERED CALIFORNIA GEOLOGIST,

CERTIFIED CALIFORNIA HYDRO GEOLOGIST AND CERTIFIED

GROUNDWATER HYDROLOGIST WITH THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

HYDROLOGY.

Q. AND DR. WILLIAMS, WHAT IS YOUR PROFESSION?

A. I AM A CONSULTING GROUNDWATER HYDROLOGIST.

Q. AND FOR HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A CONSULTING
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GROUNDWATER HYDROLOGIST?

A. OVER 40 YEARS.

Q. ARE YOU EMPLOYED? OR WHERE DO YOU WORK?

A. I HAVE A COMPANY CALLED GEOSCIENCE SUPPORT

SERVICES IN LA VERNE, CALIFORNIA.

Q. AND FOR HOW LONG HAVE Yi)U BEEN ASSOCIATED WITH

GEOSCIENCE?

A. I FORMED IT 37 YEARS AGO.

Q. AND WHAT IS YOUR CUFcREivT POSITION WITHIN

GEOSCTENCE?

A. PRESIDENT.

Q. ARE YOU ALSO THE PRINCIPAL GEOHYDROLOGIST?

A. YES.

Q. AND BRIEFLY, CAN YOU DESCRIBE GEOSCIENCE IN

TERMS OF ITS EMPLOYEE SIZE?

A. WE HAVE ABOUT 30 PEOPLE AND A NUMBER OF

PROFESSIONALS -- REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL HYDRO GEOLOGIST,

GEOLOGIST, ENGINEERING GEOLOGIST, CIVIL ENGINEERS. WE ARE

CONSULTANTS TO MOST OF THE MAJOR WATER DISTRICTS

MUNICIPALITIES ON GROUNDWATER DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT.

Q. IN CALIFORNIA?

A. WELL, YEAH, IN CALIFORNIA, BUT WE ALSO DO SOME

WORLDWIDE WORK, NOT AS MUCH AS WE USED TO BUT MOSTLY IN

CALIFORNIA.

Q. AND DO YOU DO ANY TEACHING?

A. YES. I'M A RESEARCH PROFESSOR AT UNIVERSITY OF

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA AND I`VE BEEN TEACHING ADVANCED

GRADUATE LEVEL CLASSES IN GROUNDWATER MODELING AND
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GEOHYDROLOGY SINCE 1980.

Q. AND DO YOU DO ANY RESEARCH ON GROUNDWATER

MODELING AT THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA?

A. YES. I'M A RESEARCH PROFESSOR. WE HAVE A

LABORATORY TH~T'S IN CLAREMONT, CALIFORNIA WHERE WE DO

RESEARCH ON WELLS AND AQUIFERS AND OTHER GROUNDWATER

RELATED PROBLEMS.

Q. I TAKE IT YOU ARE THE AUTHOR OF PUBLICATIONS IN

GROUNDWATER?

A. YES, I'M A MAJOR AUTHOR IN HANDBOOK OF

GROUNDWATER DEVELOPMENT AND THE EDITOR -- CHIEF EDITOR

REVIEWER OF THE AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEER BOOK

THAT CAME OUT LAST YEAR ON HYDRAULIC WELLS. I'M ALSO AN

AUTHOR OF A CHAPTER IN ANOTHER BOOK REGARDING SUB SURFACE

INTAKES FOR DESALINATION PLANTS USING SLANT WELLS. AND

THEN I'M ALSO -- I'VE AUTHORED ABOUT 50 OTHER PUBLICATIONS

RELATED TO GROUNDWATER.

Q. I TAKE IT OVER THE LAST 40'YEARS, THAT YOU HAVE

BEEN AN EXPERT WITNESS IN COURT PROCEEDINGS?

A. YES. I'VE BEEN AN EXPERT WITNESS A NUMBER OF

TIMES. I'VE TESTIFIED IN 15 TRIALS.

Q. HOW MANY TIMES IN CALIFORNIA?

A. I THINK MOST OF THEM WERE IN CALIFORNIA. I

WAS -- TESTIFIED IN FEDERAL COURT IN NEW MEXICO,

INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE IN PARIS, FRANCE TWO

TIMES.

MR. DUNN: AND YOUR HONOR, WE'D LIKE TO MARK AS

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER EXHIBIT 542, THE CURRENT CURRICULUM
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VITAE OR RESUME OF DR. WILLIAMS.

THE COURT: VERY WELL.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION EXHIBIT

N0. PWS 542, CURRICULUM VITAE.)

MR. DUNN: AND OFFER DR. WILLIAMS AS A HYDROLOGIST

QUALIFIED TO OFFER AN OPINION ON GROUNDWATER.

THE COURT: IS THERE ANY VOIR DIRE BY APvY PARTY?

THE COURT FINDS THAT THE WITNESS IS QUALIFIED AND MAY SO

TESTIFY.

Q. BY MR. DUNN: DR. WILLIAMS, YOU'RE TESTIFYING

IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY GROUNDWATER ?ADJUDICATION CASE.

YOU'RE AWARE OF THAT?

A. YES.

Q. CAN YOU DESCRIBE TO THE COURT YOUR FIRST

INVOLVEMENT WITH THIS CASE?

A. YES. I WAS ASKED BACK IN 2008 BY BEST, BEST &

KRIEGER TO GET INVOLVED IN THE CASE. AND THEN THE FIRST

TASK WAS REALLY TO PEER REVIEW THE EXPERT REPORT -- PROBLEM

STATEMENT THAT LED TO THE EXPERT REPORT IN 2010 WHILE IT

WAS BEING DEVELOPED. SO I REVIEWED THE DIFFERENT WORK THAT

WAS GOING ON. I ALSO WAS INVOLVED IN THE PREPARATION OF

WORK FOR THE PHASE TWO TRIAL, WHICH HAD TO DO WITH THE

HYDRAULIC CONTINUITY WITHIN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY. I DIDN'T

TESTIFY, BUT I DID GIVE A DEPOSITION. AND THEN I WAS

INVOLVED IN PHASE THREE. I GAVE A DEPOSITION ON THE RETURN

FLOWS AND SO ON, BUT NEVER TESTIFIED EITHER. AND THEN THE
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MORE RECENTLY, IN 2014, I WAS -- GAVE A DEPOSITION ON THE

PHELAN ISSUE -- THE PHELAN PINON HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES

DISTRICT AND THEN MOST RECENTLY WITH REGARD TO THIS PHASE

SIX .PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. THANK YOU, DR. WILLIAMS. WHAT WERE YOU ASKED

TO DO FOR THIS PHASE SIX PROCEEDINGS?

A. I WAS ASKED TO LOOK AT THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

AND SEE IF IT MADE HYDROLOGIC SENSE. IN OTHER WORDS, THE

BASIN HAS BEEN IN OVERDRAFT, WHETHER THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

WOULD IN FACT PRESENT A SOLUTION WHICH COULD BRING THE

BASIN BACK INTO BALANCE.

Q. WERE YOU ASKED TO DO ANYTHING ELSE IN THE PHASE

SIX? FOR EXAMPLE, ANYTHING WITH REGARDS TO PHELAN PINION

HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT?

A. YES, I WAS. I WAS ASKED TO LOOK AT THE IMPACT

OF PHELAN PINION HILLS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT WELL 14,

WHICH LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY

AREA OF ADJUDICATION. I WAS ASKED TO LOOK AT THOSE

IMPACTS.

Q. WE'LL SPEND THE REST OF THE TIME TALKING ABOUT

THE WORK THAT YOU DID. BUT DID YOU FORM OPINIONS?

A. YES, I DID. BASICALLY, TWO OPINIONS: THAT THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION WILL BRING THE BASIN BACK IN BALANCE.

THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION ESSENTIALLY CONSISTS OF THREE MAIN

PARTS. ONE WAS A REDUCTION IN PUMPING, WHICH IS

GENERICALLY CALLED -- IT'S SHOWN ON THE SCREEN HERE --

GENERALLY CALLED A RAMP DOWN, SO TO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD

VALUE OF 82,300. THE SECOND MAIN PART WOULD BE IMPORTATION
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OF SUPPLEMENTAL WATER TO MEET DEMAND. THE THIRD MAIN PART

WOULD BE MONITORING AND MANAGING THL•; GROUNDWATER BASIN

USING A MANAGEMENT PLAN UNDER THE GUIDANCE OF A COURT-

APPOINTED WATER MASTER.

MR. DUNN: AND ON THE SCREEN THAT YOU REFER TO, YOUR

HONOR, WE WOULD MARK AS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER EXHIBIT 543,

A SERIES OF THE DEMONSTRATIVE SLIDES TO BE USED BY

DR. WILLIAMS DURING HIS TESTIMONY. FOR THE RECORD, HE`S

xEFERREu TO PAGE 1 GF THAT EXHIBIT 543, FJBLIC WATER

SUPPLIER.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. NOW 'OU SAY THEY'RE SLIDES.

THERE'S ALSO A HARD COPY; IS THAT CORRECT?

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION, EXHIBIT

N0. PWS 543, SLIDES.)

MR. DUNN: I STAND CORRECTED. YES, THERE ARE --

THERE IS AN ACTUAL EXHIBIT. IT IS 543 PUBLIC WATER

SUPPLIER. IT'S A PRINTOUT OF THE SLIDES THAT WILL BE USED

TODAY BY DR. WILLIAMS.

THE COURT: PURELY DEMONSTRATIVE?

MR. DUNN: YES, ALL DEMONSTRATIVE WITH ONE

QUALIFICATION AND I'LL YIELD HERE TO MR. KUHS, BUT SOME OF

THE SLIDES ARE IN FACT EXHIBITS THAT HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY

ENTERED INTO THE CASE.

THE COURT: OKAY.

MR. KUHS: MY ONLY QUESTION WAS TO MR. DUNN AND THAT

WAS WHETHER OR NOT THE SLIDE PRESENTATION WAS AVAILABLE,
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COULD BE MADE AVAILABLE IN THE COURT'S WEBSITE.

MR. DUNN: YES. YES. THANK YOU. MY CO—COUNSEL,

MS. WANG, INFORMS ME THAT THESE SLIDES WERE MADE AVAILABLE

DURING -- OF COURSE, YES, THEY WERE POSTED ON THE COURT'S

WEBSITE LAST NIGHT. THESE ARE THE SLIDES THAT HE USED

DURING HIS DEPOSITION.

THE COURT: OKAY.

MR. DUNN: AND AGAIN, JUST SO I WAS CLEAR, SOME OF

THE SLIDES ARE NOT DEPsONSTRATIVE, THEY ARE EXHIBITS

ADMITTED, I BELIEVE, IN PHASE THREE THAT ARE BEING NOW USED

AS PART OF DR. WILLIAMS' TESTIMONY.

THE COURT: RIGHT. THERE SHOULD BE A PAPER COPY

THAT IS PART OF THE RECORD SO THAT YOU HAVE A COMPLETE

RECORD ON APPEAL SO THAT APPELLATE JUDGES AREN'T REQUIRED

TO LOOK AT SLIDES AND GET SLIDE PROJECTORS.

MR. DUNN: YES. AND WE FILED THAT PAPER COPY WITH

THE COURT CLERK THIS MORNING. THERE: SHOULD BE A -- FOR THE

COURTESY OF THE COURT, A COPY FOR THE COURT'S USE AND WE'LL

DISPLAY THEM ON THE BIG SCREEN HERE FOR EVERYONE ELSE.

THE COURT: THANK YOU.

MR. DUNN: FOLKS ON THE PHONE WILL BE ABLE TO ACCESS

THESE SLIDES THROUGH THE COURT WEBSITE NOW.

THE COURT: THANK YOU. 50 THE EXHIBIT IS 5 --

MR. DUNN: THIS IS 543 -- PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER 543.

AND THEN WITHIN THAT EXHIBIT, WE'LL -- THE PAGES ARE

INDIVIDUALLY MARKED STARTING WITH 1.

THE COURT: THANK YOU.

MR. DUNN: SO THE SLIDE BEFORE THE COURT NOW IS PAGE
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1.

THE COURT: OKAY.

Q. BY MR. DUNN: THIS IS DEMONSTRATIVE. OKAY.

DR. WILLIAMS, I APOLOGIZE. I DON'T KNOW IF WE HAD

YOU FINISH YOUR -- STATING YOUR OPIT~fIONS.

A. THE -- YES, I -- THE FIRST OPINION HAD TO DO

WITH EVALUATION OF PHYSICAL SOLUTION PROVIDING THE

HYDROLOGIC BALANCE. THE SECOND OPINION HAD TO DO WITH

FHELAN PINION HILLS COMP~iUP~IT~ SERVICES DISTRICT PJELL 14

PUMPING AT 1200 ACRE FEET PER YEAR AND IT HAVING A DECREASE

IN STORAGE OF 700 ACRE FEET PER YEAR WITHIN THE ANTELOPE

VALLEY AREA.

Q. ALL RIGHT. WE'RE GOING TO GO NOW THROUGH THE

WORK THAT YOU DID TO REACH THESE OPINIONS, BUT LET'S START

WITH THE FIRST OPINION. WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR YOUR FIRST

OPINION OR OPINION NO. 1?

A. WELL, IF YOU CAN GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, IT

SUMMARIZES IT VERY WELL. BASICALLY THE BASIS FOR THE

OPINION ONE OR THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION REALLY IS TO LOOK AND

SEE IF IT'S STABILIZED IN RECOVr~RY OF THE GROUNDWATER

LEVELS AND SUBSIDENCE. AND WE USED A TOOL THAT WE USE IN

HYDROLOGY AND BASIN MANAGEMENT CALLED A GROUNDWATER MODEL.

SO WE LOOKED AT THE WATER LEVELS ANC) THE SUBSIDENCE BECAUSE

MOST OF THOSE ARE IMPORTANT IN BRINGING THE BASIN BACK INTO

BALANCE. BASICALLY, IT`S JUST A SIMPLE -- THE RECHARGE IS

GREATER THAN EQUAL TO THE EXTRACTION. AND AS THE RESULT,

THE BASIN WILL BE IN HYDROLOGIC BALANCE OR IN A STATE OF

RECOVERY. IN OTHER WORDS, IT COULD BE REFILLING THE
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STORAGE, WHICH IS DEPLETED NOW, COULD -- WITH PHYSICAL

SOLUTION WOULD -- COULD REFILL THAT ALSO.

Q. AND DR. WILLIAMS, I FORGOT TO ASK YOU THIS UP

FRONT: THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT YOU WERE ASKED TO

EVALUATE, WHERE DID YOU SEE THAT OR HOW DID YOU OBTAIN

THAT?

A. WELL, THAT WAS THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION IN THE

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT. IT WAS OUTLINED, BUT IT'S THE

PHYSICAL SGLUTIGN THAT I THINK I DISCUSSED PRIOR WITH

MR. JOE SCALMANINI ALSO.

Q. BUT THE DOCUMENT ITSELF WAS AN EXHIBIT TO THE

WOOD CLASS PROPOSAL -- OR EXCUSE ME -- MOTION FOR APPROVAL

OF THE WOOD CLASS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?

A. YES, IT WAS.

Q. OKAY. THAT'S WHERE YOU FOUND IT?

A. YES.

Q. AND YOU OBTAINED THAT FROM BEST, BEST &

KRIEGER?

A. I DID.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND THIS SLIDE THAT YOU REFER TO IS

MARKED AS PAGE NO. 2, FOR THE RECORD. LET'S GO NOW TO WHAT

YOU TALKED ABOUT WITH THE ANTELOPE VALLEY GROUNDWATER

MODEL. CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT FOR US, PLEASE?

A. YES. SINCE WE -- THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION REALLY

IS A HYDROLOGIC BUDGET OR BALANCE. IN OTHER WORDS, THE

INFLOWS AN OUTFLOWS CHANGE IN STORAGE. YOU COULD -- THE

MODELS THAT WE USE NOW ARE CALLED DISTRIBUTED PARAMETER

MODELS COMPARED TO, SAY, A LUMPED PARAMETER MODEL. BEFORE
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WE HAD COMPUTERS, WE HAD TO TREAT THE BASINS LIKE GIANT

BATHTUBS, SO YOU HAD AN INFLOW AND OUTFLOW AND THEN YOU

SUBTRACTED THAT TO GET YOUR STORAGE CHANGE. NOW WE CAN DO

THAT ON A LOT FINER GRID NETWORK. WE OVERLAY A MESH OR

GRADE OVER THE BASIN. WE DIVIDE THE BASIN UP IN LAYERS AND

WE CAN PERFORM THAT HYDROLOGIC BALANCE ON EACH ONE OF

THOSE. THEY'RE CALLED MODEL CELLS. AND SO THE MODEL THAT

WE USE WAS DEVELOPED ORIGINALLY BY U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

AND THAT WAS CALLED THE ORIGINAL MOLEL G~HICH WAS DEVELOPED

IN 2003. THAT MODEL WAS MODIFIED BY THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL

SURVEY IN 2012 AND WE CALL THAT MOD-l. THEY BASICALLY MADE

THE CELLS FINER FROM A MILE ON A SIDE TO ABOUT 3,281 FEET

ON A SIDE, 1,000 METERS.. THEY AVSO ADDED FOUR MODEL LAYERS

TO ACCOUNT FOR THE LAKE BED AND ANOTHER MODEL FOR

SUBSIDENCE. WE USED THE USGS 2012 MODEL, THE MOD-1, AND

FURTHER RECALIBRATED THAT TO WHAT WE FELT WAS A MORE

ACCURATE REPRESENTATION OF THE HISTORICAL PUMPING. SO IT'S

THIS MOD-2 WHICH IS BASICALLY THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

MODEL THAT WE RECALIBRATED TO DO WHAT WE FELT WAS A MORE

ACCURATE REPRESENTATION OF PUMPING THAT WE USED TO TEST THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. NOW DR. WILLIAMS, JUST FOUNDATIONAL QUESTIONS,

HOW DID YOU OBTAIN A COPY OF THE USGS MODEL?

A. WE -- WE GOT ORIGINALLY FROM -- THROUGH THE

ATTORNEYS AND -- WHICH I THINK WATER WORKS 40, ONE OF THE

BEST, BEST & KRIEGER'S CLIENTS GAVE IT TO THEM.

Q. ALL RIGHT, AND DOES THE MODEL, AS USED BY THE

USGS AND OTHERS, DOES IT HAVE A COMMON NAME?
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A, IT'S CALLED MOD FLOW. MOD FLOW IS A NAME OF

THE USGS SERIES OF THE MODELS THAT WERE DEVELOPED BACK IN

THE 1980'S.

Q. WHEN YOU SAY YOU RECEIVTD A COPY OF THE MODEL,

WHAT -- GENERALLY, FOR R LAYPERSON, WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?

WHAT ARE YOU GETTING WHEN YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THE MODEL?

A. WELL, IT'S SIMILAR TO LIKE IF YOU WERE TO USE

ONE OF THE WORD PROCESSING PROGRAMS, YOU WOULD BUY WORD OR

EXCEL GR WriATEVE~, BUT YOU THEN WOULD GET THE DATA THAT YOU

NEED TO PROCESS IT THE SAME WAY WE D0. EVERYONE CAN BUY

MOD FLOW FROM A SUPPLIER, BUT WHAT WE GOT FROM THE U.S.

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY WAS ALL THE INPUT DATA AND OUTPUT DATA.

Q. AND THEN YOU TALKED ABOi1T HOW YOU MADE SOME

MODIFICATIONS TO THAT DATA; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. AND THE REASON WE MADE

MODIFICATIONS AT MR. SCALMANINI'S FIRM, LOU SCALMANINI FELT

THE PUMPING WAS UNDERESTIMATED AND WE DID THAT. AND IF YOU

WANT TO GO -- IF YOU COULD FLIP TO PAGE 6, I THINK.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET'S DO THAT, PLEASE.

A. WELL, YOU CAN GO BACK ONE MORE, JUST ONE. LOOK

AT ONE MORE. GO BACK TO SLIDE 6, PLEASE. THERE. YEAH,

THIS SHOWS -- SEE IF I CAN USE MY POINTER -- SHOWS THE

ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION AND IT SHOWS BASICALLY

THE AREA OF THE GROUNDWATER MODEL. WHAT'S CALLED ACTIVE

CELLS IS THE YELLOWISH AREA, AND THE GRAY AREA'S

INACCURATE. BUT YOU CAN SEE THE MODEL IS NOSHING MORE AND

SOLVES THE HYDROLOGIC BALANCE INFLOW, OUTFLOW CHANGE IN

STORAGE. IT JUST SOLVES UP ON EVERY ONE OF THESE THOUSAND
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METER CELLS AND FOR EACH LAYER. SO NOW IF YOU CAN GO

FORWARD TO SLIDE 15, WHICH LOOKS AT THE HISTORICAL PUMPING.

Q. I'M SORRY, DR. WILLIAMS, CAN WE GO BACK TO THAT

FIRST -- THE PREVIOUS SLIDE, SLIDE N0. 6? I WOULD LIKE TO

ASK YOU SOME QUESTIONS. THE RECTANGULAR AREA THAT IS SHOWN

IN -- I'LL CALL IT GRAY AND THEN WITH A YELLOW HIGHLIGHTED

AREA WITHIN THE ADJUDICATION ARLA, I THINK YOU EXPLAINED

SOME CELLS ARE ACTIVE AND SOME CELLS ARE INACTIVE; IS THAT

CORRECT?

A. THE GROUNDWATER MODEL Iz'~ THIS BIG SQUARE HERE.

IT'S MUCH MORE OF AN AREA OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY. HOWEVER,

ALL OF THESE ARE TURNED OFF, SO THEY DON'T HAVE ANY FLOW

GOING ON. THE YELLOW AREA IS THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF

ADJUDICATION, PRIMARILY THE ALLUVIAL SEDIMENTS, WHICH WE

WERE LOOKING AT IN HERE. SO THIS WAS THE AREA THAT -- THAT

THE MODEL WAS CONSIDERING THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION FOR. AND

IN ADDITION TO THE BOUNDARIES, YOU SEE SOME OTHER LITTLE

LINES HERE. THESE ARE FAULTS WHICH TRANSECT DIFFERENT

AREAS OF THE BASIN.

Q. NOW, IN THE UPPER RIGHT-HAND CORNER OF THIS

SLIDE N0. 6 OF THIS EXHIBIT, THERE'S A DEPICTION GENERALLY

SHOWING FOUR LAYERS GOING FROM LAYER 1 THROUGH 4. CAN YOU

DESCRIBE?

A. YES. THIS IS JUST A LITTLE CARTOON OF THE --

ONE THE MODEL CELLS CONSISTING OF THE FOUR LAYERS. AND THE

UPPER LAYER -- I THINK ANOTHER SLIDE IS -- SHOWS IT CLEARER

THERE. IF YOU GO TO -- IF YOU GO TO SLIDE 13, IT SHOWS IT

REALLY CLEAR THERE. THE UPPER LAYEr OF THIS BLOCK REALLY
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SHOWS THE LAKE BED DEPOSITS AND THAT'S ONE OF THE

MODIFICATIONS THE USGS DID. AND THERE'S DIFFERENT OTHER

LAYERS THAT GO DOWN ONE, TWO, THREE AND FOUR WHICH

REPRESENT THE DIFFERENT ALLUVIAL LAYERS IN THE BASIN. AND

THEY'VE BEEN DELINEATED, THE LAYERS, BASED ON VARIOUS

THINGS, USUALLY STRATEGICALLY WHICH IS GEOLOGIC CHANGES OR,

IN THIS CASE, SPECIFICALLY THE MOD-1. VARIATION OR ADDITION

BY THE USGS WAS TO PUT IN THE LAKE BED IN THE CENTRAL

PGRTION OF THE VALLEY.

Q. OKAY. AND NOT TO DWELL TOO MUCH LONGER ON

SLIDE N0. 6, BUT YOU MENTION THAT CELLS ARE TURNED OFF OR

ON. WHO DOES THAT?

A. WELL, THE MODEL THAT WE GOT FROM USGS TURNED

ALL THESE CELLS OFF BECAUSE THEY WEREN'T INTERESTED INFLOW

OUTSIDE THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION, SO

THEY -- THE USGS TURNED THEM OFF.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO THE PURPOSE OF YOUR WORK IS TO

EVALUATE THE ANTELOPE VALLEY ADJUDICATION AREA, CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. LET'S TAKE A LOOK AT SLIDE NO. 7 IF YOU WOULD,

PLEASE.

A. OKAY.

Q. WAS THIS SLIDE PREPARED BY YOU? OR WHERE DID

YOU GET -- I'M SORRY. WHERE DID YOU GET THIS SLIDE OR ITS

INFORMATION?

A. THIS SLIDE WAS OUT OF THE SETTLEMENT AND IT

SHOWS THE USGS.

Q. I'M SORRY. YOU SAID THE SETTLEMENT?
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A. THE -- THE STIPULATED SETTLEMENT.

Q. OKAY.

A. AND IT BASICALLY SHOWS THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA

OF ADJUDICATION. IT ALSO SHOWS THE FIVE DIFFERENT SUBBASIN

AREAS, THE SUB AREAS. THERE'S THE iaEST, THE CENTRAL AND

THEN THE ROGERS -- LET'S SEE. THAT'S UP HERE IN THE -- UP

IN THE NORTHWEST, AND THESE DIFFERENT AREAS ARE ROGERS --

AND SO ON SOUTHEAST, THEY'RE USUALLY DELINEATED BASED ON

EITHER HYDROLOGIC OR GEOLOGIC CONSIDERATIONS. AND, FOP.

EXAMPLE, THIS IS THE VERY BEDROCK RIDGE WHICH SEPARATES THE

WEST FROM THE CENTRAL. THERE'S SOME FAULTS THAT SEPARATE

THE SOUTHEAST FROM THE CENTRAL. THERE'S ALSO FAULTS UP IN

THE ROGERS LAKE AREA.

Q. NOW, WHY ARE WE LOOKING AT THIS, AT THE SUB

MANAGEMENT AREAS? OR WHY DO WE HAVE THIS SLIDE?

A. WELL, THOSE ARE JUST AREAS THAT THE BASIN --

THEY'RE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DIFFERENT GEOLOGIC AND

HYDROLOGIC REGION, BUT THE BASIN IS IN HYDRAULIC CONTINUITY

WITH ALL OF THESE SUB AREAS. I'I' -- ACTUALLY GROUNDWATER

FLOWS, HISTORICALLY IT USED TO FLOW SOUTH FROM THE SAN

GABRIELS AND THE TEHACHAPIS FROM THE SOUTHWEST TO THE

NORTHEAST AND FROM THE NORTHWEST TO THE SOUTHEAST ALL

TOWARD THERE. AND THERE'S SOME SLIDE OUTFLOW IN THE

SOUTHEAST OVER TO EL MIRAGE.

Q. AND CAN WE GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE? AND

THIS IS SLIDE NO. 8.

A. YES, THIS IS -- THIS IS THE SAME. IT'S JUST A

MORE GEOLOGIC. THE CENTRAL AREA -- THE MAIN CENTRAL
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PORTION IS WHERE ALL OF THE SUBSIDENCE OR MOST OF

SUBSIDENCE OCCURRED. A LOT OF FINE GRAIN LAKE BEDS IN HERE

AND THAT'S WHY THAT LAYER WAS ADDED IN THE -- ONE OF THE

USGS MODIFICATIONS. SO THIS JUST SHOWS -- ALL THESE LINES

REPRESENT FAULTS. FAULTS ARE NOT TOTAL BARRIERS, THEY'RE

WHAT WE CALL LEAKY BARRIERS, IN OTHER WORDS, GROUNDWATER

CAN FLOW ACROSS THESE FAULTS. IT MAY HAVE WATER LEVEL

DIFFERENCES AND IT MAY IMPEDE THE FLOW, BUT IT DOESN'T STOP

IT. SG THE ENTIRE AREA OF THE AYJTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF

ADJUDICATION IS IN WHAT WE CALL HYDRAULIC CONTINUITY.

Q. AND WHERE DID YOU GET THE INFORMATION OR WHERE

DID YOU GET THIS SLIDE?

A. WELL, THIS IS OUT OF THE -- ONE OF THE USGS

MODELING REPORTS.

Q. OKAY. AND THE NAME THERE IS ONE OF THE

AUTHORS?

A. YES, SIADE.

Q. AND YOU REFERENCED THAT THERE WAS SUBSIDENCE

THAT'S DEPICTED ON THIS SLIDE N0. 8?

A. WELL, THIS IS THE AREA OF LAND SUBSIDENCE THAT

HAS HAPPENED OVER THE -- OVER A NUMBER OF DECADES.

Q. WE HAVE TO MAKE A CLEAR RECORD. YOU'RE

POINTING TO WHERE, DR. WILLIAMS?

A. THE CENTRAL PORTION OF THE AREA AROUND

LANCASTER. ROSAMOND IS UP HERE.

Q. IT'S A SHADED AREA?

A. YES, SHADED AREA IN THE CENTRAL PORTION.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NOW, AS PART OF THE WORK THAT YOU
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DO IN TERMS OF EVALUATING THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION, DID YOU

CONSIDER SORT OF A GEOLOGIC CONDITIONS OF THE BASIN? FOR

EXAMPLE, LET'S TAKE A LOOK ADD SLIDE NO. 9.

A. WELL, THAT'S WHY YOU HAVE TO START WITH AN ANY

TYPE OF A BASIN MANAGEMENT. YOU HAVE TO GET THE GEOLOGY

RIGHT. YOU HAVE TO GET THE CONCEPT'iAL GEOLOGY RIGHT AND

THEN YOU LAYER ON THE WATER OR THE HYDROLOGX. SO THE

GEOLOGY -- THIS IS JUST A CROSS SECTION FROM THE PALMDALE

AREA OIL THE LEFT UP TO THE ROGERS LAY.E UP IN THE NORTH,

MURDOCK BASIN. AND IT SHOWS EXISTENCE OF THESE CLAYS,

THESE LAKE BEDS. IT SHOWS WHERE THE UPPER AQUIFER IN THE

MODEL IS AND THE MIDDLE AQUIFER AND THE LOWER AQUIFER.

THEN THIS LOWER GRADE PORTION IS ALL BEDROCK, SO YOU CAN

SEE HERE YOU'VE GOT BEDROCK WHICH IS BASICALLY GRANITE

EXTENDS UP THROUGH THE ALLUVIUM A NTIMBER OF PLACES. ON THE

WEST, WE HAVE THAT BURIED BEDROCK RIDGE, IN THE SOUTHEAST

WE HAVE SOME IMBUED AREAS, BUT SO THE BASIN IS VERY, VERY

COMPLEX AS ALLUVIUM HAS FINE GRAIN LAKE BEDS, IT HAS

SHALLOW BEDROCK AND THEN IT HAS DIFFERENT BOUNDARY

CONDITIONS.

Q. OKAY. NOW, DR. WILLIAMS YOU`VE ALREADY

INDICATED THAT THE MODEL THAT YOU USE FOR YOUR ANALYSIS

HAVE WHAT WE CALL LAYERS. WE'RE SORT OF TALKING ABOUT A

VERTICAL EVALUATION; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES, STRATIFICATION, THE UPPER LAYER, LAYER 1

IS THE CLAY AND THEN THE ALLUVIUM IS DIVIDED INTO THREE

MORE LAYERS.

Q. CAN WE GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE PLEASE, N0. 10?
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THIS SLIDE IS LABELED DEPTH TO BASEMENT. CAN YOU DESCRIBE

WHAT DEPTH TO BASEMENT IS?

A. BASEMENT IS THE GRANITE AND SO YOU CAN SEE, AND

BY THE COLOR CHART ON THE LEFT HERE, THE DARK BLUE IS VERY

DEEP, LIKE THE DARK -- THE DARKEST BLUE IS ABOUT A MILE

DEEP SO THERE'S SOME VERY DEEP AREAS IN THE BASIN OVER ON

THE WESTERN PORTION, SOME IN THE CENTRAL PORTION UNDERNEATH

THE LAKE BEDS. SO THIS IS JUST DEPTH TO BASEMENT FROM THE

LAND SURFACE TO THE DEPTH OF THE GRANITIC BASEMEPdT ROCK.

Q. NOW, AS PART OF YOUR ANALYSIS, DO YOU TAKE INTO

ACCOUNT HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS?

A. YES.

Q. CAN WE GO TO THE NEXT SiIDE, PLEASE? WAS THIS

SLIDE -- CAN YOU DESCRIBE WHERE THE INFORMATION CAME FROM

FOR THE USE IN THIS SLIDE?

A. YES, THIS CAME FROM ONE OF MR. DURBIN'S

FIGURES. HE WAS ONE OF THE MEMBERS THAT HELPED PREPARE THE

EXPERT REPORT. BUT IT SHOWS 1915 GROUNDWATER LEVELS BY

THESE CONTRA LINES, BUT WHAT MR. DURBIN DREW ON TOP OF

THOSE WAS ARROWS REPRESENTING GROUNDWATER FLOW, SO YOU CAN

SEE BACK BEFORE QEVELOPMENT STARTED THE HISTORICAL

GROUNDWATER FLOW WAS FROM THE SOURCES OF RECHARGE WHICH

WERE THE SAN GABRIELS AND THE TEHACHAPIS FROM THE SAN

GABRIELS TO THE NORTH—NORTHWEST FROM THE TEHACHAPIS, PRETTY

MUCH EASTERLY AND SOUTH EASTERLY. SO THE WHOLE -- WHOLE

FLOW -- AND THIS FLOW WENT ACROSS ANY FAULT BARRIERS. THE

BARRIERS MAY IMPEDE THE FLOW, BUT IT DON'T STOP IT. AND

THEN FINALLY THE FLOW FLOWED UP TO THE NORTH TOWARD ROGERS
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LAKE. HOWEVER, MORE RECENT CONDITIONS, BECAUSE OF THE OVER

DRAFT HAVE SHOWN A LARGE PUMPING DEPRESSION IN,THE CENTRAL

PORTION AND ACTUALLY REVERSAL OF FLOW FROM THE ROGERS LAKE

TO THE LANCASTER AREA.

Q. ALL RIGHT.

THE COURT: TWO THINGS: FIRST OF ALL, THIS IS SLIDE

11. YOU DIDN'T SAY THAT.

MR. DUNN: I'M SORRY. THIS IS SLIDE 11.

THE COURT: SECONGLY, IT'S 10:30. WE'VE BEEPd AT

THIS FOR AN HOUR AND A HALF. I'M GOING TO GIVE THE

REPORTER A 15—MINUTE BREAK.

(A SHORT RECESS WAS TAKEN.;

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. GRAHAM: YOUR HONOR, I'M HERE ON BEHALF OF A

VERY, VERY MINOR PARTY WHO WAS NOT A PARTICIPANT IN PHASE

FOUR --

THE COURT: STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE --

MR. GRAHAM: I'M ARNOLD GRAHAM.

THE COURT: GET OVER HERE NEXT TO THAT MIC SO

EVERYBODY CAN HEAR YOU, PLEASE. TH11NK YOU, COUNSEL.

MR. GRAHAM: ARNOLD GRAHAM. I REPRESENT DEFENDANT

WEST VALLEY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT. WEST VALLEY WAS NOT A

PARTICIPANT IN PHASE FOUR. THE COURT ASKED IN JUNE TO

SUBMIT A DECLARATION, WE DID, AND SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION.

I HAVE THE ADDITIONAL DECLARATION HERE BEFORE THE COURT TO

SHOW THE PROPERTY THE USAGE THE PUMPING HISTORY. IT'S ALL
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BOUND UP. I'VE GIVEN THE CLERK AN INDICATION OF WHAT EACH

OF THE EXHIBITS IS AND I'D LIKE TO SUBMIT THEM TO THE

COURT.

THE COURT: OKAY. MARK IT WHATEVER THE NEXT --

MR. GRAHAM: I'VE GIVEN THE COURT THE EXHIBIT

NUMBER.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. SO THE RECORD SHOWS WHAT IT

IS, WHAT IS THE NUMBER?

MR. GRAHAM: WEST VP,LLEY 1, 4dEST VALLEY 2, WEST

VALLEY 3, WITH ATTACHMENTS TO EACH ONE.

THE COURT: THANK YOU VERY MUCH.

MR. GRAHAM: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION, WEST VALLEY

EXHIBIT NOS. 1 THROUGH 3, DECLARATIONS.)

MR. WILSON: YOUR HONOR, I HAVE SIMILAR THINGS FOR

ANTELOPE VALLEY MOBILE ESTATES AND DESERT BREEZE. DID YOU

WANT TO WAIT UNTIL WE'RE DONE WITH THE WITNESS?

THE COURT: DO IT RIGHT NOW.

MR. WILSON: ANTELOPE VALLEY 1 OF 4, THE DECLARATION

WITH EXHIBITS, DESERT BREEZE MHP LLC, NO. 1 FOR THE

DECLARATION WITH EXHIBITS. I WILL ::SET FORTH ON PAPER THE

LISTING OF EXHIBITS IF THAT'S SATISFACTORY.

THE COURT: YES, IT IS THANK YOU.

///

///
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(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION ANTELOPE

VALLEY EXHBIIT N0. 1 OF 4 AND DESERT

BREEZE MHP LLC N0. 1., DECLARATIONS.)

MR. KALFAYAN: FOR THE RECORD, THE WILLIS CLASS

OBJECTS TO ALL THE OVERLYING LAND OT~NERS' DECLARATIONS

THAT'S MARKED OR WILL BE INTRODUCED INTO EVIDENCE AS

HEARSAY.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

MR. WILSON: YOUR HONOR, I WILL ALSO GIVE TO

MR. KALFAYAN HARD COPIES OF THE DOCUMENTS. ANTELOPE

VALLEY'S IS POSTED AS 10960 AND DESERT BREEZE WAS FILED

TODAY. IT'S POSTED AS 10997.

THE COURT: THANK YOU. AND THOSE PARTIES'

DECLARANTS ARE AVAILABLE FOR EXAMINATION?

MR. WILSON: YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: BY THE COUNSEL -- IF COUNSEL WISHES TO

DO S0 --

MR. WILSON: WE'LL SCHEDULE WHEN COUNSEL'S READY.

THE COURT: THANK YOU. GO AHEAD.

Q. BY MR. DUNN: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

DR. WILLIAMS, WE'RE STILL ON SLIDE NO. 12 OF THIS EXHIBIT.

I'M SORRY NO. 11. I STAND CORRECTED ON NO. 11. COULD YOU

TALK FOR A MOMENT ABOUT THE ARROWS?

A. YEAH, THE ARROWS JUST REPRESENT THE DIRECTION

OF GROUNDWATER FLOW. THE LINES -- THE BLACK LINES ARE

WHAT'S KNOWN AS GROUNDWATER ELEVATION LINES AND THE FLOW

ARROWS ARE PERPENDICULAR TO THEM. IT'S MUCH LIKE IF YOU'RE
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ON A SKI SLOPE, YOU POINT STRAIGHT DOWN HILL SO THESE HAVE

TO BE PERPENDICULAR. SO THIS WAS PREPARED BY MR. TIM

DURBIN WHO'S PART OF THE -- PREPARING THE PROBLEM STATEMENT

THE EXPERT REPORT. THIS IS FROM ONE OF HIS REPORTS, WHICH

I BELIEVE IS IN EVIDENCE. AND IT SHOWS BASICALLY, THE

DIRECTION OF GROUNDWATER FLOW PREDEVELOPMENT IN 1915 FROM

THE SAN GABRIELS FROM THE SOUTHEAST TO THE NORTHWEST AND

TEHACHAPIS PRETTY MUCH EASTERLY AND SOUTH EASTERLY.

Q. GKAY. NOGu, GR. WILLIAMS, IP1 JUST A P~IOMENT

WE'RE GOING TO TALK ABOUT THE TERM CALIBRATION THAT YOU

USED THIS MORNING IN YOUR TESTIMONY, BUT WHEN WE -- WHY IS

IT THAT WE LOOK AT HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER LEVELS WHEN WE'RE

GOING TO EVALUATE A PHYSICAL SOLUTION?

A. WELL, GROUNDWATER LEVELS WILL TELL YOU THE

WELLS OF THE BASIN. IF THE GROUNDWATER LEVEL IS MEASURED

IN MONITORING WELL NETWORK, THE TIME SERIES OF GROUNDWATER

LEVELS IS KNOWN AS A HYDROGRAPH. SO IF WE LOOK AT A BUNCH

OF WELL HYDROGRAPHS OVER TIME, IT WILL TELL YOU IF THE

BASIN IS EITHER GAINING WATER OR LOSING WATER. SO THAT'S A

VERY GOOD INDICATOR OF AREAS THAT HAVE MORE EXTRACTION THAN

RECHARGE. SO THE GROUNDWATER LEVELS ARE WHAT WE CALIBRATE

OR WE MAKE OUR MODELS MATCH AND -- IN OTHER WORDS, WE

DEVELOP OUR GROUNDTnIATER MODELS, WHICH I'LL EXPLAIN IN A

MINUTE, BUT THEN WE TEST THEM OVER THE LONG TERM HYDROGRAPH

RECORDS. IN THIS CASE, WE LOOKED AT 124 WELLS AND SOME

5,000 MEASUREMENTS.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NOW, YOU ALSO MENTION THAT AS PART

OF YOUR ANALYSIS -- DID YOU LOOK AT SUBSIDENCE?
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A. YES. THE -- GO TO THE SLIDE -- NEXT SLIDE,

PLEASE. THIS IS ALSO A SLIDE FROM THE PLATE FROM THE U.S.

GEOLOGICAL SURVEY MODELING REPORT. THE GROUNDWATER MODEL

ALSO MODELS SUBSIDENCE AS WELL AS Wi"TER LEVELS BECAUSE

THEY'RE CLOSELY RELATED. WHAT WE KNOW ABOUT SUBSIDENCE

FROM LONG-TERM HISTORY IN THE CENTRAL BASIN, CENTRAL VALLEY

AND OTHERS IS THAT IN CERTAIN TYPES OF AREAS WHERE YOU HAVE

FINE GRAIN DEPOSITS LIKE THE LAKE BED CLAYS, IF YOU LOWER

GROUNDWATER LEVELS A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OVER A LC~'G ENOUGH

PERIOD OF TIME, THESE CLAY LAYERS WILL COMPRESS AND THEY

WILL COMPACT AND THAT'S CALLED NONRECOVERABLE COMPACTION OR

SUBSIDENCE. SO THIS SHOWS THE NONRECOVERABLE COMPACTION OR

THE SUBSIDENCE BETWEEN 1930 AND 199 . AND IN THE CENTRAL

PORTION HERE AROUND THE LANCASTER AREA, IT HAS SUBSIDENCE

OF FOUR, FIVE, SIX FEET IN SOME OF THAT. SO THE LAND

SURFACE HAS GONE DOWN SUBSTANTIALLY IN CERTAIN AREAS OF THE

ANTELOPE VALLEY WHICH IS A REFLECTIVE OF OVERDRAFT

CONDITION.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND SO [dE'RE CLEAR ON THE RECORD,

THIS IS SLIDE N0. 12 WHICH IS ENTITLED, QUOTE, "LAND

SUBSIDENCE 1930-1992." AND I THINK YOU SAID THIS, BUT YOU

OBTAINED THIS FROM THE USGS. THIS ?;AS DONE BY MR. ADAM

SIADE?

A. YES. THIS WAS PART OF THEIR USGS MODEL REPORT

IN 2014.

Q. I TAKE IT THE INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE

FROM USGS IS THE TYPE OF INFORMATION THAT AN EXPERT LIKE

YOURSELF CAN REASONABLY RELY UPON IN FORMING THE OPINIONS
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IN THIS CASE?

A. YES, IT IS.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET'S GO BRIEFLY TO THE NEXT SLIDE

BECAUSE I BELIEVE THIS IS SLIDE 13. IT'S ENTITLED,

"GROUNDWATER MODEL LAYERS." AND WE'VE ALREADY TAKEN A LOOK

AT THIS BEFORE, BUT THIS SLIDE ALSO CONTAINS WHAT ARE

DEPICTED AS HYDROGRAPHS. CAN YOU EXPLAIN THOSE FOR US,

PLEASE?

A. YEAH, 1'OU SEE A P1UP~lBER IN THIS SLIDE WHICH IS

ENTITLED GROUNDWATER MODEL LAYERS. YOU SEE A NUMBER OF

SMALL PANELS, ACTUALLY EIGHT -- FOUR ON THE LEFT, FOUR ON

THE RIGHT -- AND THEY HAVE VARIOUS LINES. THIS WAS THE

OSGS'S CALIBRATION AND IT'S HARD TO SEE BUT IT WENT --

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, YOU'LL HAVE TO DESCRIBE WHEN YOU

SAY, THIS IS THE CALIBRATION. ARE YOU REFERRING TO A LINE

ON ONE OF THE HYDROGRAPHS?

A. YEAH, I WAS TRYING TO READ THE THING. IT'S

ACTUALLY 19 -- THE BOTTOM GOES FROM ABOUT 1915 TO 2003.

AND THESE ARE WATER LEVELS IN VARIOUS AREAS OF THE BASIN

THAT WERE ACTUALLY PREDICTED BY THE USGS IN THEIR MODEL.

AND PLOTTED AS CIRCLES WITHIN THE PLOTS ARE THE ACTUAL

MEASUREMENTS FROM WELLS. SO THE WHOLE PURPOSE OF

CALIBRATION IS TO MAKE THE MODEL MATCH, AS BEST AS

POSSIBLE, THE ACTUAL MEASURED HISTORICAL DATA WHETHER IT'S

WATER LEVELS OR SUBSIDENCE.

Q. SO CAN YOU EXPLAIN FOR US -- YOU KNOW, LET'S

USE THE HYDROGRAPH IN THE UPPER LEFT-HAND CORNER. WHAT ARE

THE COLORED LINES THERE IN THE CIRCLES?



25355

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A. WELL, ONE OF THEM IS THE LAND SURFACE AT THE

TOP AND THEN THESE ARE THE GROUNDWATER PREDICTED WATER

LEVELS. AND THE CIRCLES ARE MEASURED -- HISTORICALLY

MEASURED WATER LEVELS IN WELLS IN THIS. THIS IS THE WELL

NAME.

Q. NOW LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE AND TALK ABOUT

MODEL CALIBRATION FOR A MOMENT, OKAY. FIRST OF ALL, WHY

DOES -- LET'S TALK ABOUT CALIBRATION. WHAT IS CALIBRATION?

A. CALIBRATION IS HAVIPdG THE MODEL AS REFINED PS

POSSIBLE BASED ON THE AVAILABLE DATA. NOW, THE MODELS THAT

WE USE ARE CONTINUALLY GETTING BETTER AND BETTER. AS MORE

DATA BECOMES AVAILABLE, YOU REFINE THE MODELS, BUT THE

CALIBRATION THAT'S SHOWN ON HERE BY THE USGS AND WHAT WE

DID WAS BETWEEN 1915 AND 2005, SO IT'S A LONG PERIOD OF

RECORD. IT HAS WET SEASONS, DRY SEASONS, AVERAGE SEASONS.

SO THE CALIBRATION INCLUDED MATCHING, AS BEST AS POSSIBLE,

THE WATER LEVEL VARIATIONS THROUGHOUT THE ANTELOPE VALLEY

AND THE SUBSIDENCE THAT WAS MEASURED. SO THE MODEL IS

FORCED BY VARYING THE DIFFERENT HYDROLOGIC PARAMETERS

WITHIN ACCEPTABLE LIMITS TO BEST FIl THE ACTUAL MEASURED

DATA, WHETHER IT'S WATER LEVELS OR SUBSIDENCE. AND AS MORE

INFORMATION BECOMES AVAILABLE AND THE FUTURE MODELS ARE

REFINED AND THIS IS AN ONGOING PROCESS SO THAT -- AND WE DO

IT IN A NUMBER OF OTHER BASINS WHERE IT'S COMPLETELY -- IT

GETS REFINED. THE MODEL GETS MORE ACCURATE AS MORE

INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE.

Q. GENERALLY, IF I UNDERSTAND IT, MODEL

CALIBRATION IS TO TAKE A LOOK AT ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS IN
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HYDROGRAPHS; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THEN MATCH THAT AGAINST HOW THE MODEL

SIMULATES RECHARGE AND OUTFLOW IN THE BASIN; IS THAT

CORRECT?

A. RIGHT. THE HYDROGRAPHS ARE WELL, WHICH IS A

POINT SOMEWHERE IN THE BASIN. THE MATCH IS PICKING A MODEL

CELL. NOW THESE CELLS ARE 3,000 FEET BY 3,000 WHERE THAT

WELL IS AND P~iAKING THE P~lODEL SIMULATE THAT.

Q. OKAY. AND FOR A MODEL TO CALIBRATE, WHAT WOULD

YOU SEE IN TERMS OF WHAT THE MODEL GENERATES VERSUS THE

HISTORICAL MEASUREMENTS?

A. WE HAVE A STATISTICAL PARAMETER THAT'S ACCEPTED

IN THE GROUNDWATER MODELING INDUSTRY, IT'S CALLED RELATIVE

ERROR. AND WE LOOK AT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE MODEL

PREDICTED WATER LEVEL AND THE ACTUAL MEASURED WATER LEVEL,

AND THIS IS CALLED THE RESIDUAL. IT'S A DIFFERENCE. AND

WE LOOK AT THE STANDARD DEVIATIONS OF THESE RESIDUALS

DIVIDED BY THE RANGE OF RESIDUALS. IT'S CALLED THE

RELATIVE ERROR. AND IF THE RELATIVE ERROR IS LESS THAN TEN

PERCENT, THE MODEL IS CONSIDERED WELL CALIBRATED.

Q. OKAY. AND DID YOU ESTIMATE OR CALCULATE THE

RELATIVE ERROR FOR THE MODEL THAT YOU EMPLOYED FOR YOUR

ANALYSIS?

A. YES, WE DID. AND THAT -- THAT'S SHOWN ON --

LET ME SEE IF I CAN FIND IT HERE. I'M SKIPPING AHEAD.

Q. I BELIEVE IT'S SLIDE 29.

A. THANK YOU. YEAH, THIS IS THE SUMMARY. IT
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SHOWS MODEL CALIBRATION RESULTS FOR THE WATER LEVELS AND IT

SHOWS WHAT THE USGS MODEL THAT WE IMPROVED UPON AND IN THE

CALI$RATION RELATIVE ERROR OF 3.25 PERCENT. OUR

CALIBRATION USING THE UPDATED PUMPI~]G RECORDS IS 2.27

PERCENT, SO THEY'RE WELL WITHIN THE ACCEPTABLE GOOD

CALIBRATION OF TEN PERCENT.

Q. OKAY.

A. AND SIMILARLY, IF YOU GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE,

SUBSIDENCE, WE DID BETTER THAN THE USGS DID, BUT IN OUR

CALIBRATION FOR SUBSIDENCE IT'S 8.7b PERCENT.

Q. OKAY. NOW, DR. WILLIAMS, IN ORDER TO CALIBRATE

THE MODEL YOU NEED PUMPING INFORMATION, CORRECT?

A. WELL, YOU NEED -- YOU NEED PUMPING INFORMATION

WITH TIME, YOU NEED WATER LEVEL INFORMATION WITH TIME, YOU

NEED LAND SURFACE MEASUREMENTS WITH TIME.

Q. OKAY. LET'S GO BACK TO SLIDE NO. 15, IF WE

WOULD PLEASE. THIS IS ENTITLED, "ADJUSTMENT OF PUMPING IN

MOD-2."

A. YES. WHEN WE -- WHEN WE RECEIVED THE USGS

MODEL IN -- I THINK IT WAS 2012, MR. SCALMANINI'S COMPANY

FELT THAT THE ESTIMATE OF PUMPING BY THE USGS WAS T00 LOW

AND SO IT'S SHOWN HERE. THEY HAD AN ESTIMATION OF -- ON

AVERAGE BETWEEN 1946 AND 2005, THEY HAD ON AVERAGE AN

ESTIMATION OF 210,400.

Q. THAT'S SHOWN HOW? IN WHAT COLOR?

A. THAT'S SHOWN IN THE BLUE. AND THE EXPERT

SUMMARY REPORT TOOK EXCEPTION WITH THAT AND THEY FOUND

THAT -- IT'S SHOWN IN RED. THEY FELT THAT THE AVERAGE --
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ANNUAL AVERAGE WAS 247,100.

Q. SO WHAT SLIDE NO. 15 SHOWS IS THE DIFFERENCE IN

THE MEASUREMENTS OR ESTIMATES OF HISTORICAL GROUNDWATER

PUMPING BETWEEN THE USGS MODEL AND WHAT THE TECHNICAL

COMMITTEE OR HAD FOUND IN THEIR EXPERT SUMMARY REPORT; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. AND SO THEN THIS PUMPING WAS

REVISED TO REFLECT WHAT THE EXPERT REPORT SUMMARIZED AS

THE -- WHAT THEY rELT WAS THE ACTUAL PUMPIPIG Ai~D WENT

THROUGH A SERIES OF LOOKING AT LAND USES AS EARLY AS 1947,

LOOKING AT CROPPING PATTERNS AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND SO

ON. AND THEN THEY REFINED THE PUMPING ESTIMATE, WHICH WE

USED IN OUR CALIBRATION OF MOD-2.

Q. OKAY. SO LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE

NO. 16.

A. THIS IS AN EXAMPLE. IT SHOWS THE ANTELOPE

VALLEY AND IT SHOWS SOME GREEN AREA, WHICH IS THE IRRIGATED

AGRICULTURE IN 1947. AND THEN BASED ON THAT, ESTIMATES OF

PUMPING WERE MADE LOOKING AT THE DIFFERENT LAND USE TYPES.

AND THE NEXT SERIES OF SLIDES JUST PAGES FORWARD IN TIME.

Q. SO LET'S GO TO SLIDE N0. 17.

A. SLIDE 17 IS THE SAME, BUT THE -- IT HAS BOTH

GREEN, WHICH IS THE IRRIGATED AGRICULTURE AND IT HAS A

YELLOW, WHICH IS URBAN AREAS. SO YOU'LL SEE, AS YOU GO

FORWARD IN TIME, THE AGRICULTURE IS LESS AND LESS AND THE

URBAN AREAS INCREASE. SO THIS -- THIS SLIDE 17 IS LAND USE

IN 1961 AND SLIDE 18 IS LAND USE IN 1972. AND THEN YOU

KEEP GOING FORWARD. THE NEXT ONE IS SLIDE 19 IS '86 --
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SHOULD BE LAND USE IN 1986. AND THEN SLIDE 20 IS LAND USE

IN '89 AND '90 AND THEN IT CONTINUES ON THE NEXT SLIDE. 21

IS LAND USE IN '99 AND 2000 AND FINALLY, LAND USE -- NO. 22

IS LAND USE IN 2005. AND THERE IS A NOTABLE INCREASE IN

THE URBANIZED AREA. AND ALL THESE FACTORS WERE INCLUDED IN

THE REVISION OF THE PUMPING VALUES THAT WE USED IN THE

MOD-2 VERSION OF THE USGS MODEL.

Q. AND JUST FOR THE RECORD, SLIDE 16 THROUGH 22

WERE USED BY MR. SCALI~ANINI IN HIS TESTIP~ONY IN THIS CASE;

IS THAT CORRECT?

A, YES.

Q. LET'S GO TO SLIDE 23. NOW DR. WILLIAMS, IN

ORDER FOR THE MODEL TO CALIBRATE, YOU LOOK AT HISTORICAL

MEASUREMENTS AS SHOWN BY VARIOUS WELLS' HYDROGRAPHS; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND DOES SLIDE N0. 23 DEPICT THE WELLS THAT

WERE USED FOR CALIBRATION OF THE MODEL?

A. YES. THERE WERE~124 WELLS THAT WE USED FOR

WATER LEVEL CALIBRATION BETWEEN 1915 AND 2005. AND OF

THOSE 124 WELLS THERE'S A TOTAL OF 5,918 MEASUREMENTS SO

THERE WAS TIME SERIES MEASURES WITH THE WELLS. AND SO WE

USE THAT TO FORCE THE MODEL OR REFINE THE MODEL TO MATCH

THOSE AS BEST WE COULD. AND WE DID -- WE DID A SIMILAR

CALIBRATION WITH THE SUBSIDENCE, BUT THIS SHOWS THE

LOCATION OF THE WELLS THROUGHOUT THE MODEL AREA THAT WERE

USED FOR CALIBRATION.

Q. AND LET'S TAKE A LOOK AT THE HYDROGRAPHS ON THE
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NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE, WHICH IS SLIDE 24.

A. SLIDE 24 SHOWS SELECTED HYDROGRAPHS THAT WERE

USED, WHICH SHOWED THE MODEL GENERATOR WATER LEVELS AS WELL

AS THE MEASURED ONES. I THINK SLIDE 25 HAS A BLOWUP OF

ONE. IT'S EASIER TO SEE. THIS IS ONE OF THE WELLS SHOWING

THE OBSERVED WATER LEVELS SHOWN AS THE BLACK DOTS AND THE

MODEL GENERATED WATER LEVEL SHOWN AS THE SOLID LINE. SO

YOU CAN SEE THERE'S A VERY GOOD MATCH IN THIS AREA. SO YOU

TRY TO GET THESE -- THE PfODEL TO PATCH THE HYDROGRAPHS AS

GOOD AS YOU CAN GET. AND WE ACHIEVED A GOOD CALIBRATION

WITH BOTH THE WATER LEVEL AND THE SUBSIDENCE IN THIS MODEL.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET'S GO BACK JUST TO THE PREVIOUS

SLIDE, PLEASE, SLIDE 24. DID GEOSCIENCE, YOUR ENGINEERING

FIRM, PREPARE THIS SLIDE?

A. YES, WE PREPARED IT. IT HAS OUR LOGO DOWN

THERE ON THE BOTTOM. BUT THIS IS JUST SOME SELECTED

HYDROGRAPHS SHOWING HISTORICAL DATA AS WELL AS MODEL

GENERATED DATA FOR VARIOUS POINTS WITHIN THE ANTELOPE

VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION.

Q. AND I TAKE IT FOR EACH OF THOSE ONE, TWO,

THREE, FOUR, FIVE, SIX, SEVEN, EIGHT, NINE, TEN, ELEVEN

HYDROGRAPHS, THE LOCATION OF EACH WELL IS DEPICTED ON SLIDE

24?

A. YES. THERE'S LINES GOING FROM THE HYDROGRAPH

INSET TO THE POINT ON -- IN THE BASIN WHERE THE CALIBRATION

WAS PERFORMED.

Q. NOW, YOU TALKED ABOUT THE RELATIVE ERROR FOR

CALIBRATION. HOW WOULD YOU, IN LAYPERSON TERMS,
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CHARACTERIZE THE CALIBRATION OF YOUR GROUNDWATER MODEL IN

THIS CASE?

A. WELL, FIRST OF ALL, WITHIN THE INDUSTRY

STANDARD OF TEN PERCENT, WE HAVE CALIBRATION OF LESS

THAN -- YOU KNOW, A LITTLE BIT ABOVE TWO PERCENT.

BASICALLY IT MEANS THAT YOUR MODEL IS GENERATING WHAT WAS

MEASURED IN THE PAST. SO YGU WANT TO HAVE A LONG ENOUGH

CALIBRATION PERIOD. AND THIS -- THIS IS QUITE A LONG

CALIBRATION FERIOD BETWEEN 1915 AND 2005 SO THAT NOW YOU

CAN FEEL COMFORTABLE PREDICTING INTO THE FUTURE. SO YOU

CAN'T -- IT'S NOT GOOD PRACTICE, FOR EXAMPLE, TO HAVE A

CALIBRATION PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS THEN TRY Td PREDICT 30

YEARS IN THE FUTURE. IT'S MUCH BETTER TO DO WHAT THIS IS,

SO 91 YEARS, I THINK, OF HISTORICAL RECORDS.

Q. AND I TAKE IT, JUST A CASUAL OBSERVATION OF THE

HYDROGRAPHS HERE WITH THE BLUE LINE OF THE MODEL, BY ALL

ACCOUNTS, WOULD SHOW A FAIRLY CLOSE CALIBRATION OR

RELATIONSHIP?

A. YEAH, THESE ARE GOOD FITS. SO THE STATISTICAL

METHOD RELATIVE ERROR LOOKS AT THE DIFFERENCE FOR EVERY

SINGLE ONE OF THESE POINTS BETWEEN WHAT`S MEASURED

HISTORICALLY AND WHAT THE MODEL PREDICTED, AND THAT'S

CALLED THE RESIDUAL. IT ADDS ALL THOSE UP, TAKES THE

STANDARD DEVIATION, WHICH IS A MEASURE OF HOW FAR APART YOU

ARE AND THEN DIVIDES BY THE RANGE OF LEVELS THAT ARE SHOWN

IN HERE. AND AGAIN, THAT RELATIVE ERROR IS WHAT'S USED IN

THE GROUNDWATER -- OF THE METHODS I~ THE GROUNDWATER

MODELING COMMUNITY AS A MEASURE OE HOW WELL IT'S
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CALIBRATED. AND SO YOU CAN SEE THE TEN PERCENT IS WHAT'S

GENERALLY ACCEPTED AS GOOD CALIBRA2ION AND THIS IS A LITTLE

OVER TWO PERCENT, SO IT'S A GOOD -- WE CAN FEEL IT'S A GOOD

CALIBRATION.

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, ARE THE 11 HYDROGRAPHS DEPICTED

ON SLIDE 24 THE ONLY HYDROGRAPHS TH?~T WERE USED TO

CALIBRATE THE MODEL?

A. WELL, THE HYDROGRAPHS ARE JUST FOR YOUR

BENEFIT. . THE MODEL CALIBRATES ACCORDING TO DATA AND SO VdE

JUST -- THIS IS JUST TO DISPLAY. WE CAN DISPLAY ANY -- ANY

CELL ON HERE. WE -- THIS IS JUST A REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLE

OF A FEW WELLS JUST FOR ILLUSTRATIOI~.

Q. NOW EARLIER IN YOUR TESTIMONY YOU DESCRIBED

WHAT'S COMMONLY CALLED A LUMP SUM VERSUS A DISTRIBUTED

PARAMETER MODEL. CAN YOU EXPLAIN THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN

THE TWO HERE?

A. WELL, IF THIS -- IF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY WAS

CONSIDERED AS A LUMP SUM, YOU WOULD JUST TAKE THE ANTELOPE

VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION, YOU WOULD LOOK AT ALL OF THE

PUMPING THAT WENT INTO THERE, ALL OE' THE RECHARGE THE

PUMPING THAT WAS EXTRACTED AND THEN XOU MIGHT JUST AVERAGE

WATER LEVELS FROM EVERYWHERE. AND BECAUSE THERE'S NO WAY

-- IN A LUMP SUM MODEL YOU CAN'T BREAK IT ANY FINER THAN

THE ENTIRE BASIN, SO IT'S LIKE A GIRNT BATHTUB..

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO -- ALL RIGHT. AND HOW IS THAT

DIFFERENT FROM WHAT YOU -- DID YOU USE A PARAMETER

DISTRIBUTED MODEL HERE?

A. IT'S CALLED A DISTRIBUTED PARAMETER MODEL. AND
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THESE MODELS STARTED IN THE '70S AND '80S WHEN COMPUTERS

BECAME MORE POWERFUL AND COULD DO THE CALCULATIONS SO WE

COULD DIVIDE THE BASINS UP INTO CELLS AND PERFORM THE

HYDROLOGIC BUDGET, NOT ON A BASIN LINE BASIS, BUT ON THE

SMALL MODEL CELLS. SO WE DID IT FOR ALL OF THESE MODEL

CELLS AS WELL AS OVER A LONG TIME PERIOD.

Q. OKAY. LET'S MOVE NOW T~ SLIDE N0. 26. NOW, I

DON'T WANT TO SPEND A LOT OF TIME ON SLIDE NO. 26 BECAUSE

YOU'VE PREVIOUSLY TESTIrIED AS TO HOW SUBSIDENCE OCCURS

WITHIN THE GROUNDWATER ADJUDICATION AREA. DOES THIS SLIDE

ILLUSTRATE SUBSIDENCE AND HOW IT OCCURS?

A. YES, IT DOES.

Q. OKAY. SO THIS IS JUST ILLUSTRATIVE OF YOUR

TESTIMONY?

A. WELL, IT SHOWS THE COMPRESSIBLE CLAYS LIKE

THERE BEING THE LAKE BEDS IN THE CENTRAL AREA. AND IF

WATER LEVELS LOWER OVER A LONG PERIOD OF TIME, WHICH THEY

DID, SOME CLAYS WILL COMPRESS AND THEY WON'T REBOUND WHEN

YOU STOP PUMPING. AND IF YOU GET BEYOND A CERTAIN ELASTIC

LIMIT, THEY'LL JUST STAY COMPRESSED AND NO MATTER HOW MUCH

YOU STOP PUMPING, THEY'LL NEVER INCREASE IN THICKNESS AND

THE LAND SURFACE FOLLOWS IT. SO, FOR EXAMPLE, IN THE

SOUTHERN SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY THERE WAS 30 FEET OF LOWERING

LAND, IN SAN JOSE WAS 13 FEET, SO -- AND ANTELOPE VALLEY IS

AROUND SIX FEET SO THE LAND ACTUALLY WENT DOWN.

Q. NOW, DR. WILLIAMS, I DON'T WANT TO GO BACK INTO

YOUR BACKGROUND, BUT DO YOU HAVE EXPERIENCE MODELING FOR --

FOR LAND SUBSIDENCE?
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A, YES, WE DO. SINCE USGS HAS ADDED A SUBSIDENCE

MODULE. WHAT MOD FLOW MEANS, IT MEANS MODULAR FLOW

PACKAGE. AND ONE OF THE MODULES THEY HAVE IS A SUBSIDENCE

MODULE, SO THE MODEL -- THE WAY IT ;';ORKS IS THE MODEL WILL

CALCULATE THE WATER LEVEL CHANGES OVER TIME AND THEN IT

WILL CALL THE SUBSIDENCE MODULE WHICH WILL THEN CALCULATE

SUBSIDENCE BASED ON THE PARAMETERS THAT IT NEEDS.

Q. AND OTHER THAN YOUR WORK HERE IN THE ANTELOPE

VALLEY, HAVE YOU EVALliATED SUBSIDEPICE WITH A MODEL

ELSEWHERE IN CALIFORNIA?

A. YES. WE'VE DONE IT IN A NUMBER OF OTHER AREAS,

RANCHO CALIFORNIA WATER DISTRICT, AND OTHER AREAS WE'VE

MODELED THE SUBSIDENCE.

Q. ALL RIGHT, LET'S TAKE A LOOK THEN AT THE NEXT

SLIDE. YOU'VE TALKED ABOUT MODEL CALIBRATION AS IT RELATES

TO GROUNDWATER LEVELS. DOES A MODEL CALIBRATE OR NEED TO

CALIBRATE AS TO LAND SUBSIDENCE AS WELL?

A. YES, IT DOES. AND THIS -- THIS SLIDE DEPICTS A

NUMBER OF SUBSIDENCE PLOTS VERSUS TIME, SO IT SHOWS HERE

AGAIN, IF WE CAN SWITCH TO THE NEXT SLIDE, IT'S A BLOWUP

BECAUSE IT'S EASIER TO SEE. THIS ONE SHOWS AT A CERTAIN

BENCHMARK, WHICH IS IN THE JUST NORTH EASTERN AREA OF THE

BASIN WHERE THE LAKE BEDS ARE THICK AND WHERE MOST OF THE

SUBSIDENCE HAPPENED. SO BETWEEN 1915 AND 2005, THE LAND

WENT DOWN ALMOST SIX-AND-A-HALF FEET. SO WHAT WE'RE

LOOKING AT HERE, THE DOTS ARE ACTUAL BENCHMARKS. THEY'RE

SURVEYED ELEVATIONS OF THE LAND SURE'ACE AT THIS POINT. AND

THE SOLID LINE IS WHAT THE MODEL PREDICTED AS SUBSIDENCE.
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SO YOU CAN SEE IT'S A VERY GOOD FIT BETWEEN THE OBSERVED

DATA AND THE MODEL GENERATED DATA.

Q. AND THIS IS SLIDE N0. 28, CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. .AND WHERE DID YOU OBTAIN THE BENCHMARK DATA?

A. WELL, THE BENCHMARK DATA WAS PART OF THE DATA

SET WE GOT FROM THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY.

Q. LET'S GO TO SLIDE N0. 29. WE LOOKED AT THIS

SLIDE PREVIOUSL~, BUT Tr~HAT DOES IT DEPICT HERE IN SU~9M~RY

FASHION?

A. WELL, THIS IS -- SUMMARIZES THE FACT. IT'S A

MODEL CALIBRATION RESULTS, A STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF

RELATIVE ERROR THAT THERE WAS 124 WELLS USED, 5,918

MEASUREMENTS OF THOSE 124 WELLS AND A NUMBER OF OTHER

CALCULATIONS. BUT BASICALLY THE BOTTOM IS THE RELATIVE

ERROR WHICH IS 2.27 PERCENT WHICH IS GOOD CALIBRATION.

Q. OKAY. NOW LET'S LOOK AT THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE

N0. 30, PLEASE.

A. THIS IS THE SAME TYPE OF STATISTICS BUT FOR

SUBSIDENCE, SO YOU CAN SEE WE HAVE 32 BENCHMARKS WE USED.

WITHIN THOSE 32 BENCHMARKS THERE WAS 268 MEASUREMENTS AND

THEN THE RELATIVE ERROR WAS 8.76 PERCENT.

Q. OKAY. NOW, THIS SLIDE IS -- HAS A TITLE MODEL

CALIBRATION RESULTS-LAND SUBSIDENCE. THE FIRST COLUMN IS

WHAT WAS DONE BY THE USGS?

A. YES. MOD-1 WAS THE USGS MODEL AND MOD-2 IS OUR

MODEL AFTER THE PUMPING WAS REEVALUATED.

Q. AND THERE'S A SLASH BETUIEEN GEOSCIENCE AND



25366

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2E

27

28

LSCE?

A. YES. LOU SCALMANINI CONSULTING ENGINEERS LSCE

DID THE CALCULATIONS OF THE UPDATED PUMPING THAT WAS USED

IN THIS MODEL, MOD-2_

Q. NOW, LET'S MOVE NOW INTO SORT OF THE

GROUNDWATER BUDGETS- FOR THE MODEL. GROUNDWATER BUDGET IS

WHAT, DR. WILLIAMS?

A. IT'S -- IT'S SIMPLY -- IT'S -- BASICALLY,

GROUNDWATER BliDGET IS A HYDROLOGIC BALANCE. WE CALL IT THE

EQUATION OF THE EQUILIBRIUM. IT SUMMARIZES THE INFLOW,

OUTFLOW AND CHANGE IN STORAGE TERMS. SO THIS IS THE RESULT

OF A GROUNDWATER BUDGET FOR THE HISTORICAL PERIOD OF 1915

TO 2005. AND IT'S PRESENTED IN A CARTOON FASHION FOR THE

ENTIRE ANTELOPE VALLEY AND IT'S SUMMED ALL OF THE

GROUNDWATER PUMPING WAS 213,300 ACRE FEET PER YEAR ON

AVERAGE. AND THEN YOU HAVE VARIOUS OTHER OUTFLOW TERMS AND

INFLOW TERMS, BUT AT THE -- THE IMPORTANT THING TO LOOK AT

HERE IS THAT THE -- THE CHANGE IN STORAGE FOR THIS

HISTORICAL PERIOD, 1915 TO 2005, WAS A DECLINE IN STORAGE

OF 103,600 ACRE FEET A YEAR.

Q. LET'S MOVE TO THE NEXT SLIDE.

A. SO THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION WAS THE NAME OF THE

SOLUTION TO -- TO BALANCE THIS BASIN, WHICH IS CERTAINLY,

AS THE PREVIOUS SLIDE SHOWED, WAS IN PRETTY SERIOUS

OVERDRAFT FOR THIS HISTORICAL PERIOD. SO THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION INCLUDED, LOOKING AT THE NATURAL RECHARGE THIS WAS

FROM THE EXPERT SUMMARY REPORT OF 60,000, THE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD OF 82,300 AND THEN THERE WAS A SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE
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YIELD DETERMINED OF 27,700, SO A TOTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD OF

110,000. SO THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION WAS TO REDUCE THE

PUMPING TO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD, I,`•~PORT TO SUPPLEMENTAL

SUSTAINABLE YIELD OF 27,000 SO THAT THE TOTAL SUSTAINABLE

YIELD WOULD NOT BE EXCEEDING THE 110,000. SO WHAT WE DID,

WE USED THE INPUT DATA TO THE MODEL TO --

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, LET ME JUST STOP YOU FOR A

MOMENT. WILL YOU EXPLAIN LATER IN YOUR TESTIMONY THE

NATURAL RECHARGE OF 60,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR AND THE NATIVE

SAFE YIELD OF 82,300, HOW THOSE TWO COMPARE?

A. YEAH, YOU CAN GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE. IT

SHOWS -- YES, THIS -- THIS CAME OUT OF THE EXPERT SUMMARY

REPORT. PRIMARILY THERE WAS A NUMBER OF ESTIMATES WATER

BALANCE METHOD THAT DURBIN DID: CHLORIDE MASS BALANCE,

PRECIPITATION YIELD MODELING AND WILDERMUTH WATER BALANCE.

BUT ON AVERAGE, ALL OF THOSE NATURAL RECHARGE ESTIMATES

FROM THE EXPERT REPORT WAS ABOUT 60,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR.

AND SO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD OF 82,300 WAS CALCULATED BY --

IT WAS IN THE EXPERT REPORT, I THINK, IN APPENDIX F WHERE

THEY USED DIFFERENT TIME PERIODS OF MIX USE WHERE YOU HAD

BOTH AGRICULTURE RETURN FLOWS AS WE7~L AS M & I RETURN

FLOWS. BUT ON AVERAGE, THE 82,300 IS THE NATIVE

SUSTAINABLE YIELD.

Q. NOW, DID YOU ALSO GET -- I DON'T KNOW IF YOU

WANT TO CALL IT CONFIRMATION OR THE TOTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD

NUMBER, THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD NUMBER OF 82,300 AND THEN THE

SUSTAINABLE -- EXCUSE ME -- SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD NUMBER

27,700, DID YOU GET THAT FROM LEGAL COUNSEL? IN OTHER
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WORDS YOU WERE TOLD THAT THESE WERE THE NUMBERS THAT YOU

SHOULD USE AS WELL FOR THE MODEL?

A. WELL, YES, IT WAS, BUT THOSE ARE ALSO IN THE

EXPERT SUMMARY REPORTS IN PHASE THREE.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO IF I UNDERSTAND YOUR TESTIMONY

CORRECTLY, WHAT -- WHAT YOU DO IS YOU'RE GOING TO -- FOR

MODEL PHYSICAL SOLUTION, YOU'RE GOING TO CALCULATE HOW MUCH

WATER RECHARGES THE BASIN, BOTH FROM NATIVE AND

SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPLIES; IS THAT CORR~;CT?

A. CORRECT.

Q. AND THEN YOU`RE GOING TO INPUT INTO THE MODEL

THE OUTFLOW DATA WHICH WOULD PRIMARILY HERE CONSIST OF

PUMPING; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES. WE PUT IN THE EXTRACTION.

Q. OKAY. AND YOU PUT IN, IT SAYS HERE, EXISTING

PUMPING 2011, 2012?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. THAT'S FROM THE PHASE FOUR

TRIAL.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY RAMP DOWN

PUMPING TO NATIVE SAFE YIELD?

A ~. WELL, THE -- THE CURRENT PUMPING IS MUCH MORE

THAN THE YIELD THE BASIN CAN SUSTAIN, SO THERE IS -- HAS TO

BE A REDUCTION IN PUMPING. AND THIS RAMP DOWN IS A PART OF

THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION WHICH TAKES THE EXISTING PUMPING

WHICH IS APPROXIMATELY 160,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR AND RAMPS

THAT DOWN TO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD.

Q. SO YOU TOOK THE PHYSICAI~ SOLUTION DOCUMENT --

THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT HAS BEEN PRESENTED TO
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THE COURT, Y.OU TOOK THE ALLOCATIONS OF PUMPING THAT ARE

CONTAINED IN IT AND THAT'S THE RAMP DOWN TO THE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. AND WE'LL GET LATER INTO THE

RAMP DOWN AS TWO YEARS OF PRE-RAMP DOWN AND FIVE YEARS OF

RAMP DOWN AND THEN FINALLY PREDICTION OF 50 YEARS INTO THE

FUTURE AT PUMPING THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD. AND THERE'S FOUR

SCENARIOS THAT WE -- AND WE'LL GET INTO THAT -- THAT WE DID

TG LGOK AT THE VARIABILITY OF EITHER -- YOU KNOW, JUST SAY

CONTINUING THE EXISTING PUMPING BUT BRINGING IN

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER OR RAMPING DOWN WITH, YOU KNOW, MINIMAL

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER OR RAMPING DOWN THE SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE

YIELD WATER 277.

Q. ALL RIGHT. WE'LL GET INTO THAT IN A MOMENT.

LET'S MOVE NOW TO THE NEXT SLIDE, WHICH IS SLIDE 33.

THAT'S "ENTITLED NATURAL RECHARGE INDEPENDENT WATER SHED

ANALYSIS."

A. YEAH, THESE ARE -- THESE ARE SOME OF THE

EXAMPLES FROM THE -- THIS IS FROM ML:. SCALMANINI'S

TESTIMONY -- THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD -- I'M SORRY, THE

NATURAL RECHARGE. IT'S MR. SCALMANINI'S EXHIBIT 86 WHERE

THERE WAS A NUMBER OF ESTIMATES DONE IN THE EXPERT SUMMARY

REPORT WHICH CAME UP WITH ESTIMATES OF THE NATURAL RECHARGE

THAT OCCURS TO THE BASIN.

Q. OKAY.

A. AND ON AVERAGE THOSE ESTIMATES WERE AVERAGE

ABOUT 60,000. THERE WAS A NUMBER OF THEM.

Q. LET'S GO TO SLIDE 34, PT~EASE.
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A. YEAH, THERE WAS A NUMBER OF ESTIMATES BY

DIFFERENT INVESTIGATORS PARTICIPATI?IG IN THE EXPERT SUMMARY

REPORT. MR. DURBIN DID CALCULATE VARIOUS ONES: 55,000,

58,000, 56.,400, 57,000. BUT ON AVERAGE THAT EXPERT REPORT

SUMMARIZES ABOUT 60,000 ACRE FEET PER YEAR AS THE NATURAL

RECHARGE.

Q. THEN LET'S MOVE TO THE NEXT SLIDE, WHICH IS

NO. 35. IT'S ENTITLED "NATIVE SAFE YIELD."

A. YEAH, THE PIATIVE SAFE YIELD WAS ALSO CALCULATED

FOR SEVERAL DIFFERENT TIME PERIODS, BUT ESSENTIALLY IT

WAS -- IT WAS HOW MUCH YOU COULD PU^~P AND HAVE THE WATER

LEVELS BE STEADY SO THAT YOU DIDN'T EXCEED WHAT WAS COMING

IN. IN OTHER WORDS, THE EXTRACTIONS WERE EQUAL TO THE

RECHARGE SO THE BASIN WOULD BE IN BALANCE IF THE NATIVE

SAFE YIELD WAS PUMPED. AND THAT WAS -- IF YOU LOOK AT THE

NEXT SLIDE, THAT WAS CALCULATED. THIS IS MR. SCALMANINI'S

EXHIBIT 93. THERE'S -- THERE'S ACTUALLY FOUR DIFFERENT

TIME PERIODS AND THE EARLY AGRICULTURE WHICH ASSUMED THAT

THE LAND USE WAS ALL AGRICULTURE AND THEN '95 AND '99

AND -- WAS R DIFFERENT USE OF LAND BETWEEN AG AND M & I AND

THEN '96 TO '05 WAS ANOTHER EXAMPLE AND THEN 2005. SO IF

YOU GO THROUGH THE ARITHMETIC OF THESE SLIDES WITH THE

NATURAL RECHARGE OF 60,000 AND THEN YOU GET -- IF YOU'RE

PUMPING SAY 80,000, YOU'LL HAVE SOME RETURN FLOW. AND ALL

OF THESE DIFFERENT SCENARIOS SHOW Tf~AT IF YOU PUMP, FOR

EXAMPLE, ON AVERAGE 82,300, THERE WILL BE SOME RETURN FLOW

GO BACK BUT THE BASIN WILL BE IN BALANCE. AND THAT WAS THE

ESSENCE OF CALCULATING THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD, WAS A PUMPING
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AMOUNT TO 82,300 THAT WOULD NOT CAUSE THE BASIN LEVELS TO

PERMANENTLY DECLINE.

Q. JUST IF WE CAN GO BACK FOR A BRIEF MOMENT TO

SLIDE 35, THIS WAS ALSO A SCALMANINl EXHIBIT AS WELL,

CORRECT?

A. IT'S EXHIBIT 92, YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO LET'S G0, THEN, TO EXHIBIT

N0. 37.

A. YES. EnHIBIT 37, iT JdAS ALSO h SCALMAP1IrdI

EXHIBIT 94, WHICH HAS -- IS ENTITLED "SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE

YIELD." SO IT SHOWS ON THE LEFT SIDE OF THIS CARTOON

SKETCH THERE'S THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD THAT WE TALKED ABOUT.

AND THEN ON THE RIGHT SIDE IT ASSUMES THAT THERE'S SOME

SUPPLEMENTAL IMPORT OF SUPPLEMENTAL WATER. SOME OF THIS

WATER IS USED DIRECTLY AND AS A RETURN FLOW COMPONENT.

SOME OF THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WATER THAT IS RECHARGE IS PUMPED

BACK UP AND IT RETURNS. SO ON AVERAGE, IF YOU GO TO THE

NEXT SLIDE, FOR THREE DIFFERENT TIME PERIODS OF MIXED LAND

USE, MR. SCALMANINI IN HIS EXHIBIT 95 CALCULATED, ON

AVERAGE, 27,700 ACRE FEET A YEAR WOULD BE THE SUPPLEMENTAL

SAFE YIELD.

Q. SO THIS IS SLIDE NO. 38. IT'S -- IT HAS A

TITLE "SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD."

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO IN ESSENCE -- WELL, WHAT YOU DID

IS YOU TOOK THE NATIVE YIELD TO THE BASIN OF 82,300 PLUS

THE SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD AS CALCULATED BY MR. SCALMANINI

IN HIS TESTIMONY OF THE 27,000 -- I'M SORRY. MY MATH IS
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NOT THAT GOOD, BUT TOGETHER THEY TOTALLED 110,000.

A. YEAH. IF YOU GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, IT SHOWS

THAT. SO THIS IS MR. SCALMANINI'S EXHIBIT 96, JUST WHAT

YOU SAID, IF YOU ADD THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD AND THE

SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD FOR FOUR DIFFERENT TIME PERIODS AND

YOU GET, ON AVERAGE, FOR THE MIX LAND USES ABOUT 110,000

AND THAT WAS THE -- THE NUMBER FOR THE TOTAL SUSTAINABLE

YIELD THAT WE'VE USED.

Q. RIGHT. APdD IT WAS REPRESENTED TO YOU BY LEGAL

COUNSEL THAT WAS THE COURT'S TOTAL SAFE YIELD FROM THE

PHASE THREE TRIAL AS WELL, THE 110,000 ACRE FEET?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NEXT SLIDE PLEASE, NO. 40.

A. SO TO TEST THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION OR EVALUATE

WHETHER THIS WATER BALANCE -- TO TEST BASICALLY THE INFLOW,

OUTFLOW CHANGE IN STORAGE IN WATER LEVELS AS WELL AS

SUBSIDENCE, WE CREATED FOUR DIFFERENT SCENARIOS THAT WE RAN

THE MODEL. THEY ALL -- SCENARIO 1, FIRST OF ALL, THE MODEL

RAN FOR 50 YEARS INTO THE FUTURE. AND SCENARI0.1 WAS USING

THE.AVERAGE 2011, 2012 PUMPING. AND THEN WE USED SOME

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER, BUT THE SUPPLEMENTAL WATER FOR THE LAST

TWO YEARS, 2014 AND 2015, WHICH WE CONSIDERED A SEVERE

DROUGHT CONDITION.

Q. SO LET ME STOP YOU RIGHT THERE. SO SC-1 IS A

MODEL RUN TAKING THE 2011, 2012 PUMPING DATA AND MATCHING

THAT WITH THE -- WITH THE YIELD, BEING THE NATIVE YIELD,

PLUS WHAT IS GENERALLY CURRENT IN THE DROUGHT WITH HOW MUCH

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER CAME IN FOR 2014 AND 2015?
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1

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. SO THIS, IN GENERAL TERMS, IS THE CURRENT

SITUATION?

A. YES. IT'S THE EXISTING PUMPING FOR 2011 AND

2012, BUT WITH SUPPLEMENTAL WATER BROUGHT IN AS IT WAS,

WHICH WAS ACTUALLY 12-AND-A-HALF PERCENT OF THE TABLE EIGHT

FOR THE LAST TWO YEARS. SO THIS WAS KIND OF ONE END OF OUR

SCENARIOS.

Q. SO U1HAT THIS T90DEL P.UN Vv'OULD SHOW, I TPKE IT,

IS WHAT WOULD THE BASIN POTENTIALLY LOOK LIKE IN 50 YEARS

IF CURRENT CONDITIONS REMAINED THE SAME? IN OTHER WORDS,

THERE'S NO REDUCTION IN PUMPING, THE DROUGHT CONDITIONS

CONTINUE AND WHAT WOULD THE BASIN LOOK LIKE; IS THAT

CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. THEN WHAT IS THE NEXT SL-1A?

A. WELL, SCENARIO lA IS ALSO RUNNING THE MODEL FOR

50 YEARS BUT AVERAGE 2011 AND 2012 PUMPING, BUT IMPORTED --

IMPORTED WATER DELIVERIES EQUAL TO THE SUSTAINABLE SAFE

YIELD. IN OTHER WORDS THE 27,700.

Q. SO IF I UNDERSTAND YOUR TESTIMONY, SC-lA IS THE

MODEL RUN FOR 50 YEARS WITH CURRENT PUMPING, BUT AT THE

TOTAL SUSTAINABLE SAFE YIELD OF 110,000?

A. N0, IT'S THE SUPPLEMENTAL -- WE ADDED THE

SUPPLEMENTAL SUSTAINABLE. WE ASSUMED THAT WE COULD BRING

IN IMPORTED WATER -- STATE PROJECT WATER UP TO 27,700,

WHICH IS PART OF THE 110. THE 110 IS 823 PLUS THE 277, SO

THAT'S WHAT lA IS. IT'S STILL EXISTING PUMPING, BUT ASSUME
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YOU CAN STILL BRING IN 27,700 IMPORTED WATER.

Q. ALL RIGHT.

A. I'M SORRY. IT'S -- IT'S THE RECHARGE FROM

IMPORTED WATER THE 27,700.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND THEN SC-2.

A. YEAH, THE SCENARIO 2 RUNS WERE -- WERE

DIFFERENT THAN THE SCENARIO 1 RUNS IN THAT THERE WAS A RAMP

DOWN IN PUMPING FROM THE 160,000 TO THE 82,300, WHICH IS A

Rr'uiP DOWN TO THE PJATIVE SAFE YIELD. AND SCEPIARIO 2 IS A

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER UNDER DROUGHT CONDITIONS.

Q. THAT WE CURRENTLY HAVE?

A. THAT WE CURRENTLY HAVE BETWEEN 2014 AND 2015.

AND THEN SCENARIO 2A IS A RAMP DOWN TO NATIVE SAFE YIELD

PLUS IMPORTATION OF SUFFICIENT STATE PROJECT WATER TO HAVE

A SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD OF 27,700. SO WE FELT THAT THESE

SCENARIOS, SCENARIO 1 ON ONE END, WHICH IS CURRENT PUMPING,

AND SCENARIO 2A ON THE OTHER END, WIIICH IS THE RAMP DOWN,

WE FELT THIS WAS A GOOD EVALUATION OF HOW THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION WOULD WORK.

Q. OKAY. SO LET'S THEN TAKE A LOOK AT HOW IT

WORKS. LET'S GO TO SLIDE 41. AND YOU SHOW NATIVE SAFE

YIELD AND ADJUSTED NATIVE SAFE YIELD. WHAT ARE YOU TRYING

TO EXPLAIN HERE?

A. WELL, THIS SHOWS THE DIFFERENT -- ACCORDING TO

THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT, IT SHOWS

A NUMBER OF THINGS HERE. OF COURSE THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD

OF 82,300 AND THEN THERE'S DIFFERENT PRODUCTION WHICH TOTAL

THE 82,300. IF YOU LOOK AT THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS, FEDERAL
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RESERVE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND SO ON, PUBLIC WATER

SUPPLIERS, THEN YOU GET THE PUMPING WHICH IS DOWN TO CLOSE

TO 82,300 SO THIS -- THIS REPRESENTS THE RAMP DOWN AMOUNT.

Q. SO IN SORT OF A DIFFERENT WAY OF EXPLAINING IT

WOULD BE THAT YOU WERE PROVIDED A COPY OF THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTION; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THAT WAS PART OF THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS

MOTION FOR COURT APPRGVAL Or ITS SETTLEMEi1T AvREEMEi1T,

CORRECT?

A. RIGHT. YES.

Q. AND IN THAT PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION, YOU

HAVE THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD OF 82,300; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. AND THEN WITHIN THAT PROPOSED PHYSICAL

SOLUTION, THERE'S AN ALLOCATION OF WATER FOR THE SMALL

PUMPER CLASS; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. AND THAT NUMBER IS?

A. 3806.4.

Q. NOW, THERE'S REFERENCE HERE TO A FEDERAL

RESERVE RIGHT. DID YOU TAKE THAT ALSO FROM THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTION?

A. I DID.

Q. OKAY. AND THAT'S REFERENCED IN THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTION OF 7,600 ACRE FEET?

A. YES.

Q. AND THEN FINALLY FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
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DOES THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION HAVE AN ALLOCATION OF

270 ACRE FEET FOR THE STATE?

A. YES.

Q. NOW, IT SAYS SUB TOTAL 5.1.3 PLUS 5.1.4 PLUS

5.1.5. WHAT ARE YOU REFERRING TO THERE WITH THE 5.1.3 TO

THE 5.1.5?

A. WELL, THAT'S JUST A SUM OF THE SMALL PUMPER

CLASS PRODUCTION RIGHTS PLUS FEDERAL RESERVE RIGHT PLUS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA. AND IT DCES ADD UP TO 11,613.9 AND

THAT IS SUBTRACTED FROM THE 82,300 TO GET AND ADJUSTED

NATIVE SAFE YIELD.

Q. BUT DOES THE 5.1.3, 5.1.4 AND 5.1.5, REFER TO

PARAGRAPHS IN THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION? IS THAT

WHERE YOU TOOK THE DATA?

A. YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NOW THE ADJUSTED NATIVE SAFE YIELD

THAT YOU JUST DESCRIBED, IT IS TAKING THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD'

OF 82,300 AND THEN SUBTRACTING THE DEFINED AMOUNTS THAT ARE

REFERENCED ABOVE THERE FOR THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS, THE

FEDERAL RESERVE RIGHT AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA?

A. YES, IT IS. IT'S DESCRIBED UNDER 3.5.2 IN THE

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT.

Q. OKAY. AND THEN FROM THAT YOU COME UP WITH A

FIGURE OF ADJUSTED NATIVE SAFE YIELD OF 70,686.6 ACRE FEET?

A. YES.

Q. THERE'S A REFERENCE TO EXHIBIT 3 FOR PUBLIC

WATER SUPPLIERS AND A NUMBER REFERENCE THERE. WHAT DOES

THAT REFER TO?
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A. WELL, THEN THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER PRODUCTION

IS 12,345 AND THE LAND OWNER IS 58,322. SO IF YOU ADD ALL

OF THOSE UP, YOU WILL GET THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD.

Q. OKAY. SO AGAIN SO WE'RE CLEAR, DR. WILLIAMS,

ON WHAT THIS SLIDE SHOWS, EXHIBIT 3 IS AN EXHIBIT 3 TO THE

PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. AND THAT HAS AN ALLOCATION OF WATER THAT'S

FROPOSED FOR THE FUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS OF 1 -- EXCUSE

ME -- 12,345 ACRE FEET ANNUALLY?

A. RIGHT.

Q. AND THEN EXHIBIT 4 HAS SMALL FOOTNOTE 2. DO

YOU SEE THAT?

A. YES, I D0.

Q. AND WHAT DID YOU -- WHAT DOES THAT FOOTNOTE

REFER TO?

A. WELL, IT REFERS TO THE REVISED SECOND EXHIBIT 4

FOR THE SECOND AMENDED STIPULATION FOR ENTRY INTO THE

JUDGMENT. BUT ALL OF THESE ARE VARIOUS VALUES OR

SPREADSHEETS THAT SUM UP THE DIFFERENT PUMPING THAT WAS

USED IN THE MODEL.

Q. WE'RE GOING TO GET INTO THE DETAIL HERE IN A

MOMENT. LET'S MOVE FROM SLIDE 41 THAT WE CURRENTLY HAVE

BEFORE US TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 42. THIS IS ENTITLED

"PUMPING ASSUMPTIONS FOR PREDICTIVE SCENARIOS 1 AND lA."

WHAT ARE YOU ATTEMPTING TO SHOW HERE;, DR. WILLIAMS?

A. WELL, THIS IS THE VALUE OF THE EXISTING PUMPING

THAT GOES INTO THE SCENARIO 1 AND lA AND IT SHOWS --
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Q. SO -- LET ME STOP YOU. SO THIS IS PUMPING

BEFORE ANY RAMP DOWN; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. CURRENT CONDITIONS?

A. YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT.

A. I'M SORRY. IT'S 2011 AND 2012.

Q. THANK YOU.

A. SO THIS SHOWS THE VARIOUS CLASS -- SMALL PUMPER

CLASS, FEDERAL, STATE, PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS, LAND OWNERS,

CITY OF LANCASTER AND PHELAN PINION HILL SO THE TOTAL

PUMPING, IF THERE WAS NO RAMP DOWN, THE VALUE WE USE FOR

SIMULATION WAS 160,997.07.

Q. AND SO YOU HAVE A COLUMN TO THE RIGHT

INDICATING SOURCES. DO YOU SEE THAT?

A. YES.

Q. AND DO THOSE ENTRIES THERE REFLECT THE SOURCE

OF THE INFORMATION FOR YOUR PUMPING?

A. YES, THEY DO.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET'S FOCUS ON THE NEXT SLIDE,

NO. 43, WHICH IS ENTITLED "CURRENT PUMPING FROM SMALL

PUMPERS." DO YOU SEE THAT?

A. YES.

Q. WHAT DO WE HAVE HERE?

A. THIS WAS AN INFORMATION FROM GSI WATER

SOLUTIONS REPORT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET ME STOP YOU. IT'S YOUR

UNDERSTANDING THAT WAS THE COURT-APPOINTED EXPERT WITNESS?
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A. YES.

Q. REGARDING THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS?

A. YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT.

A. AND THAT REPORT CONTAINED A NUMBER OF -- IN THE

DIFFERENT COLUMNS, FOR EXAMPLE, THE GROUNDWATER USE PER

HOUSEHOLD RANGING FROM 0 UP TO 12 PLUS ACRE FEET PER YEAR.

THERE WAS CALCULATION DONE. THERE WAS ACTUALLY 117

PARTICIPATING IN THIS ESTIMATE. AND SO BASED ON THIS, THE

SECOND COLUMN AND THIRD COLUMN FOR 2011, 2012 BASICALLY IS

THAT THE CUMULATIVE PERCENTAGES OF HOW MUCH PEOPLE USED AND

SO ON. BUT AT THE END, THE RESULT OF THIS ANALYSIS WAS THE

HOW MUCH GROUNDWATER WAS USED BY THE SMALL PUMPERS WHICH

WAS 9,747.55 ON AVERAGE FOR 2011 AND 2012.

Q. AGAIN, ALL THIS INFORMATION COMES FROM THE GSI

WATER SOLUTION, INC. REPORT DATED JULY 2015?

A. THEY PROVIDED THE INFORMATION, WE ACTUALLY DID

THE -- THE CALCULATION, BUT WE USED THEIR INFORMATION ON

THE NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS AND HOW MUCH EACH HOUSEHOLD USED

AND THE NUMBER OF PEOPLE PARTICIPATING IN THIS CLASS.

Q. AND SO THIS REFLECTS, AGAIN, WHAT YOU ESTIMATE

THE CURRENT OR THE 2011 2012 PUMPING FOR MEMBERS OF THE

SMALL PUMPER CLASS?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. LET'S GO AHEAD AND LOOK AT THE NEXT

SLIDE, PLEASE.

A. OKAY. YEAH, THIS -- THIS SLIDE SHOWS THE RAMP

DOWN CONSISTS OF A PRE-RAMP DOWN PERIOD OF TWO YEARS AND
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THEN FIVE YEAR RAMPING DOWN UNTIL YOU GET TO THE NATIVE

SAFE YIELD. AND THEN --

Q. SO DR. WILLIAMS, LET ME STOP YOU. FIRST OF

ALL, THIS IS SLIDE 44. IT'S CALLED "PRE—RAMPDOWN PUMPING

ASSUMPTIONS FOR SC-2 AND SC-2A." SO THESE ARE PUMPING

ASSUMPTIONS FOR THE MODEL RUNS THAT YOU LABEL SC-2 AND

SC-2A?

A. YES. THIS IS THE SCENARIOS THAT INCLUDED THE

RAMP DOGv'N, THE REDUCTION FROP~I CURREPIT PUMPItdG TO THE NATIVE

SAFE YIELD.

Q. AND YOU TOOK THAT INFORMATION FROM THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTION; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. AND IT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT AS PART OF

THAT RAMP DOWN FOR YEARS ONE AND TWO, YOU CALL IT A

PRE—RAMP DOWN WHICH MEANS WHAT?

A. WELL, BASICALLY THESE ARE THE VALUES THAT WERE

AGREED UPON THAT WOULD BE PUMPED FOR THOSE FIRST TWO YEARS.

AND THEN BETWEEN THE YEARS -- THE NEXT FIVE YEARS THROUGH

YEAR SEVEN WOULD BE RAMPING DOWN OF THIS PUMPING TO THE

82,300 OR CLOSE TO IT.

Q. SO IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT IN THIS

SEVEN—YEAR TIME PERIOD AND PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION,

YEARS ONE AND TWO, THERE ARE NO REDUCTIONS IN PUMPING AND

THEN EQUAL REDUCTIONS IN PUMPING FOR. YEARS THREE THROUGH

SEVEN TO GET TO THE FINAL ALLOCATIONS OF THE RAMP DOWN

NUMBERS; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.
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Q. ALL RIGHT. AND AGAIN, JUST FOR -- TO MOVE THIS

ALONG, THE SOURCES FOR THE MODEL YEARS ONE AND TWO

PRE-RAMPDOWN ARE INDICATED HERE ON SLIDE 44?

A. THEY ARE, YES.

Q. SO AGAIN, FOR THE SMALL PUMPER CLASS, THE

INFORMATION CAME FROM THE COURT-APPOINTED EXPERT; IS THAT

CORRECT?

A. THE GSI WATER SOLUTIONS.

Q. FOR THE FEDEF~AL RESERVE RIGHT THAT COMES FROM

THE -- THEIR AVERAGE OF 2011 AND 2012 PUMPING?

A. YEAH, BASED ON THE PHASE FOUR AMENDED STATEMENT

OF PARTIAL DECISION.

Q. FROM THE COURT?

A. YES.

Q. STATE OF CALIFORNIA IS AN AVERAGE OF 2011 AND

2012 PUMPING?

A. YEAH, THAT WAS AN E-MAIL FROM NOAH

GOLDEN-KRASNER ON THE 29TH OF JUNE WHERE HE EXPLAINED THE

WELLS AND HOW MUCH THEY'RE PUMPING, SO WE JUST DID THE

CALCULATION TO GET THE 27946.

Q. I TAKE IT WHEN YOU RECEIVED THAT INFORMATION

FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THROUGlI ITS LEGAL COUNSEL, YOU

CONSIDERED THAT SUFFICIENTLY RELIABLE FOR YOUR ANALYSIS?

A. YES, I DO.

Q. ALL RIGHT. PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS IS LISTED AS

40,450.02?

A. YES.

Q. AND THAT'S TAKEN FROM WHERE?
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A. WELL, IT'S TAKEN FROM THE STATEMENT OF THE

PARTIAL DECISION AND HISTORICAL PUMPING RECORDS BY WEST

VALLEY COUNTY WATER DISTRICT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND THEN ON THE LAND OWNERS,

THERE'S A REFERENCE THERE OF 105,892.63 ACRE FEET?

A. YES.

Q. AND WHERE IS THAT INFORMATION FROM?

A. WELL, IT'S A COMBINATION OF THINGS. IT'S FROM

THE PHASE FOUR DECISION AP1D THEN IT MR. KUNEY HAD A

SPREADSHEET THAT HE CIRCULATED, LOOKED AT THAT, THEN HE HAD

SOME EXPLANATIONS SO WE -- AND WITH RECOMMENDATIONS OF

WHICH NUMBERS WOULD BE BEST TO USE, AND WE LOOKED AT THE

PHASE FOUR NUMBERS AS WELL AS THE MR. KUNEY'S SPREADSHEET

AND HIS EXPLANATIONS TO COME UP WITf~I THAT.

Q. OKAY. AND IT'S BEEN EXPLAINED TO YOU THAT THE

INFORMATION FROM MR. KUNEY WHO ACTS AS A LIAISON COUNSEL ti

FOR LAND OWNER PARTIES WAS PROVIDED TO YOU AS MORE UPDATED

OR CURRENT INFORMATION ON PUMPING?

A. YES.

Q. ONE MOMENT, PLEASE. AND I APOLOGIZE,

DR. WILLIAMS, I THINK I CONFUSED YOU. IF YOU LOOK AT, FOR

EXAMPLE, SLIDE 42, THERE'S A NUMBER THERE FOR LAND OWNERS

AS 113,872.82 WITH A REFERENCE THERF~, MATERIALS PROVIDED BY

MR. KUNEY. I BELIEVE THAT'S MATERIAL. THAT'S THE NUMBER

THAT REFLECTS THE INFORMATION RECEIVED FROM MR. KUNEY; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A. YES, THAT'S -- YES, THERE WAS THE -- THE

ORIGINAL PHASE FOUR NUMBERS AND THEN MR. KUNEY PREPARED A
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SPREADSHEET AND THEN COMMENTS TO THAT SPREADSHEET THAT WE

LOOKED AT HIS -- TOOK HIS COMMENTS AND MADE THE ADJUSTMENT.

Q. OKAY. AND THE -- GOING BACK TO SLIDE 44, THIS

IS WHERE I MADE THE MISTAKE. THE LAND OWNER NUMBER THAT'S

REFERENCED THERE RE-RAMP DOWN OF 105,892.63 ACRE FEET, THAT

COMES FROM THE --

A. SECOND REVISION, EXHIBIT 4.

Q. AND DOES NOT INCLUDE THE ADJUSTMENTS THAT WERE

PROVIDED TO YOU FROr1 N1R. YLPIEY; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. N0, THEY DO NOT.

Q. OKAY. SO FOR THE CITY OF LANCASTER, YOU HAVE

AN AMOUNT THERE?

A. YEAH, THOSE WERE IN THE PHASE FOUR -- PHASE

FOUR ORDER TABLE IN THERE, 2011, 2012. WE JUST TOOK THE

AVERAGE FOR 2011, 2012 FROM THAT ORDER.

Q. YEAH, NOW DR. WILLIAMS, I'M GOING TO CALL YOUR

ATTENTION TO WHAT YOU HAVE THOUGH HERE ON THE SCREEN. IT

SAYS ON THE SOURCE, IT'S BASED ON SECTION 5.17 OF THE

JUDGMENT PHYSICAL SOLUTION. IS THAT WHERE THE 500 ACRE

FEET COMES FROM?

A. I'M SORRY. WHICH ARE YOU --

Q. CITY OF LANCASTER ON SLIDE 44.

A. I'M LOOKING AT THE WRONG SLIDE. YES, THAT'S

CORRECT.

Q. AND THEN FINALLY FOR PHELAN PINON HILLS

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, THERE'S A NUMBER 1,200 ACRE

FEET SHOWN?

A. YES.
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Q. WHERE DID THAT COME FROM?

A. THAT WAS ALSO SECTION 6.4.1.2 OF THE JUDGMENT

IN PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. OKAY. NOW DR. WILLIAMS, WE HAVE AS THE NEXT

SLIDE IN ORDER, SLIDE NO. 45, IT HAS THE TITLE, "RAMP DOWN

PUMPING ASSUMPTIONS FOR SC-2 AND SC-2A." IS GENERALLY

WHAT'S SHOWN HERE IS THE NUMBER TO 4~HAT THE PHYSICAL --

PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION WOULD HAVE AS THE RAMP DOWN

NUMBER?

A. YES, THAT'S CORRECT. THIS WOULD BE THE NUMBER

AFTER THE TWO YEAR PRE-RAMP DOWN AND THE FIVE-YEAR RAMP

DOWN. THIS WOULD BE THE NUMBER THAT WE WOULD THEN SIMULATE

INTO THE FUTURE.

Q. SO ALL OF THESE FIGURES COME FROM THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTION DOCUMENT; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THEY DO, YES.

Q. AND THEN MOVING TO THE NEXT SLIDE, N0. 46,

PLEASE. THIS IS TITLED "PUMPING ASSUMPTIONS FOR PREDICTIVE

SCENARIOS 2 AND 2A. WHAT DOES THIS SHOW?

A. WELL, THE FIRST COLUMN, THE MODEL YEARS 1 AND 2

THE PRE-RAMP DOWN WE DISCUSSED ON THE PREVIOUS SLIDES. AND

THEN THAT VALUE FOR EACH ONE OF THE PUMPERS WOULD BE

LINEARLY RAMPED DOWN IN MODEL YEARS THREE, FOUR, FIVE, SIX

AND SEVEN. SO WE HAVE ONE, TWO, THREE, FOUR -- THE

FIVE-YEAR RAMP DOWN AND THEN SO THAT WE START PREDICTING IN

YEARS EIGHT TO 50 AT THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD VALUE.

Q. SO -- AND WHAT THIS SLIDE ILLUSTRATES IS HOW

THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION WOULD OPERATE AS TO EACH OF
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THE GENERAL PARTIES OR SPECIFIC PARTIES LISTED THERE; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. SO YOU START WITH THE CURRENT -- OR EXCUSE

ME -- THE 2011 2012 PUMPING NUMBER THAT --

A. YES.

Q. -- THAT YOU WOULD DERIVE FROM VARIOUS SOURCES

AND THEN WHAT IT SHOWS IS HOW THE M()DEL WOULD TAKE INTO

ACCCL'idT ThE RAf1P DOWN AS PROVIDED FOR THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

SO THAT BY THE END OF THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION FOR EACH OF THE

PARTIES OR GROUP OF PARTIES SHOWN THERE, THE ALLOCATED

NUMBER WOULD BE IN PLACE?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. OKAY. AND THEN LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, 47,

PLEASE.

A. YES, SLIDE 47 IS A GRAPHIC OF -- SHOWING THE

PRE—RAMP DOWN PRODUCTION THEN THE L':NEAR RAMP DOWN TO

NATIVE SAFE YIELD, AND THEN STARTING IN YEAR EIGHT THE

NATIVE SAFE YIELD PRODUCTION UP TO YEAR 50. SO THIS IS

WHAT WAS SIMULATED BY THE MODEL FOR THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. AND THIS IS SLIDE N0. 47. IT'S CALLED "PUMPING

ASSUMPTIONS FOR PREDICTIVE SCENARIOS 2 AND 2A." SO MOVING

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT, WE SEE WHAT?

A. WELL, YOU- SEE A PUMPING IN THOUSANDS OF ACRE

FEET PER YEAR ON THE LEFT AXIS, THE Y AXIS. SO YOU SEE

STARTING PRE—RAMP DOWN IS AROUND 160,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR

AND THEN THAT GOES ON FOR ABOUT TWO YEARS. AND THEN

THERE'S A FIVE YEAR RAMP DOWN THROUGH THE END OF THE FIFTH
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YOU'RE AT THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD WHICH IS SHOWN BY THE

LIGHTER SHADE. AND THEN THAT IS -- THAT NATIVE SAFE YIELD

PRODUCTION THEN CONTINUED UNTIL THE END OF YEAR 50.

Q. SO THIS -- DOES THIS ILLUSTRATE WHAT THE MODEL

DOES IN -- IN ITS ANALYSIS OF THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION? IN

OTHER WORDS, RAMPING DAWN TO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD?

A. YEAH, THE MODEL TAKES -- EXACTLY RIGHT. THE

MODEL HAS WHAT'S CALLED YEARLY STRESS PERIODS OR YEARLY

TIP~IE STEP. SO EVERY YEAR IT WILL DO A HYDP.OLOGIC BALAAICE

CALCULATION ON EVERY CELL IN THE MODEL AND FOR EVERY LAYER

IN THE MODEL. AND IT JUST -- THE MODEL'S VERY SIMPLE. IT

JUST CALCULATES THE INFLOW, OUTFLOW AND CHANGE IN STORAGE.

BUT IT DOES IT FOR SO MANY CELLS AND THEN OVER A LONG TIME

PERIOD, SO IT DOES DO A HYDROLOGIC ~3ALANCE. AND THIS IS

THE -- SHOWS THE TIME PERIOD AND THL PUMPING STRESSES THAT

WE WOULD USE IN THAT.

Q. OKAY. NOW FOR NO. 48, LET'S TAKE A LOOK AT

THAT, PLEASE, SLIDE NO. 48. AND IT HAS A TITLE, "AVAA LAND

OWNERS' WELLS." WHAT ARE YOU SHOWING HERE, DR. WILLIAMS?

A. THIS -- THE BLACK DOTS ARE THE LOCATION OF LAND

OWNER WELLS.

Q. OKAY. SO LET ME MAKE SURE WE UNDERSTAND WHAT

YOU'RE SAYING HERE. WHAT YOU DID, E'OR PURPOSES OF YOUR.

ANALYSIS, YOU TOOK THE MODEL AND INSTEAD OF TREATING THE

BASIN AS A BATHTUB, YOU ACTUALLY DID A DISTRIBUTED

PARAMETER RUN TO SHOW WHERE ACTUAL PUMPING TAKES PLACE IN

THE ADJUDICATION AREA; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. YEAH. FOR EACH ONE OF THESE WELLS, THERE WAS



25387

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

VALUES THAT WE USED AND WE -- WE PUT IN THE VALUES FOR THE

MODEL.

Q. SO YOU TOOK THE INFORMATION THAT YOU RECEIVED

REGARDING LAND OWNER WELLS, TOOK BOTH THEIR LOCATION; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S RIGHT.

Q. YOU TOOK THE AMOUNT OF WATER THEY PUMPED; IS

THAT CORRECT?

A _ YES.

Q. AND YOU INPUT THAT INTO YOUR MODEL?

A. YES.

Q. LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 49.

A. THIS SHOWS, IN A GRAPHIC FORM, HOW MUCH

RELATIVELY THE LAND OWNER'S PUMPINGS WERE. THE LARGEST

CIRCLE IS 1,500 TO 1,905 ACRE FEET PER YEAR AND THE SMALL

YELLOW CIRCLES ARE 0 TO 500. SO THIS ILLUSTRATES AREAS

WHERE THERE'S MORE PUMPING AND LESS PUMPING DISTRIBUTED

AMONG THE LAND OWNER WELLS.

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, IS THIS T~!E AMOUNT OF PUMPING

SHOWN HERE AFTER THE RAMP DOWN OR BEFORE? I CAN'T TELL.

A. NO, THIS IS AFTER THE RAMP DOWN.

Q. ALL RIGHT. THANK YOU. LET'S GO TO SLIDE

N0. 50.

A. SLIDE 50 IS -- SHOWS WHERE THE RETURN FLOWS

WENT INTO THE MODEL CELLS FOR THE LAND OWNERS.

Q. OKAY. SO THAT WE'RE CLEAR ON THE RECORD, WHEN

YOU'RE USING THE TERM RETURN FLOWS, YOU'RE NOT REFERRING TO

STATE WATER PROJECT RETURN FLOWS; I THAT CORRECT?
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A. THAT'S CORRECT THIS IS WHEN WATER'S PUMPED OUT

OF THE GROUND, IF IT'S USED ON AGRIi.ULTURAL LAND, 25

PERCENT GOES BACK DOWN. AND IF IT'S MUNICIPAL AND

INDUSTRIAL USE, 28.1 PERCENT. SO THIS JUST SHOWS THE

LOCATIONS WHETHER WE USED IN THE MODEL TO SIMULATE RETURN

FLOWS.

Q. AND THIS WOULD BE RETURN FLOWS FROM NATIVE

YIELD PUMPING, CORRECT?

A. 4'ES .

Q. AND THIS -- THIS SLIDE, IN CASE I DIDN'T MARK

OR IDENTIFY IT ALREADY, IS AVAA LAND OWNERS RETURN FLOW

LOCATIONS SLIDE N0. 50. LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE. NOW,

IN ADDITION TO INPUTTING INTO THE MODEL THE LOCATION AND

AMOUNTS OF LAND OWNER PUMPING, DID YOU DO THE SAME FOR

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER GROUNDWATER PUMPING?

A. YES, WE DID.

Q. AND THIS SLIDE, SLIDE NU. 51, IS ENTITLED "AVAA

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIER WELLS"?

A. YEAH, THE BLACK DOTS SHOW WHERE THE PUMPING

WATER SUPPLIERS ARE THE -- THE LEGEND -- THE COLOR LEGEND

ON THE LEFT SHOWS WHERE THE AREAS -- DISTRIBUTION AREAS USE

OF THE TnTATER OR THE VARIOUS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS.

Q. LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 52, PLEASE.

A. THIS SHOWS THE PRODUCTION RIGHTS. AND AGAIN,

IT SHOWS RELATIVE PRODUCTION AS CIRCLES -- COLORED CIRCLES.

THE SMALLEST BEING 0 TO 500 ACRE FEET, THE LARGEST BEING

1500 TO 1905 ACRE FEET.

Q. NOW, THE SLIDE N0. 52 IS ENTITLED "AVAA PUBLIC
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WATER SUPPLIERS PRODUCTION RIGHTS," THEN IT GOES ON FROM.

THERE. THERE'S SOME NUMBERS USED THERE IN THE TITLE,

DR. WILLIAMS. THERE'S A REFERENCE TO THE 12,345 ACRE FEET

ANNUALLY AND THEN IT SAYS PLUS 6,'251.66 ACRE FEET A YEAR

FEDERAL UNUSED WATER RIGHTS'.

A. YES.

Q. CAN YOU EXPLAIN THAT, PLEASE?

A. YEAH, THE -- THE FEDERAL WATER RIGHTS WAS 7,600

BUT THAT -- ALL OF THAT ISPd'T USED AND THIS SHOWS THE

UNUSED PORTION OF THAT.

Q. SO IT WAS EXPLAINED TO YOU THAT UNDER THE

PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION, TO THE EXTENT THAT THE FEDERAL

GOVERNMENT'S ALLOCATION IS NOT BEING USED, IT WOULD BE

AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS TO PROVIDE FOR PUBLIC

WATER SUPPLY; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE, 53. NOW THIS SLIDE IS

LABELED, "AVAA PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS RETURN FLOW

LOCATION." AGAIN, DR. WILLIAMS, ARE YOU TALKING ABOUT

RETURN FLOWS FROM STATE WATER PROJECT WATER USE?

A. NO, THIS IS -- THIS IS RETURN FLOWS FROM

PUMPING.

Q. OKAY. AND THIS SLIDE DEPICTS THE LOCATION OR

DEPICTS THE SERVICE AREAS FOR THE VARIOUS PUBLIC WATER

SUPPLIERS IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AREA OF ADJUDICATION?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. OKAY. AND I TAKE IT WHAT YOU DID, FOR PURPOSES

OF THE MODEL ANALYSIS, IS THAT WHEN A PARTICULAR PUBLIC
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WATER SUPPLIER HAS AN ALLOCATION OF GROUNDWATER PUMPING OF

THE NATIVE YIELD AND USES THAT AMOUNT, IT'S DISTRIBUTED

EVENLY OVER THAT PARTICULAR SERVICE AREA?

A. THAT WAS OUR ASSUMPTION, YES.

Q. NEXT SLIDE PLEASE, SLIDE 54. THIS ONE IS

ENTITLED "AVAA FEDERAL WELLS." IT'S SLIDE 54. WHAT IS

SHOWN HERE, DR. WILLIAMS?

A. WELL, IT SHOWS THE LOCATION OF THE WELLS THAT

THE FEDERAL GCVEFNMENT IS USING, AIF: FORCE PLANT 42. YOU

SEE FOUR WELLS IN THE LOWER CENTRAL AREA AND THEN SOME

WELLS UP IN THE EDWARDS AIR FORCE BASE.

Q. AND I TAKE IT THE BROWN SOLID LINE IN THE UPPER

RIGHT-HAND PORTION OF THIS EXHIBIT REFLECTS THE BOUNDARIES

OF EDWARDS AIR FORCE BASE; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THEN YOU MADE EARLIER REFERENCE TO AIR

FORCE PLANT 42, THAT'S SHOWN MORE IN THE CENTER, MAYBE A

LITTLE BIT TO THE BOTTOM RIGHT OF THE CENTER?

A. YES, IT'S LOWER CENTRAL AREA.

Q. AND THIS IS INFORMATION THAT WAS PROVIDED TO

YOU BY THE UNITED STATES?

A. YES.

Q. OKAY. AND YOU CONSIDERED THAT TO BE

SUFFICIENTLY RELIABLE FOR YOUR USE?

A. I DO.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO LET'S TAKE A LOOK NOW AT SLIDE

55.

THE COURT: WHY DON'T WE DO THAT AFTER LUNCH.
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JCCP4408

ANTELOPE VALLEY GROUNDWATER

CASES PHASE SIX

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2015

HON. JACK KOMAR, JUDGE

AS HERETOFORE MENTIONED

AUDREY L. MOLINAR, CSR #12462

1:29 P.M.

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

ROOM NO. 222

APPEARANCES:

REPORTER:

TIME:

(THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS

WERE HELD IN OPEN COURT.)

THE COURT: GOOD AFTERNOON. THE WITNESS IS ON THE

STAND, STILL UNDER OATH.

MR. DUNN: YOUR HONOR, JUST ONE HOUSEKEEPING MATTER.

MY FORMER COLLEAGUE AND FRIEND, MR. QUASS IS HERE

REPRESENTING ONE OF THE LAND OWNER PARTIES. AND INSTEAD OF

KEEPING HIM WAITING THIS AFTERNOON, HE'D LIKE TO PRESENT A

DECLARATION OR EXHIBIT, IF THE COURT WOULD PERMIT.

THE COURT: DECLARATION AND EXHIBITS.

MR. LUCAS: YES. I REPRESENT' -- THANK YOU. MY NAME

IS LUCAS QUASS; I REPRESENT CLAN KEITH REAL ESTATES AND ITS

MOBILE HOME PARK, 211 UNITS. AND I HAVE DECLARATIONS THAT

I'D LIKE TO ADMIT AT EVIDENCE. THE FIRST DECLARATION WILL

BE 1-LL-1. IT IS A DECLARATION FROM CHARLES KEITH, THE

OWNER OF THE PROPERTY WITH SUPPORTING BUSINESS RECORDS

APPROVING OWNERSHIP AND GOOD BUSINESS STATUS. THE SECOND

EXHIBIT IS 1-LL-2, DECLARATION OF JERRY DELUCA. HE'S A
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WELL SYSTEMS OPERATOR AND IT INCLUDES WELL RECORDS AND

REPORTS AND OTHER USE OF REASONABLE USE OF GROUNDWATER.

THE COURT: VERY WELL. MARK IT AND BE ADMITTED.

OBVIOUSLY IF THERE'S ANY OBJECTION, YOU'LL HAVE TO PROVIDE

THE PARTY FOR EXAMINATION.

(MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AND ADMITTED

INTO EVIDENCE, CLAN KEITH REAL ESTATE'S

EhHIBIT NOS. 1-LL-1 AND 1-LL-G~ DECLARATIOPIS.)

MR. LUCAS: OKAY.

MR. KALFAYAN: SAME OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR; HEARSAY

AND RESERVE THE RIGHT TO CROSS-EXAMINE.

THE COURT: WELL, IT'S A BUSINESS RECORDS EXCEPTION,

ISN'T IT?

MR. LUCAS: THAT'S WHAT I THOUGHT IT WAS.

MR. KALFAYAN: DECLARATION.

MR. LUCAS: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

MR. DUNN: ONE MORE WITNESS SCHEDULING HOUSEKEEPING

MATTER. WE HAVE MR. BEEBY HERE. HE'S PRESENT IN COURT.

WHERE ARE YOU MR. BEEBY? HE RESIDES IN SANTA BARBARA.

HE'S DRIVEN DOWN HERE TODAY TO BE PART OF THIS TO

POTENTIALLY TESTIFY. MR. BEEBY HAD HIP REPLACEMENT SURGERY

THIS MONTH. HIS MOBILITY IS SOMEWHAT IMPERATIVE INCLUDING

HIS ABILITY TO DRIVE. WE -- AND THIS IS PROBABLY MY

FAULT -- DID NOT HAVE HIM PREPARE TQ SPEND THE NIGHT HERE

IN LOS ANGELES. HE SAYS HE WILL DRIVE HOME TONIGHT IF HE

NEEDS TO AND THEN RETURN. IN SORT OF LOOKING WHERE WE'RE
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GOING THIS AFTERNOON, MY SENSE IS WE'LL CONTINUE WITH

DR. WILLIAMS. THERE MAY BE OTHER LAND OWNER ADMISSION OF

EVIDENCE. WHAT I'D LIKE TO AVOID IS KEEPING MR. BEEBY HERE

THE AFTERNOON, NOT HAVING HIM FINISH HIS TESTIMONY ONLY TO

FIGHT THE TRAFFIC BACK TO SANTA BARBARA AND THEN GET UP

VERY EARLY TOMORROW MORNING AND COME BACK. I WOULD LIKE

T0, IF IT WOULD PLEASE THE COURT, CONTINUE WITH

DR. WILLIAMS. THERE WILL BE, I'M SURE, SOME

CROSS-EXAMINATION GF HIPS BY BOTI-I PHELAN AND POTENTIALLY BY

THE WILLIS CLASS POSSIBLY. AND THEN I AM INFORMED BY -- I

DON'T WANT TO SPEAK FOR ANY LAND OWNERS, BUT I'M INFORMED

SOME OF THEM OR ALL OF THEM MAY WANT TO DO SOME -- BRING

INTO COURT THEIR PUMPING HISTORY. AND I ANTICIPATE THAT

THAT MAY TAKE UP POTENTIALLY THE WHOLE AFTERNOON, MAYBE NOT

THE ENTIRE AFTERNOON. BUT I WOULD TIKE TO EITHER LET MR.

BEEBY GO, IF IT WOULD -- IT'S OKAY WITH THE COURT NOW SO HE

GO HOME TO SANTA BARBARA, BE BACK HERE AT 9:00 A.M. OR

POTENTIALLY FINISH THE DIRECT EXAMINATION OF DR. WILLIAMS

AND THEN PUT MR. BEEBY ON THE STAND.

THE COURT: WANT TO INTERRUPT AND TAKE MR. BEEBY?

MR. DUNN: I WOULD LIKE TO DO THAT, IF IT WOULD BE

ACCEPTABLE TO THE COURT.

THE COURT: WHATEVER IS FOR i'HE CONVENIENCE OF THE

WITNESSES AND THE PARTIES, I'M CERTAINLY AMENABLE TO DOING.

THAT SOUNDS REASONABLE TO ME. BUT BEFORE I ANSWER THE

QUESTION COMPLETELY, LET ME ASK: WHAT'S HAPPENING WITH

DEPARTMENT 3? WE'LL FIND OUT WHETHER WE'RE GOING TO HAVE A

COURTROOM. IT WILL OBVIOUSLY BE OTHER THAN THIS ONE
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TOMORROW MORNING, AS I'VE INDICATED, SO LET'S WAIT FOR A

FEW MOMENTS AND SEE HOW THINGS ARE AND WE WILL -- MY

INCLINATION IS TO GO AHEAD AND INTERRUPT THIS WITNESS AND

LET MR. BEEBY TESTIFY. I DON'T KNOW HOW LONG HIS TESTIMONY

IS GOING TO BE, BUT YOU'LL HAVE TO CONTEND WITH COMPLETING

YOUR DIRECT AND PERMITTING CROSS—EXAMINATION IF THERE IS

ANY.

MR. DUNN: YES. WE ANTICIPATE IT WILL BE MUCH

SHORTER THAN THE TVdO PREVIOUS WITNESSES. MR. T~'EEKS :SILL BE

DOING THE DIRECT EXAMINATION OF MR. BEEBY.

THE COURT: OKAY. I'M SURE MR. WEEKS WILL BE BRIEF.

MR. WEEKS: YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. SO PROCEED WITH THIS

WITNESS.

MR. ZIMMER: JUST ONE ISSUE, YOUR HONOR. WE HAVE

NO -- AS FAR AS I KNOW, THE LAND OWNERS DON'T HAVE ANY

OBJECTION TO THIS.

THE COURT: JUST ONE SECOND. WERE YOU THROUGH?

MR. DUNN: YES, YOUR HONOR. THANK YOU.

THE COURT: I DIDN'T HEAR YOU SAY THAT.

MR. ZIMMER: HE WASN'T THROUGH WITH HIS DIRECT --

MR. DUNN: NOT OF DR. WILLIAMS, N0.

THE COURT: SO YOU WANT TO PUT MR. BEEBY ON NOW?

MR. DUNN: IF IT WOULD BE FINE, SURE.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. SURE. DR. WILLIAMS, SORRY

TO DO THIS TO YOU, BUT DUE TO THE EXTENT OF THE

CIRCUMSTANCES DICTATED --

DR. WILLIAMS: NO PROBLEM.
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THE COURT: SO NOW --

MR. ZIMMER: WHAT I WANT TO RAISE, YOUR HONOR, IS

THERE HAVE BEEN MANY REFERENCES TO THE LAND OWNER PUMPING.

AND BECAUSE MR. BEEBY IS NOW TAKING THE STAND, I WANTED TO

MAKE CLEAR THAT THE LAND OWNER PUMPING WAS PROVIDED TO THE

COURT, POSTED ONLINE, PROVIDED TO ALL PARTIES. IT WAS

REFERENCED BY MR. DUNN IN THE DIRECT EXAMINATION OF

DR. WILLIAMS. ALL THAT INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE ONLINE AND

THEP~ IT L•JAS FLACED ON A THUMB DRI`JE BY MR. Y.UCIEY AND THAT

WAS WHAT DR. WILLIAMS HAD. SO ALL THIS LAND OWNER PUMPING

AS REQUESTED BY THE COURT WHICH DEALT WITH 2011, 2012 AND

2000 TO 2004 IS CURRENTLY BEFORE THE COURT.

AND I DO APOLOGIZE, BY THE WAY. I WANTED TO

APOLOGIZE FOR WALKING IN LATE AT THE FIRST RECESS AND TO

APOLOGIZE FOR ALL THE LAWYERS. IT WAS CERTAINLY MEANT WITH

NO DISRESPECT TO YOUR HONOR. AS TH1 COURT CAN IMAGINE,

WE'RE OUT IN THE HALLWAY TRYING TO FIGURE OUT HOW TO

EXPEDITE THIS PROCESS ALONG. WHAT WE'RE DOING AS LAND

OWNERS, BOTH PUBLIC AND PRIVATE, IS TO OFFER ALL THAT

INFORMATION THAT WAS NOT ONLY POSTED ONLINE BUT PROVIDED TO

THE COURT AT THE COURT'S REQUEST FOR 2011, 2012, 2000 TO

2004. THE LAND OWNERS ARE OFFERING ALL THAT, BOTH PUBLIC

AND PRIVATE, INTO EVIDENCE. IT STANDS ON ITS OWN AS

ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE AND IT WILL BE REFERRED TO BY MR. BEEBY

IN HIS TESTIMONY AND POTENTIALLY BY MR. WAGNER IN HIS

TESTIMONY AS WELL.

THE COURT: SO IT'S OFFERED FOR TWO PURPOSES?

MR. ZIMMER: CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.
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THE COURT: ONE TO SUPPORT THE BASIS FOR THE OPINION

OF THE WITNESS AND INDEPENDENTLY?

MR. ZIMMER: YES, YOUR HONOR. AND FOR TIME

PURPOSES, THE SIMPLEST WAY TO DO IT.

THE COURT: I INDICATED THE EFFECT OF ANY PARTY WHO

WISHES TO CROSS-EXAMINE HAS THE ABILITY TO DO THAT, IF THEY

HAVE GOOD CAUSE.

MR. ZIMMER: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

MS. BREPINAPJ: I NEED TO STATE AN OBJECTION ON THE

RECORD, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: THERE'S NOTHING FOR YOU TO SAY. THERE'S

NOTHING BEFORE THE COURT. WE JUST HAD A LAWYER EXPLAINING

SCHEDULING ISSUES AND APOLOGIZING FOR BEING LATE. WE SEEM

TO GET IN THE HABIT OF EVERY TIME SOMEBODY SAYS SOMETHING,

SOMEBODY HAS TO SAY SOMETHING ELSE AND THAT'S NOT IN

ACCORDANCE OF ANY RULES OR PROCEDURES THAT I'M FAMILIAR

WITH. IF THERE'S A MOTION AND THE COURT IS PREPARED TO

MAKE A RULING ON SOMETHING, THEN THAT IS THE APPROPRIATE

TIME TO OPPOSE IT. BUT JUST BECAUSE SOMEBODY SAYS

SOMETHING, DOESN'T MEAN THAT EVERYBODY ELSE WHO DOESN'T

AGREE WITH THAT HAS TO SAY SOMETHING ELSE. SO I WANT TO

PROCEED WITH THE WITNESS. I'M GOING TO DO IT RIGHT NOW.

MS. BRENNAN: YOUR HONOR, MAY I PLEASE STATE

SOMETHING ON THE RECORD?

THE COURT: N0. CALL THE WITNESS.

MR. WEEKS: GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR. BRAD WEEKS

FOR QUARTZ HILL WATER. I CALL ROBERT BEEBY.
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ROBERT BEEBY,

CALLED AS A WITNESS, WAS SWORN AND TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: LET THE CLERK SWEAR YOU BEFORE YOU SIT

DOWN.

THE CLERK: DO YOU SOLEMNLY STATE THAT THE TESTIMONY

YOU MAY GIVE IN THE CAUSE NOW PENDING BEFORE THIS COURT

SHALL BE THE TRUTH, THE WHOLE TRUTH, AND NOTHING BUT THE

TRUTH, SO HELP YOU GOD?

THE WITNESS: YES, I DO.

THE CLERK: PLEASE BE SEATED. SIR, WOULD YOU PLEASE

STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD?

THE WITNESS: ROBERT BEEBY, B-E-E-B-Y.

MR. WEEKS: YOUR HONOR, I'M GOING TO BE DISCUSSING.

EXHIBITS 521 -- PWS 521 THROUGH 541. ALL OF THESE EXHIBITS

HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY POSTED AND FILED.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WEEKS:

Q. MR. BEEBY, I'M SHOWING YOU ON THE SCREEN HERE

EXHIBIT 521. WHAT IS THIS EXHIBIT?

A. THIS IS AN EXHIBIT OF MY CURRICULUM VITAE OR

RESUME.

Q. AND HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN IN THE BUSINESS OF

REVIEWING CROP WATER DUTIES?

A. PROBABLY SINCE AT LEAST 1980, ALTHOUGH I'VE

BEEN IN AGRICULTURAL ENGINEERING PRIOR TO THAT.

Q. WOULD YOU PLEASE POINT OUT ONE PIECE OF RECENT
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EXPERIENCE YOU HAD REGARDING OFFERING OPINIONS REGARDING

CROP WATER DUTIES?

A. THAT WOULD PROBABLY BE MY INVOLVEMENT IN THE

MOJAVE ADJUDICATION -- MOJAVE WATER ADJUDICATION.

Q. YOU TESTIFIED IN PHASE THREE OF THIS MATTER,

DIDN'T YOU?

A. I DID, YES.

Q. AND THE CROP -- AND THE COURT'S QUALIFIED YOU

AS AP1 EXFERT IP1 PHASE THREE?

A. YES.

MR. WEEKS: YOUR HONOR, SINCE THIS COURT HAS

PREVIOUSLY QUALIFIED MR. BEEBY TO BE AN EXPERT, I'D LIKE

HIM TO BE QUALIFIED FOR THIS PURPOSE AS WELL.

THE COURT: ANY PARTY WISH TO VOIR DIRE THE WITNESS?

HEARING NONE, THE WITNESS IS QUALIF'.:ED AND CONTINUES TO BE

QUALIFIED AND MAY TESTIFY.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: MR. BEEBY, IS IT -- AS A GENERAL

MATTER, FARMERS -- THEY WILL WATER THEIR CROPS IN AN EFFORT

TO MAXIMATE THEIR ECONOMIC RETURNS?

A. THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, YES.

Q. WHY IS THAT?

A. BECAUSE OBVIOUSLY THEY DON'T WANT TO BE IN A

BUSINESS THAT WOULD NOT BE PROFITABLE. SO CONSEQUENTLY,

THEY HAVE TO TAKE CARE OF ALL THE V~,RIOUS PARAMETERS THAT

ARE INVOLVED IN GROWING A CROP INCLUDING IRRIGATION AND

BALANCE THEIR COST VERSUS THEIR REVENUES. AND HOPEFULLY AT

THE END OF ALL THAT, THEY COME UP WITH A NET PROFIT.

Q. AND THE AMOUNT OF WATER THAT THE FARMERS WILL
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WATER THEIR CROPS, IS THAT CALLED A WATER DUTY?

A. YES.

Q. AND WHAT IS SOME OTHER COMMON TERMINOLOGY FOR

THAT FUNCTION?

A. APPLIED WATER, APPLIED WATER DEMAND ARE ALSO

CALLED WATER DUTIES.

Q. AND APPLIED WATER DEMAND, APPLIED WATER DUTIES,

THOSE ARE ALL AREAS THAT ARE WITHIN YOUR EXPERTISE?

A. YES, THEY ARE.

Q. ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE FACTORS OR THE

CRITERIA NECESSARY TO CALCULATE OR TO DETERMINE THE FACT

APPLIED WATER DUTIES FOR THE ANTELOPE VALLEY?

A. YES, I THINK SO.

Q. WHAT ARE SOME OF THOSE FACTORS?

A. IN GENERAL TERMS, IT'S CLIMATOLOGICAL FACTORS:

WIND, TEMPERATURE. IT ALSO HAS TO DO WITH THE CROP GROWING

SEASON, HOW MANY MONTHS OR YEARS THE CROP'S IN THE GROUND,

HAS TO DO WITH ROOT DEPTH, SOIL CONDITIONS, YIELDS, THOSE

KIND OF THINGS.

Q. HAVE YOU CONSIDERED THOSE FACTORS AND PROBABLY

A FEW OTHERS REGARDING THE NECESSAR`i CROP WATER DUTIES OF

ANTELOPE VALLEY?

A. YES.

Q. AND ARE YOU -- HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE ALLOCATED

SHARES IN THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE SETTLING

PARTIES?

A. IF YOU'RE REFERRING TO THE SETTLEMENT, EXHIBIT

4, YES, I'VE REVIEWED THOSE FIGURES.
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Q. ARE YOU PREPARED TODAY TO EXPRESS AN OPINION

REGARDING WHETHER THOSE -- WHETHER THOSE ALLOCATED AMOUNTS

MAKE SENSE TO YOU?

A. YES.

Q. WHAT IS THAT OPINION?

A. MY OPINION IS THEY DO MAKE SENSE TO ME.

Q. WOULD YOU PLEASE TURN TO EXHIBIT 522. YOU'VE

SEEN THIS EXHIBIT BEFORE TODAY?

A. YES. I PREPARED THIS EXHIBIT.

Q. AND DID YOU PREPARE ALL OF THE COLUMNS ON THIS

EXHIBIT?

A. NO, I STARTED WITH -- WITH -- I GUESS IT'S

CALLED -- WELL, IT'S AN EXCEL FILE 'rIIAT WAS PROVIDED TO ME

ON A JUMP DRIVE BY YOUNG, WOOLDRIDGE, PAULDEN AND SELF.

Q. WHO IS YOUNG WOOLDRIDGE?

A. YOUNG WOOLDRIDGE IS AN ATTORNEY INVOLVED IN

THIS CASE.

Q. THANK YOU.

A. IT'S A LAW FIRM, I SHOULD SAY, INVOLVED IN THIS

CASE.

Q. IT'S MR. KUNEY'S LAW FIRM?

A. YES, SCOTT KUNEY, SPECIFICALLY.

Q. OKAY.

A. SO I WAS PROVIDED THIS EXCEL SPREADSHEET AND

THEN I MODIFIED IT IN ORDER TO DO MY ANALYSIS. SO THE

THINGS I MODIFIED WAS I PUT ROW NUMBERS, WHICH ARE DOWN THE

LEFT—HAND SIDE, AND I PUT COLUMN NUMBERS ACROSS THE TOP IN

ANTICIPATION THAT TnTE MIGHT HAVE TO TALK ABOUT A SPECIFIC
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NUMBER THAT WAS EASIER TO REFER TO ROW AND COLUMN NUMBER

AND THEN BY PARTY OR PRODUCER. I ALSO ADDED THREE COLUMNS

TO AID IN MY ANALYSIS AND THOSE WOULD BE COLUMNS N, 0 AND

P. COLUMN N IS ENTITLED "AVERAGE PUMPING," COLUMN 0 IS

ENTITLED "MINIMUM UNIT OVERLYING PRi:iDUCTION RIGHTS IN ACRE

FEET PER ACRE," AND COLUMN P IS "MAXIMUM UNIT OVERLYING

PRODUCTION RIGHTS IN ACRE FEET PER ACRE." THE REASON I HAD

PUT BOTH A MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM WAS BECAUSE PART OF THE DATA

THAT G1ERE PROVIDED 0~1 THE EYCEL SPREADSHEET HAD A COLUMN,

WHICH IS COLUMN E AND COLUMN F, MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM

ACREAGES. BUT THE MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM ACREAGES WERE NOT

SPECIFICALLY DEFINED AS TO WHAT THAT MEANT, SO I ASSUMED

THAT WAS MINIMUM FARM ACREAGE AND MAXIMUM FARM ACREAGE.

Q. THAT ASSUMPTION IS BASEi~ UPON YOUR KNOWLEDGE,

EXPERTISE IN THIS INDUSTRY?

A. YES.

Q. WOULD YOU -- I WANT TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO

COLUMN B WHICH IS TITLED "PRE-RAMP DOWN PRODUCTION."

A. YES.

Q. AND ALSO DRAW YOUR ATTENTION TO THE MINIMUM,

MAXIMUM ACREAGE WHICH HAS BEEN LABELED IN THIS EXHIBIT

COLUMNS E AND COLUMNS F. DO YOU SEE THOSE?

A. YES.

Q. WAS ONE OF THE FIRST TASKS YOU PERFORMED WHEN

YOU STARTED TO WORK ON THIS OPINION WAS AN ANALYSIS OF

COLUMN B AND COLUMN E AND COLUMN F?

A. YES, BECAUSE THAT WOULD GIVE ME AN INDICATION

OF WHAT HISTORICALLY HAD BEEN PUMPED IN UNIT VALUES OF ACRE
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FEET PER ACRE,.

Q. AND DID THE PRE—RAMP DOWN PRODUCTION, COLUMN B,

DID THAT MAKE SENSE TO YOU WHEN YOU REVIEWED THIS IN

COMPARISON TO COLUMN E AND COLUMN F?

A. YES.

Q. WOULD YOU PLEASE GIVE THE COURT AN EXAMPLE OF

WHAT IT MAY HAVE LOOKED LIKE IF IT DIDN'T MAKE SENSE TO

YOU?

A. IT WCULDPd'T HAVE MADE SENSE IF WHEN YOU DIVIDE

THE PRE—RAMP DOWN PRODUCTION BY THE ACRE, EITHER THE

MAXIMUM OR MINIMUM, IF THAT UNIT VALUE HAD EXCEEDED

SIX—AND—A—HALF ACRE FEET PER ACRE, T~IHICH IS THE MAXIMUM --

SORRY -- THE APPLIED WATER DEMAND OF ALFALFA, WHICH IS THE

MAJOR WATER USING CROP IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY.

Q. SO ANOTHER WAY OF PUTTING THAT, IF SOMEONE

CLAIMED TO BE USING MORE THAN THE ALFALFA, THAT WOULD BE A

CLAIM THAT WOULD MERIT ADDITIONAL REVIEW?

A. YES.

Q. DID YOU FIND ANYONE ON THIS SHEET WHO MERITED

ADDITIONAL REVIEW OR DIDN'T MAKE SEDISE IN YOUR LANGUAGE?

A. N0.

Q. OKAY. SO NOW I WANT TO DRAW YOUR ATTENTION TO

COLUMNS O AND P. DO YOU SEE THOSE BEFORE YOU?

A. YES.

Q. NOW, HOW WOULD THE NUMBERS -- WHAT IS THE

SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN COLUMNS 0 AND P? O IS TITLED "MID

UNIT OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHTS" AND P IS TITLED "MAX UNIT

OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHTS."
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A. BOTH THOSE COLUMNS ARE THE RESULT OF DIVIDING

THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT, I.E., THE MINIMUM OR THE

MAXIMUM ACREAGE. IF YOU TAKE THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION

RIGHT, WHICH IS COLUMN C, AND DIVIDE THAT BY THE MAXIMUM

ACREAGE SHOWN ON THIS SHEET, YOU'RE GOING TO GET A LOWER

NUMBER IN ACRE FEET PER ACRE THAN IF YOU DIVIDE BY THE

MINIMUM NUMBER. SO I THOUGHT IT WAS IMPORTANT, AT LEAST IN

TERMS OF MY ANALYSIS, TO TAKE A LOOK AT BOTH MINIMUMS AND

MAXIMUMS.

Q. SO IF WE'RE LOOKING AT THE FIRST ROW -- SO THIS

WILL BE ROW 2 FOR COLUMNS O AND P, WHAT THAT SHOWS US IS

THAT PARTY IS USING .35 ACRE FEET PFR ACRE?

A. THAT'S CORRECT, B~CAUS~ THEIR MAXIMUM AND

MINIMUM ACREAGE WERE IDENTICAL.

Q. AND WHY DID YOU CHOOSE TO CALCULATE THIS --

THESE TWO COLUMNS IN YOUR ANALYSIS?

A. AGAIN, IT WAS TO HELP ME ANALYZE WHETHER IT

MADE SENSE FOR THE LAND OWNER TO HAVE A UNIT WATER DEMAND

THAT WAS IN A BALLPARK, I SHOULD SAY, OF WHAT IT WOULD TAKE

TO GROW A CROP OR SUPPORT OF DOMESTIC USE, FOR EXAMPLE.

Q. SO AFTER YOU FINISHED CALCULATING COLUMNS O AND

P, DID YOU LOOK TO SEE IF SOMETHING JUMPED OUT AT YOU?

A. YES.

Q. AND WHAT SPECIFICALLY DID YOU LOOK TO SEE THAT

MIGHT JUMP OUT AT YOU?

A. WELL, THE MAIN THING I WAS LOOKING FOR WAS THE

UNIT APPLIED WATER DEMAND IN ACRE FEET PER ACRE IN BOTH

THOSE COLUMNS. SO ANY TIME THE UNIT APPLIED ACRE FEET WAS
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GREATER THAN SIX OR EVEN APPROACHING SIX,.THEN I WOULD GO

FURTHER INTO THAT PARTICULAR PRODUCER'S DATA TO SEE IF IT

ALSO MADE SENSE.

Q. AND DID ANY OF THE ITEMS THE PARTIES ON THIS

EXHIBIT 522 ON COLUMNS O AND P, DID ANY OF THOSE JUMP OUT

AT YOU?

A. N0.

Q. SO DOES THAT INDICATE TO YOU THAT NO ONE ON

COLUMNS O AND P WERE USIP~G OVER SIX ACRE FEET PER ACRE?

A. YES. AND NOT ONLY THAT, BUT THEY ALL HAD LOWER

OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT THAN THEIR HISTORICAL PUMP USAGE

AND THEIR PRE-RAMP DOWN. SO BY HAVING A LOWER OVERLYING

PRODUCTION RIGHT, THAT MEANS THEY'RE. REDUCING THE PUMPAGE

ON THE BASIN, WHICH THEN WOULD HELP IT BRING INTO BALANCE.

Q. AFTER YOU HAD TAKEN THIS REVIEW OF COLUMNS 0

AND P TO SEE IF SOMETHING JUMPED OUT IN FRONT OF YOU, DID

YOU THEN COMPARE THE WATER USE ON THESE TWO COLUMNS ACRE

FEET PER ACRE VERSUS THE HISTORICAL CROPS THAT WERE GROWN

BY THOSE PARTIES? AND IF THEY WERE A FARM OF THE

HISTORICAL CROPS, GROWN BY THOSE PARTIES?

A. YES. AT THIS POINT, WE SHOULD PROBABLY TALK

ABOUT THE LAST COLUMN ON THIS TABLE, COLUMN T.

Q. YES.

A. ENTITLED "NOTES." THOSE NOTES WERE INCLUDED IN

THE ORIGINAL EXCELSPREADSHEET AND INDICATE BASICALLY THREE

TYPES OF ITEMS. ONE, BENEFICIAL USE AND IF THE BENEFICIAL

USE WERE FOR AN AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT, WHAT THE AGRICULTURAL

PRODUCT WOULD BE. AND THEN C, WHETHER THE DATA FOR
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HISTORICAL PUMPAGE OR WHAT WAS THE SOURCE OF THAT DATA. SO

THOSE NOTES WERE SOMETHING THAT ALSO CONTRIBUTED TO MY

ASSESSMENT AS TO WHETHER IT MADE SENSE OR NOT TO END UP

WITH A PARTICULAR UNIT APPLIED WATER AND ACRE FEET PER

ACRE.

Q. IN A GENERAL SENSE, WHY IS IT IMPORTANT THE

TYPE OF CROP GROWN ON ANY PARTICULAR PARCEL? LET ME

RESTATE IT. DO SOME CROPS USE MORE WATER THAN OTHER CROPS?

A. YES. AS I STATED, THE ALFALFA USES THE MOST.

Q. SO FOR EXAMPLE, WE SEE 1:TEM B, ITEM 1, BARLEY

VEG OATS, THEY HAVE A DIFFERENT CROP WATER DUTY THAN THE

ONE RIGHT BELOW IT, CARROTS?

A. YES.

Q. AND THEN CARROTS HAS DIFFERENT WATER CROP DUTY

THAN ONIONS?

A. YES.

Q. AND THEY VARY, BUT YOU REVIEWED THE TYPE OF

WATER USE, HISTORICALLY, AND THEN YOU COMPARED IT AGAINST

THE ALLOCATED AMOUNT OF WATER USE Tf[AT WOULD HAVE ON ACRE

FEET PER ACRE?

A. YES. BUT TO CLARIFY, I DIDN'T DO IT CROP BY

CROP. IN OTHER WORDS, IF IN COLUMN R, WHICH IS THE

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT, IF A USER ONLY SHOWED N0. 5, WHICH

WOULD MEAN ALFALFA, THEN I WOULD LOOK PARTICULARLY AT THAT

ONE TO MAKE SURE IT DID NOT EXCEED THE SIX AND A HALF. BUT

IF IT WAS A MIX OF CROPS, THEN I WOULD EXPECT IT TO BE LESS

THAN ALFALFA. BUT I DID NOT LOOK SPECIFICALLY IF THE CROP

WAS JUST CARROTS, FOR EXAMPLE, WHET1iER THAT MADE SENSE OR
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NOT, JUST SO LONG AS IT WAS BELOW THE ALFALFA USE.

Q. LET'S TAKE THREE EXAMPLES ON THIS SHEET. . SO

WE'RE GOING TO START WITH NO. 18, ROW 18, WHICH IS

BOLTHOUSE PROPERTIES, LLC, AND I SEE ON COLUMN O AND P WE

HAVE A CROP WATER DUTY ON 0 OF 1.47 AND P OF 2.65. DO YOU

SEE THAT?

A. YES.

Q. NOW, YOU ALSO SEE WHAT TYPE OF CROPS THAT THEY

HISTORICALLY GREW IPd COLL'MP1 R?

A. YES.

Q. SO COMPARED TO THE HISTORICAL CROPS THAT

BOLTHOUSE GREW, ARE -- DOES THAT REFLECT A CUTBACK, 0 AND

P?

A. CERTAINLY IT WOULD IF THEY FARMED THE MAXIMUM

ACREAGE. THE 2.6 IS FAIRLY CLOSE TO WHAT THE APPLIED WATER

DEMAND FOR CARROTS WOULD BE. AS I ~~AID, I DIDN'T LOOK AT

IT SPECIFICALLY CROP BY CROP.

Q. AND 1.47, IS THAT LESS THAN THE APPLIED WATER

DEMAND?

A. YES, FOR CARROTS.

Q. FOR CARROTS. SO WHAT,-- WHAT WILL BOLTHOUSE

PROPERTIES HAVE TO DO AFTER THIS ALLOCATION IS IMPLEMENTED?

MS. BRENNAN: OBJECTION; VAGUE.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: WHAT WOULD BOLTHOUSE PROPERTIES

HAVE TO DO TO CONTINUE TO FARM ON T1~ESE PARCELS AFTER THIS

ALLOCATION IS IMPLICATED?

A. IF WE LOOK BACK AT COLUMN O WHERE THE 1.47 ACRE

FEET PER ACRE WAS DERIVED, THAT WAS DERIVED FROM TAKING THE
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OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT DIVIDED BY THEIR MAXIMUM ACREAGE

OF 6,700 ACRES, PLUS OR MINUS. SO IN ORDER TO CONTINUE. TO

FARM CARROTS, THEY WOULD HAVE TO FARM LESS THAN THEY HAD

FARMED UNDER A MAXIMUM CONDITION.

Q. BY FARM LESS, YOU MEAN FALLOW LAND?

A. IT WOULD BE UP TO THEM WHAT THEY DID WITH IT.

THEY CAN EITHER FARM LESS LAND TO STAY WITHIN THEIR

OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT, OR AS I UNDERSTAND THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION, THEY CAN PURCHASE WATEP. TO IF.F.IGATE THE EXTRA

PORTION.

Q. WILL BOLTHOUSE PROPERTIES BE ABLE TO FARM THE

AMOUNT OF LAND THEY HISTORICALLY FARMED? OR WOULD IT BE

POSSIBLE FOR BOLTHOUSE PROPERTIES TO FARM THE LAND THEY

HISTORICALLY FARMED WITH THESE ALLOCATIONS, ASSUMING THEY

DIDN'T PURCHASE ADDITIONAL WATER?

MS. BRENNAN: OBJECTION; LACKS FOUNDATION.

THE COURT: OVERRULED.

THE WITNESS: I DON'T HAVE INFORMATION ON WHAT THEY

HISTORICALLY FARMED IN TERMS OF ACREAGE DURING THIS TIME

PERIOD THAT IS SHOWN ON THIS CHART. THE ONLY THING I HAVE

IS THE MAXIMUM ACREAGE THEY FARMED AND I ASSUME THAT'S WHAT

THEY FARMED AND THE MINIMUM ACREAGE. SO IT WOULD DEPEND ON

WHAT AREA THEY WERE FARMING IN YEAR AND YOU'D HAVE TO

COMPARE THAT WITH THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT TO ANSWER

THAT QUESTION.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: IF BOLTHOUSE FARMS WANTED TO

FARM THEIR MAXIMUM ACREAGE, WOULD THEY BE ABLE TO DO THAT

WITH 1.47 ACRE FEET PER ACRE FOR THOSE CROPS?
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A. I DON'T THINK SO, N0.

Q. BECAUSE IF A CROP DOESN'T GET ENOUGH WATER,

THEN IT WON'T EITHER SURVIVE OR IF IT DOES SURVIVE, IT

WON'T YIELD ENOUGH?

A. TYPICALLY THAT'S WHAT HAPPENS, YES.

Q. NOW TURN YOUR EXAMPLE TO -- OR SECOND

EXAMPLE -- TURN YOUR ATTENTION TO A SECOND EXAMPLE WE'RE

GOING TO USE. IT'S NO. 32 ON THE CHART, IT'S TITLED

"CIAMOPID FARMING CO. LLC CRYSTAL ORGANIC LLC." DO YQU SEE

THAT?

A. ~ YES, I D0.

Q. AND THEY HAVE BEEN ALLOCATED IN COLUMN C,

•:.

A. CORRECT.

Q. -- ALLOCATION. AND YOU SEE FOR THIS THEY HAVE

A MINIMUM OF 1.44 AND A MAXIMUM 3.75?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THEN YOU ALSO SEE, ~~N COLUMN R, THEIR

HISTORICAL CROPPING?

A. YES.

Q. THE -- DOES THE ALLOCATION THAT THEY HAVE

RECEIVED, DOES THAT REFLECT A CUTBACK?

A. THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT, YES.

Q. I'M SORRY. THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT,

DOES THAT REFLECT A SIGNIFICANT CUTBACK FOR DIAMOND FARMING

AND CRYSTAL ORGANIC?

A. COMPARED TO THE HISTORICAL, YES.

Q. WOULD DIAMOND FARMING OR CRYSTAL ORGANIC BE
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ABLE TO GROW THE CROPS THEY'VE HISTORICALLY GROWN WITH

1.44?

A. N0.

Q. AND THAT'S BECAUSE THAT WOULDN'T BE SUFFICIENT

WATER FOR THOSE CROPS?

A. AGAIN, ASSUMING THEY FAF;M THE COMPLETE ACREAGE

THAT THEY OWN, RIGHT.

Q. TURN YOUR ATTENTION TO OUR THIRD EXAMPLE, WHICH

IS NO. 50 ON THIS SHEET, GAYL~ND Gd. YYLE AND JULIE KALE.

A. YES, I SEE IT.

Q. OKAY. SO WE SEE THAT HISTORICALLY THEY HAVE,

IN COLUMN B, THEY PUMPED 9,75?

A. YES.

Q. AND NOW AFTER THE ALLOCATION, THEY'RE RECEIVING

3, 670?

A. YES.

Q. THE KYLES, WE SEE FROM COLUMN T, ALL THEY EVER

PUMPED WAS ALFALFA. LET ME RESTATE THAT. ALL THEY EVER

FARMED WAS ALFALFA.

A. THAT'S CORRECT, BASED ON THESE CHARTS.

Q. SO WHAT IS THE CROP -- WATER CROP DUTY FOR

ALFALFA?

A. AS I SAID BEFORE, IT'S 6.5 ACRE FEET PER YEAR.

Q. WHAT IS THE CROP WATER liUTY -- WHAT IS THE

APPLIED WATER THAT OR THE ALLOCATED WATER THAT THE KYLES

ARE RECEIVING UNDER THE SETTLEMENT?

A. AGAIN, UNDER THIS CALCULATION AS SHOWN IN

FIGURE O AND P, IT WOULD BE 3.68 ACRE FEET PER ACRE.
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Q. SO THE KYLES ARE GOING FROM 6.5 TO 3.68?

A. I WOULDN'T SAY IT THAT WAY BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW

IF HISTORICALLY THEY PUMPED 6.5. I'D HAVE TO DO THAT

CALCULATION. BUT THEY ARE GOING FROM THEIR HISTORICAL

PUMPAGE OF -- SORRY -- THEIR PRE-RAMP DOWN PRODUCTION OF

9,275, THEY'RE BEING CUT BACK TO 3,670. AND IF YOU DIVIDE

THAT OUT BY THEIR ACREAGE, WHICH IS JUST ABOUT 1,000 ACRES,

THAT GETS YOU TO THE 3.68 ACRE FEET PER ACRE, WHICH IS NOT

SUFFICIENT TO GRCU~ ALFAiFA ON THE EP~TIR~ ACREAGE.

Q. SO THE KYLES -- WHAT CHOICES WILL THE KYLES

HAVE GOING FORWARD TO FARM THIS ACREAGE?

MS. BRENNAN: OBJECTION; LACKS FOUNDATION; VAGUE;

CALLS FOR SPECULATION.

THE COURT: OVERRULED. YOU CAN DISCUSS OPTIONS,

HYPOTHETICALLY_

THE WITNESS: THE KYLES CAN REDUCE THE AMOUNT OF

ALFALFA ACREAGE THAT THEY'RE FARMING, THAT'S ONE OPTION.

OR THEY CAN PURCHASE WATER, TO THE EXTENT IT'S AVAILABLE,

AS I UNDERSTAND, UNDER THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION. OR THEY CAN

CHANGE THEIR CROP PATTERN AND NOT GROW ALFALFA AND INSTEAD

GROW SOMETHING THEY CAN GROW UNDER 3.68 ACRE FEET PER ACRE.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: I WOULD LIKE YOU TO TAKE --

CONSIDERING WATER USE AS A WHOLE AS EXPRESSED BY THIS

EXHIBIT, ARE THE FARMERS GOING TO HAVE TO CHANGE THEIR

HISTORICAL FARMING PRACTICES WITH THE NEW ALLOCATIONS

THEY'RE GOING THE RECEIVE?

A. WHEN YOU SAY HISTORICAL FARMING PRACTICES,

THAT'S A KIND OF A BROAD TERM TO ME. WHAT IT WOULD MEAN TO
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ME IS THEY WOULD HAVE TO REDUCE THE AMOUNT OF ACREAGE THEY

FARMED, WHICH WOULD NOT NECESSARILY CHANGE. THEIR PRACTICES,

IT WOULD JUST CHANGE THEIR AMOUNT, OR THEY WOULD HAVE TO

CHANGE CROP PATTERN. SO A FARMER THAT WOULD BE GROWING

ALFALFA WOULD MAYBE AFTERWARDS HAVE TO CHANGE HIS CROP

PATTERN, GROW MOSTLY ROW CROPS -- VEGETABLES, ONIONS,

CARROTS, THOSE KIND OF THINGS -- IN ORDER TO STAY WITHIN

HIS ALLOCATED AMOUNT OF WATER.

Q. ARE THESE FARMERS GOING TO BE ABLE TO CONTI~~UE

BUSINESS AS USUAL AFTER THEY HAVE TO LIVE WITH THESE

ALLOCATIONS?

MS. BRENNAN: OBJECTION; OUTSIDE THE SCOPE OF HIS

~XF~RTISE.

THE COURT: SUSTAINED.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: ARE THE FARMERS GOING TO BE ABLE

TO CONTINUE THE HISTORICAL FARMING PRACTICES GOING FORWARD

WITH THESE NEW ALLOCATIONS?

MS. BRENNAN: SAME OBJECTION.

THE WITNESS: THEY'RE GOING `r0 HAVE TO MAKE CHANGES.

THE COURT: OVERRULED.

MR. WEEKS: IT WAS OVERRULED?

THE COURT: I OVERRULED.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: THANK YOU. NOW MR. BEEBY, I'M

GOING TO TURN YOUR ATTENTION TO ANOTHER AREA NOW. YOU WERE

PREPARED TO EXPRESS AN OPINION REGARDING THE TAPIA'S TODAY?

A. YES, I AM.

Q. AND DID YOU TAKE A REVIEW OF THE TAPIA'S

FARMING PRACTICES?
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A. I REVIEWED THE -- I THIPdK IT WAS A DECLARATION

OR DEPOSITION, I'M NOT SURE WHICH, BUT IT WAS PROVIDED TO

ME BY BEST, BEST & KRIEGER. I REVIEWED THAT AND EVALUATED

THEIR CLAIMS FOR PUMPAGE, THEIR CLAIMS FOR AREA FARMED AND

ALSO WHAT CROPS THEY FARMED.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR OPINION REGARDING THE TAPIA'S

WATER USE?

A. MY OPINION I5 THAT THE TAPIA WATER USE, AS

STATED IN THE DECLARATION, IS OVERSTATED. IT'S FAR IN

EXCESS OF WHAT THEY CAN USE BASED O~1 THE CROPS THEY

REPORTEDLY GREW.

Q. WOULD YOU TURN TO EXHIBIT PWS 523?

A. I HAVE IT.

Q. AND WHAT SIGNIFICANCE ON THAT BOX ABOUT THE

MIDDLE OF THE PAGE IT SAYS, "RGP OPINION APPLIED WATER

DEMAND." WOULD YOU EXPLAIN THAT, PLEASE?

A. YES, THAT'S KIND OF THE KEY. THE COURT MAY

RECALL THAT SWEET CORN AND PUMPKINS WERE NOT ONE OF THE

CROPS THAT WERE ORIGINALLY EVALUATED BY THE TECHNICAL

COMMITTEE. SO CONSEQUENTLY, I HAD TO COME UP WITH SOME

NUMBERS OF APPLIED WATER DEMAND FOR SWEET CORN AND FOR

PUMPKINS. AND BASED ON AN EXHIBIT THAT WE'LL TALK ABOUT A

LITTLE LATER, I HAD VARIOUS SOURCES THAT LED ME TO CONCLUDE

THAT FOR SWEET CORN, THE APPLIED WATER DEMAND PER ACRE IS

2.2 ACRE FEET AND FOR PUMPKINS IT'S 2.6. AND I SHOULD ALSO

STATE THAT APPLIED WATER DEMAND IS THE TOTAL APPLIED WATER

DEMAND FACTORING IN IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY AND THOSE KINDS

OF THING.
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Q. AND SWEET CORN -- IS THAT THE CORN WE FIND IN

SUPER MARKETS?

A. YES, AS OPPOSED TO FIELD CORN THAT IS USUALLY

FED TO ANIMALS.

Q. AND FIELD CORN AND SWEET CORN HAVE DIFFERENT

APPLIED WATER DEMANDS?

A. YES, THEY DO.

Q. WOULD YOU PLEASE EXPLAIN TO THE COURT THE

SIG~dII'ICAPdCE OF THE BOX IMMEDIATELY BELOba THE RGB OPINION

ON EXHIBIT 523?

A. YES, THAT BOX INDICATES WHAT I THINK WOULD HAVE

BEEN THEIR APPLIED WATER DEMAND BASED ON THE AREA THAT THEY

ACTUALLY FARMED AND THE APPLIED WATER DUTY OF SWEET CORN

AND PUMPKINS ABOVE.

Q. SO WE HAVE A COLUMN TO THE RIGHT THERE IT SAYS

TOTAL, DO YOU SEE THAT?

A. YES.

Q. IS THAT TOTAL COLUMN YOUR OPINION REGARDING THE

HISTORICAL WATER USE BY TAPIA?

A. NO, IT'S NOT.

Q. WHAT IS YOUR -- FOR 2000, WHAT IS YOUR

CALCULATION OF THE HISTORICAL WATER USE?

A. FOR 2000, WHAT THAT CHART SHOWS, IS THAT THEY

GREW CORN, SWEET CORN AND THE SWEET CORN HAD AN APPLIED

WATER DEMAND OF 99.9 ACRE FEET. IN THAT SAME YEAR, THEY

DIDN'T GROW PUMPKINS, SO THE SUM OF 99 PLUS ZERO RESULTS IN

THE TOTAL AND THEIR TOTAL APPLIED WATER DEMAND FOR YEAR

2000 NOW WOULD BE 99.9 ACRE FEET.
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Q. WE SEE THE COLUMNS FROM 2001 THROUGH 2012.

A. YES.

Q. SAME ANALYSIS FOR THOSE ROWS AS WELL?

A. YES. I MIGHT POINT OUT IN 2001, THEY DID GROW

BOTH CORN AND PUMPKINS IN THE SAME YEAR, NOT NECESSARILY IN

THE SAME PLACE ON THEIR PROPERTY, BUT IN THE SAME YEAR. SO

GOING THROUGH THE SAME CALCULATION BY ESTIMATING THE

ACREAGE OF SWEET CORN TIMES THE APPLIED WATER DEMAND OF

SWEET CORN, THE RESULT IS 61.G ACRE r~ET. DOING THE SAME

ANALYSIS FOR THE PUMPKINS, THEY ENDED UP WITH 109.2 ACRE

FEET FOR THE PUMPKINS AND ADDING THOSE TWO TOGETHER RESULTS

IN TOTAL APPLIED WATER OF 120 ACRE FEET .8 -- I'M SORRY,

IT~s Z~o.s.

Q. AND THAT WAS FOR THE YEAR 2001?

A. YES.

Q. NOW, DID THE TAPIA'S USE IMPORTED WATER FOR THE

YEARS 2000 THROUGH 2004?

A. I THINK SO.

Q. SO WHEN WE'RE DISCUSSING THESE APPLIED WATER

DEMANDS, YOU'RE NOT SAYING THEY USED GROUND WATER TO MEET

THESE DEMANDS, AT LEAST FOR 2000 THROUGH 2003?

A. IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, FROM THEIR DECLARATION,

THAT FROM 2000 TO 2004' -- OR SORRY -- 2003 THEY DID NOT

HAVE LARGE CAPACITY OF WELL ON THEIR PROPERTY. AND FOR

THOSE YEARS, 2000 THROUGH 2003, THEY PURCHASED WATER FROM

AVEK, ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WAT~;R AGENCY. FOR 2011 AND

'12, THEY USED A WELL THAT, AS I UNDERSTAND IT FROM THEIR

DECLARATION, WAS CONSTRUCTED IN 2008 AND OPERATED IN 2009.
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SO FOR 2011 AND '12, I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT NO WATER WAS

AVAILABLE FROM AVEK, SO THE 2011 AND '12 FIGURES WOULD BE

TOTALLY PUMPED GROUND WATER.

Q. AND WHY DOES THE ROW 2004 SAY ND?

A. ND INDICATED NO DATA TO ME. AND AGAIN, BASED

ON MY READ OF THE TAPIA DECLARATION, THERE WAS SOME KIND OF

A LAND SWAP IN THERE AND I DID NOT HAVE ANY DATA WITH

REGARD TO CROP PATTERN OR PUMPAGE.

Q. IF i0U'LL TAKE A LOOK AT THE TOP OF EYHIBIT PWS

523, PLEASE EXPLAIN TO THE COURT THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS

UPPER RECTANGLE.

A. ALL RIGHT. THAT'S -- THAT'S ESSENTIALLY MY

DERIVATION OF THE AREA IRRIGATED BY CROP. AND I WAS ALSO

ASKED TO LOOK AT THE PERIOD FROM 1993 THROUGH 1997, WHICH,

OF COURSE, THEN I SEPARATED BY A LINE. AND THEN REMAINING

YEARS 2000 THROUGH 2004 AND 2011 AND 2012 WERE THE MAIN

AREAS WHERE I FOCUSED MY ATTENTION. SO SECOND COLUMN OVER

ENTITLED, "TOTAL IRRIGATED AREA" WAS DERIVED USING LAND SAT

PHOTOGRAPHY AND A SOFTWARE PROGRAM CALLED ARCVIEW TO

COMPUTE ACREAGES. SO FROM THE LAND SAT PHOTOGRAPHY YOU

COULD DETERMINE THE AREA THAT WAS IRRIGATED ON THEIR

PARTICULAR PARCEL. YOU CAN'T TELL WHAT CROP TYPE IT WAS,

BUT YOU COULD TELL WHAT THE TOTAL AkEA IRRIGATED WAS. S0

TO GET TO THE CROP TYPE, THEN IN THE FAR RIGHT-HAND COLUMN

I HAD ACCESS TO THE KERN COUNTY PESTICIDE PERMITS, WHICH

ARE REQUIRED WHEN YOU APPLY PESTICIDES. AND THE SWEET CORN

IS FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION SO THE KERN COUNTY PESTICIDE

PERMIT INDICATED THAT THE TAPIA'S HAD APPLIED FOR A 40 ACRE
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CORN -- SORRY -- 40 ACRES OF CORN FAR THE PESTICIDE PERMIT

NONETHELESS I SAID OKAY, WELL, 45.4 IS THE ACREAGE THEY HAD

SO I ASSUMED IT WAS 45.4 FOR CORN. THEY HAD NO PESTICIDE

FOR PUMPKINS IN 2000, SO I ASSUMED THEY ONLY GREW CORN IN

THAT YEAR. AND I DID THE SAME THING ALL THE WAY DOWN

THROUGH 2004. 2011 AND '12 PRESENTED A SLIGHTLY DIFFERENT

ISSUE BECAUSE I DID NOT HAVE PESTICIDE REPORTS FROM KERN

COUNTY AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER, SO I RELIED ON TAPIA'S

DEPOSITION WHERE HE SAID THAT HE FARI~4ED ABOUT HALF CCRN AND

HALF PUMPKINS. SO I TOOK THE TOTAL IRRIGATED ACREAGE FOR

2011, WHICH WAS 79.4, AND 2012, WHICH WAS 24, I DIVIDED

THOSE BY TWO TO CALCULATE HOW MANY ACRES OF CORN AND HOW

MANY ACRES OF PUMPKINS. AND SO THE ACREAGE FIGURES THAT

YOU SEE ARE THE RESULT OF THAT ARITHMETIC.

Q. AND YOU USE THOSE FIGURES TO DETERMINE THE

SQUARE IN THE BOTTOM LEFT-HAND CORNER OF EXHIBIT 523?

A. YES. I WOULD THEN TAKE THE TOTAL IRRIGATED

ACRES OF CORN BY YEAR AND COMPUTE THE APPLIED WATER DEMAND,

WHICH IS IN THE LOWER BOX ON THE LEFT-HAND SIDE OF THE

EXHIBIT.

Q. WOULD YOU BRIEFLY LOOK THROUGH PWS 526 THROUGH

539?

A. YES.

Q. AND WHAT ARE THOSE EXHIF~ITS?

A. THOSE ARE LAND SAT PHOTOGRAPHS WHICH MEASURE

THE REFLECTIVE SPECTRUM. AND SUPER IMPOSED ON TOP OF THAT

IS A RED SORT OF A BOX WITH A LOWER LEFT-HAND CORNER

MISSING. THE RED BOUNDARY INDICATES THE 137 PLUS ACRES OF
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TAPIA'S PARCEL. AND THE -- THE SHADING UNDERNEATH, WHICH

IS THE LAND SAT PHOTO, WOULD INDICATE THAT NO AREA WAS

IRRIGATED IN 1993. AGAIN I'M LOOKING AT 526001.

Q. AND ARE THOSE THE LAND SAT PHOTOS YOU

PREVIOUSLY MENTIONED WHEN YOU WERE DISCUSSING EXHIBITS 523?

A. YES.

Q. WOIILD YOU PLEASE TURN T^ EXHIBIT 525?

A. I HAVE IT.

Q. WHAT IS THIS? PLEASE DESCRIBE FOR THE COURT

WHAT THIS INFORMATION REPRESENTS.

A. THIS IS A SPREADSHEET THAT I PREPARED. THE TOP

BOX -- WELL, IT'S ENTITLED "AV CASES EVALUATION OF TAPIR

APPLIED WATER CLAIMS." AND FROM THE TAPIR DECLARATION -- I

THINK IS THE CORRECT THING -- I GOT THE LOCATION AND THE

AMOUNT OF ACRE FEED OF AVEK WATER DELIVERED EACH YEAR FOR

THE YEARS SHOWN 2000 THROUGH 2004, THEN 2011 AND '12. THAT

INFORMATION CAME FROM A DECLARATION PROVIDED BY TAPIR.

Q. I'M SORRY FOR INTERRUPTING. PROCEED.

A. AND THE FIRST COLUMN IS THE LOCATION WHERE

APPARENTLY THE AVEK WATER WAS DELIVERED, SO NOT KNOWING

WHETHER THAT LOCATION WAS ON THE TAPIR PARCEL OR NOT, MY

ONLY OPTION WAS TO ADD UP THE TOTAL AVEK DELIVERIES, WHICH

ARE IN TOTAL ROW -- SO FOR 2000, FOR EXAMPLE, HE RECEIVED

903.9 ACRE FEET OF WATER FROM AVEK. AND IN 2011 AND '12,

THOSE DATA WERE FROM WELL PUMPING AND THOSE WERE DATA

PROVIDED BY POWER RECORDS SUPPLIED ALSO BY MR. TAPIR AND

DERIVED USING KILOWATT HOURS PER ACRE FEET.

Q. YOU DID THE SAME CALCULATIONS FROM 2001 TO 2004
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AS YOU JUST DESCRIBED FOR 2000?

A. YES, CORRECT.

Q. SO THE TOTAL ACRE FEET SHOWN ON THIS EXHIBIT

525 IS THE TOTAL ACRE FEET DELIVEREC), AS ACCORDING TO

MR. TAPIR?

A. YES.

Q. AND DID THAT MAKE SENSE TO YOU, THAT ALL THAT

ACRE FEET WOULD BE USED ON MR. TAPIR'S LAND?

A. V~ELL, AT THAT POIPIT, I WASH' T CERTAIN, SO WHAT

I DID WAS I LOOKED AT HIS DECLAMATION AND FOUND THAT OF HIS

TOTAL 137 ACRE PARCEL, HE SAID THAT 130 ACRES WERE FARMED.

SO I ASSUMED THAT WAS WHAT HE FARMED AND I DIVIDED THE

ACRE -- THE TOTAL ACRE FEET DELIVER:' BY HIS CLAIM OF 130

ACRES FARMED TO DETERMINE THE UNIT APPLIED WATER, WHICH IS

THE LINE JUST BELOW THE ACREAGE NUMBER. SO FOR 2000, FOR

EXAMPLE, IF YOU TAKE THE 903.9 AND DIVIDE THAT BY THE 130

NET ACRES, YOU GET SEVEN ACRE FEET PER ACRE.

Q. SO TO COMPARE THAT TO THE BOLTHOUSE FARMS ACRE

FEET PER ACRE WE LOOKED AT IN EXHIBIT 522, BOLTHOUSE FARMS

RECEIVED, AT LEAST ON THE MINIMUM UNIT USE, 1.97 BUT

MR. TAPIR FOR 2000 IS CLAIMING SEVEN?

MS. BRENNAN: OBJECTION; ARG~'MENTATIVE; LEADING.

THE COURT: YOU CAN LEAD AN EXPERT. OVERRULED.

THE WITNESS: THAT'S A LITTLE BIT LIKE COMPARING

APPLES AND ORANGES BECAUSE WHEN YOU COMPARE THE NUMBERS ON

BOLTHOUSE, WE'RE COMPARING THE OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT.

AND HERE WE'RE COMPARING ACTUAL -- I SHOULDN'T SAY ACTUAL,

BUT THE DELIVERIES THAT WERE CLAIMED BY MR. TAPIR. SO FOR
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EXAMPLE, IF I LOOK AT THE -- AND JUST SPEAKING OF THE YEAR

2000, IF I LOOK AT SEVEN ACRE FEET PER ACRE AND KNOWING

WHAT HIS CROPPING PATTERN WP_S, THAT'S WAY IN EXCESS OF WHAT

WOULD BE NEEDED FOR EITHER PUMPKINS OR CORN. SO THAT AGAIN

DID NOT MAKE SENSE TO ME.

Q. BY MR. WEEKS: . DID ANY OF THE APPLIED WATER

FROM 2000 THROUGH 2012 AS SHOWN IN THE CHART MAKE SENSE TO

YOU?

A. WELL, AGAIN, IT'S HARD TO SAI' BECAUSE THE UNIT

ACRE FEED NUMBER THAT I GOT WAS BASED ON THE ASSUMPTION

THAT THE FULL 130 ACRES WERE FARMED. AND MY REVIEW OF THE

LAND SAT PHOTOS INDICATED THAT THAT WAS IN FACT NOT THE

CASE. SO I THINK THE ANSWER TO YOUR QUESTION IS N0, IT

DIDN'T MAKE SENSE BECAUSE HE NEVER DID FARM 130 ACRES.

Q. SO DID YOU DO FURTHER INVESTIGATION TO

MR. TAPIA'S CLAIMS?

A. THAT IS --

Q. LET ME REINSTATE THE QUESTION. ARE YOU AWARE

THAT MR. TAPIA HAS CLAIMED CERTAIN F~MOUNT OF WATER IN THIS

LITIGATION?

A. YES. I READ FROM HIS DECLARATION THAT HE IS

BASING IT ON HIS 2011 AND '12 PUMPAGE AND THAT HE IS

REQUESTING AN AVERAGE OF 5 34.5 ACRE FEET ANNUALLY.

Q. IS THAT THE NUMBER THAT WE SEE REFLECTED ON

EXHIBIT 525?

A. YES. IN THE LOWER BOX, THERE'S A LINE ENTITLED

"TAPIR CLAIM." I DIDN'T KNOW WHAT ELSE TO CALL THAT.

Q. DID YOU THEN CALCULATE `T'HE APPLIED WATER DUTY



25421

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2E

27

2~

FOR THAT CLAIM?

A. I DID, BUT THE DIFFERENCE HERE IS THAT I HAVE

THAT TOP LINE ENTITLED "MAXIMUM AREA OF FARMED DETERMINED

BY THE LAND SAT ANALYSIS." AND AGAIN THOSE ARE THE TOTAL

ACREAGES THAT I DETERMINED THAT WERE IRRIGATED BY EACH --

FOR EACH OF THOSE YEARS. SO WHEN Y:~U START DIVIDING OUT

THE ACTUAL OR THE MAXIMUM FARMED AREA FROM THE LAND SAT

PHOTOS DIVIDED BY THE TAPIA CLAIM, YOU GET UNIT APPLIED

GvATER DEMANuS THAT ARE FAR EXCESS OF F,PIYTI-IIP~G THAT DID MAKE

SENSE.

Q. ARE THOSE UNIT APPLIED WATER DEMANDS GREATER

THAN WOULD BE NEEDED FOR EVEN ALFALFA?

A. YES.

Q. NOW TURNING BACK TO THE LAND SAT PARCELS, HOW

CAN YOU TELL BY LOOKING AT THE SATELLITE ANALYSIS IF A

PARCEL IS IRRIGATED OR NOT IRRIGATED? SO JUST BY WAY OF

EXAMPLE, WE CAN START WITH 526.

A. 526 ARE THE LAND SAT PHOTOS FOR 1993 MONTHLY

AND THERE IS NO GREEN AREA SHOWN. NOW FOR A LAND SAT

PHOTO, IF THE CROP IS IRRIGATED AND FARMED, THEY WOULD SHOW

UP AS A GREEN AREA, AND I THINK WE'LL SEE THAT IN

SUBSEQUENT EXHIBITS.

Q. COULD YOU GIVE THE COURT AN EXAMPLE OF ONE

WHERE IT WOULD SHOW FARMED? FOR EX.??.MPLE 533, PERHAPS

533-2.

A. YES, 533, WHICH IS FOR THE YEAR 2002, ARE THE

LAND SAT PHOTOS MONTHLY. AND SO FOR THE -- PAGE 1 IS FOR

JANUARY AND FEBRUARY AND YOU SEE THERE'S NO GREEN AREA
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SHOWN. NOW FOR '02, YOU SEE MARCH, PROBABLY NO GREEN AREA,

BUT IN APRIL IN THE UPPER LEFT—HAND CORNER, YOU START TO

SEE SOME GREEN SHADE. THAT BECOMES MORE INTENSE ON 533 FOR

THOSE, FOR MAY. AND THEN IF YOU LOOK AT THE NEXT PAGE,

WHICH IS 5330004 FOR JULY AND AUGUST, YOU SEE THAT THE

GREEN AREA IN THE UPPER LEFT—HAND PORTION HAS NOW PROBABLY

BEEN HARVESTED, IS WHAT I WOULD CONCLUDE. BUT HE'S PLANTED

IN THE LOWER RIGHT—HAND CORNER SOME OTHER CROP AND THAT

ALSG SHOVdS UP AS GREEN.

Q. AND IS -- IN YOUR INDUSTRY, IS THIS A

METHODOLOGY USED BY EXPERTS IN INDUSTRY TO DETERMINE

CROP -- CROPPING?

A. HISTORICALLY IT WAS USED TO DETERMINE WHETHER

THE LAND WAS IRRIGATED OR NOT. MORE RECENTLY, IT'S BECOME

SOPHISTICATED ENOUGH, ALTHOUGH THESE AREN'T THAT LEVEL OF

SOPHISTICATION THAT YOU CAN ACTUALLY TELL WHAT THE CROP

WAS. BUT HISTORICALLY, ALL YOU COULD TELL WHETHER IT WAS

IRRIGATED OR NOT IRRIGATED.

Q. WOULD YOU TURN TO EXHIBIT 537?

A. I HAVE IT.

Q. AND WHAT IS THE SIGNIFICANCE OF WHAT IS SHOWN

IN 537?

A. 5370001, THE FIRST ONE, SHOWS THE TAPIA PARCEL

OUTLINED IN RED. AND THEN IT SHOWS THE AREA THAT WAS

DETERMINED TO BE IRRIGATED USING ARCVIEW, WHICH IS A

COMPUTER SOFTWARE PROGRAM THAT CAN DETERMINE AREAS BASED ON

THE OUTLINES OF THE IRRIGATED AREA. SO AS YOU CAN SEE, THE

UPPER LEFT—HAND CORNER IS INDICATED TO BE 9.1 AND MANY



25423

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DECIMAL POINTS, WHICH IS SILLY, BUT ANYWAY THAT'S HOW THESE

COMPUTER THINGS WORK. AND THEN SO THAT WAS WHAT WAS SHOWED

IN, I THINK, MARCH. AND THEN IF WE LOOK DOWN IN THE LOWER

RIGHT—HAND CORNER, WE SEE A BIG BOX, 33.1 ACRES, AND THEN

UNDER THAT 3.1 ACRES. SO TO COMPUTE THE TOTAL IRRIGATED

ACREAGE, I WOULD HAVE ADDED THOSE TWO -- THOSE THREE BOXES

TOGETHER TO GET THE TOTAL. AND THEN I WOULD HAVE USED THE

AGRICULTURAL PESTICIDE REPORTS TO DETERMINE WHAT THE CROP

PATTERN GdAS .

Q. AND WOULD YOU TURN TO 5372? AND IS THIS 5372

AN EXAMPLE OF CALCULATING 70 ACRES WERE FARMED?

A. YES. AND THIS IS FOR YEAR 2001.

Q. OKAY. AND THE SUBSEQUENT EXHIBITS ON 537, THEY

REFLECT THE SAME SOURCE OF INFORMATION?

A. YES.

Q. SO TURNING YOUR ATTENTION BACK TO 525 -- PWS

525, AFTER YOU TOOK A LOOK AND DETERMINED THAT MR. TAPIA'S

CLAIMS DIDN'T MAKE SENSE TO YOU, THEN WHAT -- THEN DID YOU

DECIDE TO CALCULATE FOR YOURSELF WHAT THE CROP WATER DUTIES

WERE? LET ME RESTATE THAT QUESTION. AFTER YOU DETERMINED

THAT MR. TAPIA'S CLAIMS DIDN'T MAKE SENSE, WHAT STEPS DID

YOU TAKE NEXT?

A. WELL, THE FIRST STEP WAS TO DETERMINE WHAT AREA

WAS ACTUALLY IRRIGATED AND THAT'S WHAT WE'D JUST GONE

THROUGH AND THAT'S HOW I GOT THE ACREAGE TOTALS. THE NEXT

STEP WAS THEN TO DETERMINE WHAT CROP WAS GROWN ON THE AREA

THAT WAS IRRIGATED. AND IF YOU RECALL FROM YEAR 2001, I

THINK IT WAS, THERE WERE CROPS GROWING IN THE UPPER
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LEFT-HAND CORNER AND THE RIGHT-HAND CORNER, BUT THAT WOULD

HAVE SHOWN AT DIFFERENT TIMES OF THE YEAR. SO IN ANY

EVENT, WHAT WE DID, WE TOOK THE TOTAL -- OR WHAT I DID, I

TOOK THE TOTAL IRRIGATED ACREAGE USED THE KERN COUNTY

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER'S PESTICIDE REPORTS TO DETERMINE

THE CROPPING PATTERN.

Q. IF I CAN INTERRUPT YOU THERE. WOULD YOU TURN

TO PWS 538 AND 539?

A. YES, I HAVE IT.

Q. AND WHAT ARE THOSE?

A. THOSE ARE COPIES OF THE DATA THAT WE GOT FROM

THE KERN COUNTY AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER FOR THE PESTICIDE

REPORT.

Q. SO THOSE WERE THOSE PES'T'ICIDE REPORTS YOU JUST

MENTIONED?

A. CORRECT. SO TH05E WOULD BE FOR TAPIA, YEAR

2000, WHICH YOU CAN SEE IN THE UPPER LEFT-HAND CORNER. AND

THEN THE AREA CROSS HATCHED IS THE AREA FOR WHICH HE

APPLIED FOR A PERMIT. AND IF YOU LOOK DOWN IN THE BOX ON

THE RIGHT-HAND SIDE, YOU'LL SEE THAT THE "COMM" IS THE TYPE

OF CROP AND IT SAYS CORN FOR HUMAN CONSUMPTION, THAT'S

SWEET CORN. AND THEN DOWN AT THE BOTTOM IT SAYS, ACREAGE

PERMITTED, 40 ACRES. SO THAT WAS TfiE BASIC DATA THAT I

USED IN ORDER TO BREAK DOWN EACH YEAR BY CROP AND BY AREA.

Q. SO AFTER YOU TOOK A LOOK AT THOSE PERMITTING

PESTICIDE REPORTS, WHAT NEXT STEP DID YOU TAKE?

A. WELL, THE NEXT STEP WAS TO INTEGRATE THE

PESTICIDE REPORT TO GET ME THE CROP PATTERN BACK INTO
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EXHIBIT 523.

Q. AND HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE CROP WATER DUTY

FOR SWEET CORN AND PUMPKINS?

A. I DID A DOCUMENT REVIEW OF THE VARIOUS FILES

~ THAT I HAVE ON CONSUMPTIVE USE AND EVAPOTRANSPIRATION

DESIGN PLANS. AND THE PUBLICATIONS THAT I HAD ARE LISTED

HERE: UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, VIRGINIA COOPERATIVE, NEW

SOUTH WALES, LAND USE AND WATER. THESE ARE JUST KIND OF AN

OVERALL LISTIPdG OF THE VARIOUS DOCUMErdTS THAT I REVIEWED

AND I GOT VARIOUS VALUES OFF OF THOSE DOCUMENTS. THE ONE

FOR NEW SOUTH WALES WAS INTERESTING BECAUSE THEY -- THEY

GAVE THE NUMBER IN MEGA LITERS PER HECTARE, SO I HAD TO

CONVERT THAT TO ACREAGE WHICH WAS A TEST OF MY CONVERSION

SKILLS. BUT ANYWAY, IN NEW SOUTH WALES, WHICH IS 32

DEGREES SOUTH LATITUDE, ABOUT AS FAR SOUTH OF THE EQUATOR

AS CALIFORNIA IS NORTH, THAT WOULD INDICATE A VERY SIMILAR

CLIMATIC CONDITION, AND BECAUSE IT IS A COASTAL STATE AS

WELL AS INLAND, THEY GAVE A RANGE OF -- I WON'T NOT USE THE

MEGA LITERS, BUT 1.3 ACRE FEET PER ACRE TO 2.6 ACRE FEET

PER ACRE, WHICH IS ON THE FAR RIGHT—HAND SIDE THERE UNDER

THAT PARTICULAR BOX. AND SO I FIGURED THE 1.3 WAS PROBABLY

NOT GOING TO BE TYPICAL OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY, PROBABLY BE

MORE COASTAL, SO I USED THE 2.6 FOR THE PUMPKINS THERE.

AND THEN IN CORN, I HAD QUITE A LOT OF

INFORMATION -- I SHOULDN'T SAY A LOT, BUT I HAD SOME

INFORMATION FROM THE ARIZONA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION SERVICE

AT MESA AND THEY GIVE A CONSUMPTIVE USE FOR CORN OF 19.6.

AND I'M NOW LOOKING AT THE FIFTH BOX DOWN WHERE THERE'S A
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BIG -- WHERE IT SAYS SWEET CORN, 19.6, THAT'S INCHES. AND

THEN I ADDED A COLUMN MYSELF, I.E., MEANING IRRIGATION

EFFICIENCY WHICH WOULD GET IT UP TO 26.1 INCHES WHICH

CONVERTS TO 2.2 ACRE FEET. AND THAT WOULD, AGAIN, BE MY

OPINION OF THE APPLIED WATER DEMAND FOR SWEET CORN IN THE

ANTELOPE VALLEY. NOW, THIS WAS ALL WHAT WE CALL DRY LAB

WORK, MEANING I JUST DID RESEARCH AND LOOKED AROUND AND

FOUND WHAT I COULD.

SO THEN I CALL TriE liCD EnTEPdSION FOLKS AND --

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA AT DAVIS EXTENSION FOLKS AND

TALKED TO BEN FABER. AND HE'S THE EXTENSION SPECIALIST FOR

VENTURA COUNTY AND HE GAVE ME SOME VALUES ALSO FOR VENTURA

COUNTY, BUT WHEN I TOLD HIM THOSE WERE WAY LOW COMPARED TO

WHAT I WAS PLANNING TO USE FOR THE ANTELOPE VALLEY, HE SAID

THAT'S RIGHT. THE ANTELOPE VALLEY HAS A DIFFERENT CLIMATE

THAN VENTURA COUNTY. SO AS A RESULT OF ALL THAT

INFORMATION, MY CONCLUSION WERE FOR SWEET CORN I WOULD USE

2.2 ACRE FEET AND FOR PUMPKINS, 2.6. I ALSO FACTORS INTO

THE FACT THAT SWEET CORN IS IN THE GROUND FOR A SHORTER

PERIOD OF TIME THAN PUMPKINS. IT'S A 10 TO 15 WEEKS

GROWING SEASON AND PUMPKINS ARE TYPICALLY FROM 13 TO 15

WEEKS. IT ALL MADE SENSE THAT PUMPKINS WOULD HAVE A HIGHER

UNIT WATER DEMAND THAN CORN.

Q. SO THE RESULT OF ALL THAT EFFORT JUST DESCRIBED

WAS THAT SWEET CORN WOULD USE 2.2 ACRE FEET PER ACRE ON

MR. TAPIA'S LAND AND PUMPKINS WOULD USE 2.6 ACRE FEET PER

ACRE ON MR. TAPIA'S LAND?

A. I WOULDN'T CONSTRAIN IT TO MR. TAPIA, I WOULD
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SAY THE ANTELOPE VALLEY.

Q. THE ANTELOPE VALLEY. BUT MR. TAPIA'S LAND IS

IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY?

A. CORRECT.

Q. SO AFTER DOING THAT WORK, YOU MULTIPLIED THE

AMOUNT OF FARMED ACRES BY MR. TAPIA TO COME TO THE TOTAL.

AMOUNTS HE USED HISTORICALLY AND THAT'S WHAT WE SEE ON 523,

PWS 523?

A. YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

MR. WEEKS: NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. CROSS-EXAMINATION?

MS. BRENNAN: I WOULD LIKE TO CROSS EXAMINE, YOUR

HONOR.

MR. WEEKS: YOUR HONOR, IF I COULD OBJECT, IF

MR. TAPIA'S COUNSEL IS HERE, I WOULll LIKE --

THE COURT: WHAT WOULD YOU LIKE?

MR. WEEKS: -- TO CROSS EXAMINE.

MS. BRENNAN: DID HE HAVE NOTICE THAT THE EXPERT WAS

GOING TO BE ON THE STAND?

THE COURT: I AM HAPPY TO HAVE ANY COUNSEL WHO

WISHES TO CROSS-EXAMINE HIS COUNSEL OR OTHERWISE, BUT

SOMEBODY'S GOT TO STAND UP AND SAY, I WANT TO

CROSS-EXAMINE.

MR. WEEKS: THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: SO FAR I'M ONLY HEARING ONE, SEEING ONE.

///

///

///
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. BRENNAN:

Q. THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. BEEBY.

A. GOOD AFTERNOON.

Q. I'M GOING TO START WITH SOME QUESTIONS RELATING

TO YOUR TESTIMONY REGARDING TAPIA, IF THAT'S ALL RIGHT,

JUST THE TESTIMONY YOU JUST GAVE.

A. YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NOW, IT WAS ,YOUR OPINION THAT

MR. TAPIA OVERSTATED HIS -- THE AMOUNT OF WATER THAT HE WAS

ACTUALLY USING; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. IT SEEMS NOT TO MAKE SENSE TO ME THAT THE

ACREAGE -- THE AMOUNT OF WATER THAT HE REPORTEDLY PAID FOR

FROM AVEK WAS ALL USED ON HIS 130 ACRES AND ONLY A PORTION

OF WHICH WAS FARMED.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND YOU MENTIONED THAT YOU ANALYZED

THE TAPIA DECLARATION WITH RESPECT TO YOUR ANALYSIS?

A. THAT'S WHAT -- THAT WAS MY STARTING POINT. I

THINK IT WAS A DECLARATION.

Q. OKAY. AND DID YOU HAVE TO USE YOUR EXPERTISE

TO ANALYZE THE TAPIA DECLARATION?

A. WELL, I THINK SO, YES. HOW -- I DON'T KNOW HOW

ELSE I WOULD HAVE EVALUATED IT.

Q. OKAY. AND TO ARRIVE AT YOUR OPINION THAT TAPIA

OVERSTATED HIS WATER USAGE, DID YOU HAVE TO USE YOUR SKILLS

AND KNOWLEDGE AS AN EXPERT?

THE COURT: COUNSEL, I DON'T THINK THAT WAS THE
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TESTIMONY. I THINK WHAT HE SAID WAS THAT THE AMOUNT OF

WATER INDICATED WOULD NOT BE NECESSARY FOR THE CROP THAT HE

UNDERSTOOD WAS BEING PLANTED. I DON'T THINK HE OPINED

CONCERNING MR. TAPIA'S CREDIBILITY OR ANYTHING ELSE OF THAT

NATURE, SO YOU MIGHT FOCUS ON WHAT HE ACTUALLY TESTIFIED TO

HERE.

MS. BRENNAN: OKAY. WELL, TtANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

THEN I MISUNDERSTOOD. I THOUGHT IT WAS YOUR OPINION, BASED

OPT WHAT HE TESTIFIED AT HIS DEFOSITION APdD HERE IPd COURT,

THAT MR. TAPIA OVERSTATED FAR IN EXCESS OF WHAT HE ACTUALLY

~REw.

MR. ZIMMER: RELEVANCE -- OBJECTION; RELEVANCE.

THE COURT: I'M GOING TO SUSTAIN THAT. THE QUESTION

IS WAS THE -- IN THIS EXPERT'S OPINION, WHEN HE EVALUATED

THE MATERIALS THAT WERE AVAILABLE TO DETERMINE HOW MUCH

WATER WAS REQUIRED FOR THE CROPS THAT THIS WITNESS

UNDERSTOOD WERE BEING PLANTED, WHETHER IT WAS IN EXCESS OF

WHAT WAS NEEDED.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: ALL RIGHT. I'LL MOVE ON,

THEN, YOUR HONOR. COULD AN ATTORNEY WITHOUT YOUR EXPERTISE

HAVE CONDUCTED THE ANALYSIS YOU DID WITH RESPECT TO TAPIA'S

CLAIMED WATER USAGE?

MR. WEEKS: OBJECTION; CALLS --

THE COURT: SUSTAINED.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: HOW MANY HOURS DID YOU SPEND

ANALYZING THE TAPIA DATA?

MR. ZIMMER: OBJECTION; RELEVANCE. TAPIA IS NOT

PART OF THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION AT THE PRESENT TIME.
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MS. BRENNAN: YOUR HONOR, THIS GOES TO THE WEIGHT OF

THE TESTIMONY.

THE COURT: WHAT DID YOU SAY, MR. ZIMMER?

MR. ZIMMER: I SAID, OBJECTION; RELEVANCE. TAPIA'S

NUMBERS, AT THIS POINT, HAVE NOTHING TO DO WITH PHYSICAL

SOLUTION OR THE STIPULATED JUDGMENT.

MR. LEMIEUX: I WOULD ALSO OBJECT, YOUR HONOR, ALONG

THOSE LINES BASED ON STANDING CONSISTENT WITH THE MOTION IN

LIMIL~E.

MS. BRENNAN: OFFER OF PROOF, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: WELL, SINCE THE COURT HAS MADE NO

FINDING AND THERE'S NO OFFER FROM ANYBODY THAT -- THAT THE

TAPIA CLAIM, AT THIS POINT, HAS BEEP! ACCEPTED BY ANYBODY,

IT'S NOT PART OF ANY PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT I'M AWARE OF

THAT'S BEING PRESENTED HERE, SO I'LL SUSTAIN THE OBJECTION.

MS. BRENNAN: YOUR HONOR, I'M GOING INTO THIS LINE

OF QUESTIONING SO IT CAN BE COMPARED TO THE ANALYSIS THAT

THIS EXPERT DID, MR. BEEBY, IN CONNECTION WITH 140 LAND

OWNERS AS COMPARED TO THE EFFORT AND EXPERTISE HE APPLIED

TO THE TAPIA DATA.

THE COURT: I'M GOING TO SUSTAIN THE OBJECTION.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: NOW, YOU ANALYZED EXHIBIT 4 TO

THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION, CORRECT?

A. CORRECT.

Q. AND~DO YOU HAVE ANY WAY OF KNOWING IF ANY PARTY

LISTED ON EXHIBIT 4 MISREPORTED THEIR PRODUCTION AMOUNT AS

TAPIA DID, IN YOUR OPINION?

MR. KUHS: OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR; THAT MISSTATES
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TESTIMONY.

THE COURT: DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT QUESTION?

THE WITNESS: NOT EXACTLY BECAUSE TAPIA'S NOT ON

EXHIBIT 4, AS FAR AS I KNOW.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: OKAY, I HAVE HIS ANSWER FROM

HIS DEPOSITION, BUT I CAN TRY TO RESTATE IT IF YOU DON'T

UNDERSTAND IT RIGHT NOW. YOU ANSWERED THAT SAME QUESTION

AT YOUR DEPOSITION IF YOU RECALL.

THE COURT: WELL, ADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE IS DIFFERENT

THAN DEPOSITION TESTIMONY, MS. BRENNAN.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: OKAY. IS THERE -- THERE WAS

AN OBJECTION, THEN? LET ME JUST START OVER, PLEASE.

THE COURT: THERE WAS AN OBJECTION.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: DO YOU HAVE ANY WAY OF KNOWING

WHETHER ANY PARTY LISTED ON EXHIBIT 4 MISREPORTED THEIR

PRODUCTION AMOUNT TO YOU?

A. AS I TESTIFIED WITH REGARD TO EXHIBIT 4, I

LOOKED AT THE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM ACREAGES, I LOOKED AT

THEIR PREPRODUCTION RIGHT, I LQOKED AT THEIR OVERLYING

GROUND WATER RIGHT, AND I LOOKED AT THEIR HISTORICAL

PRODUCTION AND THERE WAS NOTHING THAT JUMPED OUT AT ME AS

NOT MAKING SENSE AND I DESCRIBED AS NOT MAKING SENSE IF

THERE WAS SOMETHING THAT WAS UNUSUALLY HIGH IN TERMS OF

UNIT WATER DEMANDS THAT WOULD NOT MAKE SENSE. BUT IN TERMS

OF SPECIFIC EVALUATION OF EACH INDIVIDUAL LAND OWNER'S

ACREAGE CLAIM OR PUMPED WATER CLAIM, I DID NOT INDIVIDUALLY

LOOK AT THOSE.
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Q. RIGHT. OKAY. SO YOU DID NOT INDEPENDENTLY

INVESTIGATE THE ACCURACY OF THE HISTORICAL NUMBERS THAT.

WERE ON THE EXHIBIT 4 CHART, CORRECT?

MR. WEEKS: OBJECTION; ARGUMENTATIVE. THIS WITNESS

JUST ANSWERED THAT QUESTION AND SAID -- DESCRIBED WHAT HE

DID.

THE COURT: IT IS ARGUMENTATIVE.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SGLUTION iN THIS CASE OTHER THAN EXHIBIT 4?

A. N0.

THE COURT: THE QUERY ON EXHLBIT 4, IS THAT

CONSISTENT WITH THE COURT'S STATEMENT OF DECISION, PARTIAL

STATEMENT OF DECISION IN PHASE FOUR, IF YOU KNOW?

THE WITNESS: I'M NOT SURE I KNOW. I -- I KNOW THE

OBJECTIVE OF THE ADJUDICATION IS TO REDUCE GROUND WATER

PUMPING AND TO BRING THE BASIN INTO BALANCE. AND TO THE

EXTENT OVERLYING PRODUCTION RIGHT IS LESS THAN HISTORICAL

AVERAGE PUMPING, THAT WOULD BE CONSISTENT WITH THAT.

THE COURT: WELL, THE COURT MADE A FINDINGS OF FACT

AS TO HOW MUCH PUMPING WAS OCCURRING BASED UPON THE

DOCUMENTS THAT WERE SUBMITTED, DECLARATIONS AND

STIPULATIONS OF COUNSEL. AND THOSE BECAME FACTUAL, AS FAR

3 AS THIS PROCEEDING IS CONCERNED. AND I'M JUST WONDERING IF

THOSE NUMBERS ARE THE SAME NUMBERS THAT YOU STARTED WITH IN

5 EVALUATING THE PUMPING OF THE VARIOt1S FARMERS OR LAND

6 OWNERS.

7 MR. WEEKS: IF I MIGHT?

8 THE COURT: YES.
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MR. WEEKS: MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT THE DATA ON THE

SPREADSHEET WE DISCUSSED, THAT'S THE DATA ON THE

SPREADSHEET WAS COMPRISED MOSTLY IN THE SENSE THAT SOME

PEOPLE CAME ON AFTER PHASE FOUR DECISION FROM THE PHASE

FOUR AND THAT WAS GOT FROM MR. KUNEY'S LAW.

MR. ZIMMER: THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR. ALL OF THE

INFORMATION THAT WAS PRODUCED IN PHASE FOUR, AND THAT THE

COURT MADE FINDINGS OF FACT ON IS IIJCLUDED ON THE THUMB

DRIVE THAT WAS NOT ONLY PRODUCED TO ALL COUNSEL APED POSTED

ON THE COURT'S WEBSITE, BUT PROVIDED TO MR. KUNEY AND IT

WAS INCLUDED ON THE THUMB DRIVE THAT WENT TO HIS WITNESS.

THE COURT: AND THE ANSWER TO MY SPECIFIC QUESTION

WAS THAT INFORMATION WAS GIVEN TO MR. BEEBY?

MR. ZIMMER: YES.

MR. WEEKS. YES.

THE COURT: AND THAT'S WHAT HE BASES HIS ANALYSIS

ON; IS THAT RIGHT? SO THE AMOUNT CLAIMED TO HAVE BEEN

PRODUCED IS THE AMOUNT THAT THE COURT FOUND, AT THAT TIME,

AS HAVING BEEN PRODUCED?

MS. BRENNAN: YOUR HONOR, THAT'S NOT WHAT THE

TESTIMONY WILL SHOW.

MR. WEEKS: THAT IS MY UNDERSTANDING. I -- THERE

COULD BE SOME ADDITIONAL PARTIES THAT WERE ADDED AFTER THE

PHASE.

THE COURT: OTHER THAN -- OTHER THAN THOSE PARTIES

WHO WERE NOT PRESENT FOR THE PHASE FOUR PROCEEDING.

MR. WEEKS: MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT THE DATA GIVEN

BY THE LAND OWNER ATTORNEYS IS CONSISTENT WITH PHASE FOUR
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AND THE DECLARATIONS THAT WERE FILED, SO IT'S MY

UNDERSTANDING.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: SO MR. BEEBY, DID YOUR

ANALYSIS GO BEYOND THE YEARS 2011 AND 2012 AS FAR AS AMOUNT

OF PRODUCTION OF THE PARTIES LISTED ON EXHIBIT 4?

A. BEYOND? I DON'T THINK SO. YOU MEAN FORWARD OR

BACKWARD OR?

Q. ANY OTriER YEARS OTHEn T_'~AN THOSE TWO YEARS?

A. N0.

Q. SO YOU DID NOT RELY AT ALL ON ANY YEARS FROM

2000 AND 2004 AS FAR AS INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE PARTIES

IN EXHIBIT 4 IN REACHING YOUR CONCLUSION IN THIS CASE?

A. I ONLY RELIED ON THE DA~i'A THAT WERE IN EXHIBIT

4. AND THE ONLY THING I DID TO EXHIBIT 4 WERE TO ADD THOSE

COLUMNS THAT I DISCUSSED.

Q. RIGHT, BUT IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOUR

ANALYSIS WAS BASED SOLELY ON THE YEARS 2011 AND 2012 AS TO

THE REASONABLENESS OR WHETHER IT MADE SENSE TO YOU AS FAR

AS HOW MUCH WATER THE PARTIES WERE CLAIMING TO HAVE USED?

A. NO. I THINK I TESTIFIED PREVIOUSLY THAT I TOOK

AN AVERAGE PUMPAGE FOR ALL THE PERIOD THE 2000 THROUGH 2004

AND INCLUDED 2011 AND '12 IN THAT AVERAGE NUMBER.

Q. SO YOUR AVERAGE NUMBER INCLUDED SEVEN YEARS,

CORRECT?

A. CORRECT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND DID YOU INDEPENDENTLY VISIT OR

VERIFY THE ACTUAL LOCATION AND THE TYPE OF CROP THAT WAS
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BEING USED BY EACH OF THE PARTIES?

A. N0.

Q. AND DID SOME PARTIES NOT TELL YOU WHAT TYPE OF

CROP THEY WERE GROWING?

A. I TOLD YOU I DIDN'T TALK TO ANY OF THE PARTIES.

ALL I HAD, FROM ANY AN INFORMAL STA[•1DPOINT, WERE THE DATA

THAT WERE PRESENTED ON THE EXHIBIT 4 THAT I WAS PROVIDED.

Q. LET ME REPHRASE.

THE CvURT: NOW MS. BRENP~AN, LET ME REMIPID 1'OU THAT

IN TERMS OF THE 'll AND '12 NUMBERS, THOSE ARE FINDINGS OF

FACT THAT THE COURT MADE, OKAY? THOSE ARE IN THE RECORD.

THEY ARE WHAT THEY ARE AND I'M NOT GOING TO AUTHORIZE YOU

TO CROSS-EXAMINE AS TO THOSE NUMBERS.

MS. BRENNAN: THAT'S FINE, YOUR HONOR. I BELIEVE

I'VE ESTABLISHED THROUGH THIS WITNES THOUGH, THAT HE USED

FIVE ADDITIONAL YEARS BEYOND THOSE TWO.

THE COURT: BE SPECIFIC IF YOU'RE GOING TO DO THAT

AND MAKE IT RELEVANT TO THE ISSUE HERE.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: SO GOING BACK TO THE LAST

QUESTION, THE INFORMATION YOU WERE GIVEN REGARDING EXHIBIT

4 AND THE PARTIES' WATER USAGE, DID SOME OF THAT

INFORMATION NOT PROVIDE YOU WITH THE TYPE OF CROP SOME OF

THOSE PARTIES WERE GROWING?

A. THE ONLY INFORMATION I ~IAD REGARDING THE TYPE

OF CROP THAT A PARTICULAR PARTY WAS GROWING WAS PRESENTED

ON EXHIBIT 4 MODIFIED, WHICH IS, OF COURSE, MY

MODIFICATION. AND IN COLUMN B -- SORRY COLUMN R, IT TALKS

ABOUT THE AGRICULTURAL PRODUCT THAT WAS GROWN OR PRODUCED
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BY EACH OF THE PRODUCERS. AND YOU CAN DETERMINE WHAT CROP

IT WAS BY LOOKING AT THAT NUMBER AND THEN COMPARING THAT TO

THE NOTES COLUMN -- IN COLUMN T, WH:CH IS THE RIGHT-HAND

MOST COLUMN ON THAT TABLE.

Q. OKAY. DO YOU RECALL YOUR DEPOSITION BEING

TAKEN ON SEPTEMBER 24, 2015?

A. YES.

Q. OKAY. AND DO YOU RECALL BEING ASKED WHAT TYPE

OF INFORMATION YOU VuERE GIVEN Oil EXHIBIT 4?

A. YES.

Q. OKAY. AND DO YOU RECALL BEING ASKED IF --

WELL, THE SPECIFIC QUESTION WAS, DII) YOU DO ANYTHING WITH

THAT INFORMATION? AND YOUR RESPONSE WAS, I CONSIDERED IT,

BUT AGAIN, THE SPECIFIC UTILIZATION OF THE WATER BY CROP

TIME, FOR EXAMPLE, WAS NOT NECESSARILY PROVIDED?

A. YES, I REMEMBER THAT.

Q. SO IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT FOR EVERY PARTY

LISTED ON EXHIBIT 4, YOU KNEW PRECISELY WHICH CROP THEY

WERE GROWING?

A. NO.

Q. OKAY.

MR. DAVIS: OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR; ASSUMES FACTS NOT

IN EVIDENCE; NOT EVERY PARTY ON EXHIBIT 4 GREW ANYTHING.

THE COURT: WELL, BELATED OBJECTION SO OVERRULED.

MR. WEEKS: YOUR HONOR, JUST CLARIFICATION. COUNSEL

CONTINUES TO USE EXHIBIT 4, BUT WE'RE NOT REFERRING TO AN

EXHIBIT TITLED EXHIBIT 4.

THE COURT: THAT'S CORRECT.



25437

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

MR. WEEKS: SO I'M NOT REALLY SURE WHERE THAT'S

COMING FROM. BUT IT'S EXHIBIT PWS 525, NOT EXHIBIT 4.

THE COURT: WELL --

MR. WEEKS: ALTHOUGH IT HAS EXHIBIT 4 ON THE BOTTOM.

THE COURT: I THOUGHT IT WAS 522.

MR. WEEKS: I'M SORRY, 522, BUT IT'S NOT EXHIBIT 4,

IT'S PWS 522.

THE COURT: THERE'S A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE

DEPGSITION EXHIBITS AND THESE EXHIBITS NUMBER WISE,

CORRECT?

I DON'T KNOW WHAT 522 WAS AT THE DEPOSITION. DO

YOU?

MR. WEEKS: I DON'T RECALL. I DON'T RECALL.

THE WITNESS: I DO.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: WHEN I WAS REFERRING TO

EXHIBIT 4, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT -- AND WAS IT YOUR

TESTIMONY RELATING TO EXHIBIT 4 TO THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL

SOLUTION OR WAS IT SOMETHING ELSE?

A. I THOUGHT YOU WERE REFERRING TO THE THING THAT

I USED AT MY DEPOSITION AND THAT IS PRESENTED AS EXHIBIT

522 HERE, WHICH DOWN AT THE BOTTOM SAYS EXHIBIT 4 MODIFIED,

MEANING MODIFIED BY ME.

Q. CORRECT. SO THE RECORD, I SUPPOSE, SHOULD

REFLECT THAT ANY TIME YOU WERE BEING ASKED ABOUT EXHIBIT 4

IT'S EXHIBIT 4 MODIFIED AND TRIAL EXHIBIT 522. IS THAT --

A. CORRECT. YES.

Q. OKAY. THANK YOU. AND 1OU DO NOT HAVE ANY

OPINIONS WITH RESPECT TO HOW THE WATER WAS USED, CORRECT?
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MR. ZIMMER: OBJECTION; VAGUE; MISSTATES TESTIMONY.

MR. WEEKS: OBJECTION; HE TESTIFIED AS TO --

THE COURT: SUSTAINED.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: AT YOUR DEPOSITION, YOU WERE

ASKED, SO IT FAIR TO SAY THAT WITH RESPECT -- I'M READING

PAGE 29, LINE 1 OF THE DEPOSITION, "SO IS IT FAIR TO SAY

THAT WITH RESPECT TO HOW THE WATER WAS USED, YOU'RE NOT

ARRIVING AT ANY OPINIONS REGARDING THAT? ANSWER: I DON'T

THINS IT'S QUITE THAT BROnD, N0."

MR. ZIMMER: SAME OBJECTION. IT'S NOT IMPEACHMENT.

IT'S VAGUE AS TO WHAT'S REFERRING TO.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: DID YOU DO ANY EVALUATION OF

ONE PARTY'S USE RELATIVE TO ANOTHER PARTY'S USE AND

DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT IT'S REASONABLE TO HAVE THAT

PARTICULAR USE?

MR. WEEKS: OBJECTION; OUTSIDE THE SCOPE OF HIS

OPINION.

MR. LEMIEUX: OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR. I'D LIKE TO

REASSERT THE STANDING OBJECTION AS WELL. COMPARING THE

USES I THINK GOES BEYOND THE SCOPE OF WHAT THE CLASS CAN DO

HERE.

THE COURT: WELL, THIS WITNESS'S TESTIMONY IS THAT

HE REVIEWED THE VARIOUS DECLARATIONS AND EXHIBITS AND OTHER

MATERIALS IN ORDER TO DETERMINE WHE`rHER OR NOT TWO THINGS:

WHETHER THE CLAIMED WATER USAGE THAT WAS STIPULATED TO AND

AGREED TO BY THE PARTIES HERE WAS REASONABLE. HE TESTIFIED

THAT IN HIS OPINION IT WAS AND IT MADE SENSE WITH ONE



25439

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

EXCEPTION. THAT IS, A PARTY WHO IS NOT PART OF THE

STIPULATION WHO IS MAKING AN INDEPE~?DENT CLAIM, AND THAT'S

THE TAPIA CLAIM, FOR WATER RIGHTS IN THIS ADJUDICATION.

AND IT SEEMS TO ME THAT THE REAL PROBLEM HERE IS THE SCOPE

OF WHATEVER INTEREST THE WILLIS CLASS HAS IN THEIR OWN

WATER RIGHTS, SO THAT IN THE EVENT THAT YOU WERE ABLE TO

ESTABLISH, AND I DON'T QUITE SEE HOW THIS REALLY IS GOING

TO HAPPEN, BUT THAT THERE'S REALLY NO OVERDRAFT AND,

THEREFORE, THEY SHOULD BE EPJTITLED TO PUMP P~ITHOUT APdY TYPE

OF FEE OR OTHER ARRANGEMENT AT THIS POINT, BUT THEY'RE

NEVERTHELESS CHALLENGING THE AMOUNT OF WATER ALLOCATED TO

THESE VARIOUS PEOPLE IN THE AGREEMENT. AND THE FACT THAT

THE COURT HAS FOUND THAT THOSE NUMBERS WHICH WERE PUMPED IN

2011, 2012, WHICH ARE THE SAME NUMBERS THAT ARE STIPULATED

TO AS THE BEGINNING POINT, I BELIEVE, FOR THESE PARTIES,

PROVIDES THEM WITH THE RIGHT TO EST[-~BLISH THAT THEY'RE

BEING ALLOCATED TOO MUCH WATER. THAT IS, THE PARTIES TO

THE ADJUDICATION BECAUSE IT IMPACTS THEIR RIGHTS. AND I

THINK THEY'RE ENTITLED TO GO INTO THAT TO SOME EXTENT, BUT

IT'S GOT TO BE LIMITED. AND THIS EXAMINATION, SO FAR.

SEEMS TO ME TO STRIKE FAR AFIELD OF THE REAL ISSUES THAT

THEY'RE CONCERNED WITH.

SO MS. BRENNAN, MAYBE YOU WANT TO MAKE AN OFFER OF

PROOF AS TO WHAT IT IS YOU INTEND TO ESTABLISH IN YOUR

EXAMINATION.

MS. BRENNAN: WELL, WE INTEND TO ESTABLISH THAT THIS

EXPERT DID NOT APPLY HIS EXPERTISE IN A TRUE ANALYSIS OF

THE UNDERLYING USES OF THE 140 STIPULATING PARTIES, THAT HE
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APPLIED HIS EXPERTISE TO TAPIA AND SPENT MANY HOURS AND

USED MANY TECHNICAL DEVICES TO DETERMINE THAT THE WATER

USAGE WAS NOT -- DID NOT COMPORT WITH THE REPORTED WATER

USAGE OF TAPIA. AND HE DID NOT USE ANY OF THOSE SKILLS AND

EXPERTISE AS TO THE 140 PARTIES AND THEREFORE, THE WEIGHT

OF THE EVIDENCE OF -- FROM THIS EXPERT, ALTHOUGH HE'S VERY

QUALIFIED, IT SHOULD NOT BE GREAT AT ALL, IF ANY WEIGHT

SHOULD BE GIVEN TO HIS OPINION WITH RESPECT TO THOSE

PARTIES GPI EXHIBIT 4. THAT IS CL'R OFFER OF PROOF.

THE COURT: BUT FOR THE MOST PART, ALL OF THOSE WERE

FOUND BY THE COURT TO BE APPROPRIATE NUMBERS BASED UPON THE

SUBMISSIONS TO THE COURT WHICH WERE STIPULATED TO AND

WITHOUT OBJECTION. THAT'S THE RULE OF THE CASE.

MS. BRENNAN: RIGHT, AS TO ONLY THE AMOUNT OF

PUMPING IN 2011 AND 2012, BUT THE FINDINGS AND THE LEGAL

MATTERS GOING TO A PHYSICAL SOLUTION GO FAR BEYOND THAT AND

THIS EXPERT DOES NOT HAVE ANY TESTIMONY TO SUPPORT A

FINDING BEYOND WHAT IS ALREADY STIPULATED TO BY THE

PARTIES.

THE COURT: THAT'S NOT WHAT I HEARD FROM HIM. HE

TALKED ABOUT HOW HE CONCLUDED THAT THESE WERE REASONABLE

NUMBERS FOR THE TYPE OF CROPS THAT GdFRE BEING USED, WHAT

THE CROP DUTIES WERE FOR THESE PARTICULAR CROPS AND THE

AMOUNT OF ACREAGE INVOLVED. HE DID A VERY CAREFUL ANALYSIS

TO SEE IF IT MADE SENSE. HE IS AN EXPERT. HE'S BOTH AN

EXPERT IN AGRICULTURAL ENGINEERING, WHICH OBVIOUSLY ALWAYS

INCLUDES CROP DUTIES AND THE LIKE, SO I -- AND I FOUND HE

WAS QUALIFIED AND I FIND HIM TO BE A CREDIBLE WITNESS. .
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MS. BRENNAN: ABSOLUTELY. WE DON'T DISPUTE THAT,

YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: I DIDN'T HEAR WHAT YOU JUST SAID.

MS. BRENNAN: WE DON'T DISPUTE ANY OF WHAT YOU JUST

SAID, YOUR HONOR. WHAT THE OFFER 0~' PROOF IS, HOWEVER, HE

DID NOT APPLY THAT UNDISPUTED EXPERTISE TO THE 140 PARTIES.

HE JUST TOOK THE DATA AS IS AND DID NOT ANALYZE IT.

THE COURT: WELL, THAT'S NOT CORRECT. THAT'S NOT

WHAT HE TESTIrIED T0. HE DID ANALYZE IT. I HEARD HIr1

TESTIFY THAT HE JUST -- HE ANALYZED IT AND IT MADE SENSE.

IT WAS A REASONABLE ALLOCATION CLAIMED FOR THE PARTICULAR

CROPS THAT WERE BEING USED WITH A SINGLE EXCEPTION OF

TAPIA, AT THIS POINT. AND IT JUST SEEMS TO ME THAT YOU ARE

FAR AFIELD FROM THE REAL ISSUE THAT YOU SHOULD BE CONCERNED

WITH. AND PART OF THAT IS GOING TO COME UP AS A LEGAL

MATTER AS TO WHETHER OR NOT YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO DISPUTE

SOME OF THE STIPULATED AGREEMENT BETWEEN THESE PARTIES AND

WHETHER OR NOT THOSE AFFECT YOUR STIPULATED JUDGMENT. YOU

DO HAVE A JUDGMENT, YOU'RE NOT PARTY TO THE LAWSUIT

INVOLVING THE LAND OWNERS.- THAT'S A TOTALLY SEPARATE

LAWSUIT. BECAUSE IT'S A CONSOLIDATED ACTION, HOWEVER, AND

BECAUSE YOU STIPULATED AND AGREED THAT YOUR STIPULATION

WOULD BECOME PART OF THE PHYSICAL SC>LUTION, TO THE EXTENT

THAT IT IS CONSISTENT WITH IT, THAT REALLY IS A

DETERMINATION THAT THE COURT IS GOING TO HAVE TO MAKE AS TO

WHETHER IT IS OR NOT. IF IT ISN'T, THEN IT MAY BE THAT

THERE ARE SOME DIFFICULTIES THAT THE PARTIES ARE GOING TO

HAVE TO DEAL WITH ABOUT HOW TO GET THEIR OWN SOLUTION AND
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RESOLUTION APPROVED, BUT THAT'S A DIFFERENT ISSUE THAN WHAT

YOU'RE GOING AT NOW. AND IT SEEMS TO ME THAT YOU SHOULD BE

VERY HAPPY TO HEAR WHAT HE JUST SAID ABOUT THE TAPIA CASE

BECAUSE THAT REDUCES THE AMOUNT OF WATER, IF HIS POSITION

IS AND OPINION IS CORRECT, TO THE EXTENT THAT TAPIA BECOMES

PART OF ANY SOLUTION HERE.

MS. BRENNAN: . YOUR HONOR, AS FAR AS AN EXPERT

ANALYZING THAT UNDERLYING DATA -- I'M NOT SAYING HE DIDN'T

ANALYZE ALL THE DATA, HE DID P~GT INVESTIGATE AS I-IE DID IN

THE TAPIA SITUATION. AND I AGREE WITH YOU, AS FAR AS A

LEGAL POINT, OBVIOUSLY, WE ARE OVERLYING LAND OWNERS AND WE

HAVE A RIGHT AND A PRIORITY ABOVE APPROPRIATORS, ETCETERA,

BUT WE DON'T NEED TO GET INTO THAT NOW. BUT WE DO HAVE A

RIGHT TO ANALYZE AND CROSS-EXAMINE REGARDING ALLEGED

REASONABLE AND BENEFICIAL USE AS TO THE PERMANENT

ALLOCATION IN THE PROPOSED PHYSICAL SOLUTION WHICH GOES ON

17 YEARS AND THEN THERE'S THE LOOK TO SEE IF IT SHOULD BE

ADJUSTED THAT IS THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD --

THE COURT: DON'T GET INTO THAT ARGUMENT BECAUSE

WE'RE WELL REMOVED FROM THAT AT THIS POINT. THE ONLY THING

WE'RE TALKING ABOUT IS THIS WITNESS'S TESTIMONY,

SPECIFICALLY AS TO HIS EVALUATION OF THE VARIOUS CLAIMS OF

PUMPING THAT HAVE BEEN MADE BY THE PARTIES HERE, MOST OF

WHICH HAVE ALREADY BEEN APPROVED ANU FOUND TO BE TRUE BY

THE COURT AND PURSUANT TO STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT. AND

I'M NOT GOING TO REOPEN THAT. THAT'S THE RULE OF THE CASE

AND THE RULE THAT THIS COURT MADE AFTER PHASE FOUR --

MS. BRENNAN: RIGHT.
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THE COURT: -- SO WHAT YOU'RE REALLY DOING IS

GETTING INTO THAT AND I'M GOING TO SUSTAIN AN OBJECTION TO

THAT. . NOW, IF YOU WANT TO TALK ABOUT THE PARTIES WHO HAVE

NOT BEEN PART OF PHASE FOUR, THAT'S A DIFFERENT ISSUE.

THAT HAS TO BE ESTABLISHED BY THEM.

MS. BRENNAN: RIGHT. WELL, IT'S THE WILLIS CLASS

POSITION, AND I THINK YOU UNDERSTAND, THAT ANYTHING OVER

AND ABOVE THE AMOUNT OF PUMPING IN 2011 AND 2012 IS NOT LAW

OF THE CASE APdD MUST BE PRO`JEP1 I-I~RE IN COURT.

THE COURT: THE NUMBERS THAT WERE STIPULATED TO WERE

AGREED TO BE THE NUMBERS THAT WERE TO BE PLACED INTO THE

PROPOSED GLOBAL, SO—CALLED, SETTLEMENT, OKAY?

THE WITNESS: BUT THERE WAS NO FINDING --

THE COURT: AND IT'S 2011, 2012 THAT'S THE STARTING

POINT WITH THE RECOGNITION, AND IT'S PRETTY CLEAR THAT

ULTIMATELY THE WATER MASTER IS GOIN" TO BE EVALUATING,

DURING THE TWO—YEAR PERIOD, THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE

CLAIMED PUMPING. THEY'RE GOING TO BE LOOKING AT IT FROM

MULTIPLE STANDPOINTS AND THAT HAS TO HAPPEN IN ORDER FOR

THERE TO BE A RAMP DOWN PERIOD. SO I MEAN, I JUST THINK

THAT YOU'RE GETTING VERY PREMATURE HERE AND I REALLY THINK

THAT YOUR QUESTIONING OF THIS WITNESS IS MISPLACED. I GOT

SOME LAWYERS HERE WHO WANT TO SAY SOMETHING. I ASSUME

THAT'S WHY YOU'RE STANDING UP. ALL RIGHT, MR. JOYCE.

MR. JOYCE: YOUR HONOR, BOB JOYCE ON BEHALF OF

DIAMOND FARMING. I THINK IT WOULD BE IMPORTANT TO TAKE

NOTE -- REFERENCE TO THIS WITNESS'S TESTIMONY THAT DURING

THE RESOLUTION OF THE SETTLEMENT, EVERYBODY VETTED



25444

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

29

25

2E

27

28

EVERYBODY ELSE'S NUMBERS JUST AS IN PHASE FOUR WE ALL

VETTED EACH OTHER'S NUMBERS DURING THAT PROCESS AS WELL.

THE ONLY ISSUE HE TESTIFIED TO HERE THAT HAS ANY BEARING

WHATSOEVER IS THAT HE OPINED AS TO A NEW CLAIM BY A PARTY

WHO WAS NOT BEFORE THE COURT DURING PHASE FOUR AND WHO IS

NOT YET A PART OF THE RESOLUTION, BASICALLY MAYBE TO SOME

EXTENT SHINING LIGHT ON WHY THEY'RE NOT. THAT'S MY

COMMENT.

MS. BnEP1PJAN: YOUR HONOR, I MOVE TO STRIY.E THAT --

WHAT MR. JOYCE JUST SAID. HE'S NOT UNDER OATH, HE CAN'T

TESTIFY AND IT'S JUST IMPROPER PROCEDURE FOR A TRIAL.

THE COURT: I UNDERSTAND THAT TO $E A REPRESENTATION

AS AN OFFICER OF THE COURT AS TO WHT~T TRANSPIRED BETWEEN

COUNSEL. IT WILL STAY FOR THAT PURPOSE. MR. ZIMMER.

MR. ZIMMER: BRIEFLY, YOUR HONOR. NO. 1, MR. BEEBY

TESTIFIED. THAT HE LOOKED AT THESE NUMBERS ON AN ACREAGE

BASIS AND WITH A CROP DUTY BASED UPON SOME TYPE OF USE.

AND HE FOUND -- HE REVIEWED ALL THOSE NUMBERS FIRST AND

THEN DETERMINED WHETHER A FURTHER EXAMINATION WAS NECESSARY

AND FOUND IT WAS NOT. ON TAPIA, THE DIFFERENCE WAS THAT

WHEN HE LOOKED AT THAT, IT DID NOT MAKE SENSE THAT'S WHY HE

MADE THE INQUIRY FURTHER. SECOND POINT IS THAT WHAT WE'RE

TALKING ABOUT IS A PHYSICAL SOLUTION THAT RAMPS DOWN.

CURRENT PUMPING TO SAFE YIELD. THE COURT'S FOUND SAFE

YIELD OF 823 NATIVE SAFE YIELD, IT RAMPS DOWN TO SAFE

YIELD. SO THE QUESTION WAS, IN PHASE FOUR, WHAT IS THE

CURRENT PUMPING, 2011, 2012? THAT'S ALL WE NEED. WE DONT

NEED TO BE INTO SEVEN MORE YEARS. 2011 AND 2012 WAS
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ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE, THE COURT MADE FINDINGS AND THAT'S

WHAT THE WITNESS NEEDS TO BE ABLE TO SHOW THAT IN THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION IT WAS CUT BACK SUBSTANTIALLY TO MAKE THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION WORK.

THE COURT: I THINK THAT'S KIND OF WHAT I SAID, BUT

I'M NOT SURE WHERE YOU'RE GOING WITH THIS AT THIS POINT OR

WHERE TO GO FOR YOU, BUT IT SEEMS TO ME THAT WE'VE TAKEN

ENOUGH TIME ARGUING ABOUT IT, THAT IT`S TIME TO MOVE AHEAD.

MS. BRENNAPI: ALL RIGHT. I ONLY IIAVE A FEW MORE

QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR, IF YOU'LL INDULGE ME.

THE COURT: I WILL INDULGE YOU, MAYBE.

MS. BRENNAN: I WANT --

THE COURT: I WANT TO HEAR THE QUESTION FIRST.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: UNDERSTAND, YOUR HONOR. YOU

DIDN'T LOOK AT WHAT SOURCE -- WHAT THE SOURCE OF THE

PARTIES' WATER WAS, CORRECT?

MR. WEEKS: OBJECTION; ASKED AND ANSWERED AND

ARGUMENTATIVE.

THE COURT: WELL, IT IS ARGUMENTATIVE BUT MAYBE YOU

CAN ANSWER IT ANYWAY.

THE WITNESS: I DIDN'T LOOK AT THE -- WHETHER THE

SOURCE WAS IMPORTED WATER OR NOT BECAUSE I WAS GOING OFF

THE COLUMN HEADINGS ON EXHIBIT 4 AS MODIFIED WHICH SAYS

PUMPING. AND PUMPING, TO ME, MEANS GROUNDWATER PUMPING.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: ALL RIGHT. BUT YOU DO NOT

INDEPENDENTLY KNOW WHETHER THERE WAS ACTUAL PUMPING OR IT

COULD HAVE BEEN WATER THAT WAS IMPORTED?

MR. ZIMMER: IT'S ARGUMENTATIVE.
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THE COURT: THAT'S WHAT HE JUST SAID.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: JUST CONFIRMING IT. YOU

TESTIFIED WITH RESPECT TO TAPIA THAT IN ONE YEAR THERE WAS

NO WATER AVAILABLE FROM AVEK. DO YOU RECALL THAT?

A. I RECALL THAT'S WHAT HE SAID IN HIS DEPOSITION,

YES.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND YOU MAY NOT KNOW THE ANSWER TO

THIS, BUT DO YOU KNOW WHY WATER WAS NOT AVAILABLE TO TAPIA

VIA AVEK?

MR. ZIMMER: RELEVANCE, STANDING.

THE COURT: IT'S IRRELEVANT.

Q. BY MS. BRENNAN: DID YOU USE ANY LAND SAT

PHOTOS TO CONFIRM WATER USAGE AS REPORTED BY THE LAND

OWNERS?

A. ONLY ON TAPIA.

MS. BRENNAN: THAT'S IT. NO FURTHER QUESTIONS.

THANK YOU.

THE COURT: THANK YOU, MS. BRENNAN.

MR. WEEKS: IF THERE'S NO FURTHER EXAMINATION, YOUR

HONOR, I REQUEST EXHIBITS 521 THROUGH 539 BE ADMITTED.

THE COURT: THEY'LL BE ADMITTED.

MR. WEEKS: THANK YOU.

(ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE, EXHIBIT

NOS. PWS 521 THROUGH 539.)

THE COURT: MR. BEEBY, THANK YOU VERY MUCH. I HOPE

YOU HAVE A SAFE DRIVE HOME.
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THE WITNESS: THANK YOU.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. WE'RE GOING TO TAKE OUR

RECESS AT THIS POINT. WE'VE BURDENED THE REPORTER NOW FOR

AN HOUR AND A HALF, SO LET'S TAKE A 15-MINUTE RECESS, THEN

WE'LL RESUME WITH DR. WILLIAMS.

(A SHORT RECESS WAS TAKEN.)

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. FIRST OF ALL, I HAVE SOME

GOOD NEWS. AND THE GOOD NEWS IS WE'LL BE ABLE TO BE IN

SESSION TOMORROW MORNING AT 9:00. WE WILL BE IN DEPARTMENT

48, WHICH IS ON THE FIFTH FLOOR. IT'S IN ROOM 506 -- IS

APPARENTLY IS THE COURTROOM DESIGNATION, BUT IT'S COURTROOM

98. THAT'S WHERE YOU NEED TO BE, FIFTH FLOOR, AND -- AND

WE'LL BE THERE ALL DAY AND WE CAN COME BACK HERE ON

THURSDAY.

MR. DUNN: MAY I INQUIRE, YOUR HONOR? WE HAVE A

SETUP HERE. I TAKE IT WE'LL NEED TO TAKE IT DOWN TONIGHT

BEFORE WE LEAVE?

THE COURT: UNFORTUNATELY, YES, BECAUSE WE HAVE TO

CLEAR THE DECKS AND -- AND IF YOU Wn.NT TO PUT THAT UP IN

48, THAT WILL BE FINE.

MR. DUNN: WOULD WE HAVE TIME THIS AFTERNOON TO DO

IT? I KNOW THINGS TYPICALLY SHUT DOWN HERE, ALL I'M ASKING

IS WHATEVER WE CAN DO TO FACILITATE THE MOVE.

THE COURT: I -- ALL RIGHT. SO TO FACILITATE -- ONE

OF THE THINGS THAT I'M GOING TO DO IN ORDER TO FACILITATE

THIS IS WE'LL BREAK AT 4:00 AND THAT WAY YOU'LL HAVE AN
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OPPORTUNITY TO GET WHATEVER YOU NEED TO UP THERE

INCLUDING --

MR. DUNN: WE'RE GOING TO NOTIFY OUR STAFF TO BE

HERE AT 4:00 TO DO THE MOVE. THANK YOU VERY MUCH.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. NOW WE HAVE DR. WILLIAMS ON

THE STAND AND YOU'RE THROUGH WITH YOUR EXAMINATION; IS THAT

RIGHT?

MR. DUNN: NOT OF DR. WILLIAMS, NO. WE INTERRUPTED

M1DSTkEAM.

THE COURT: I'M SORRY. I MISUNDERSTOOD YOU. ALL

RIGHT. GO AHEAD.

DIRECT EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

BY MR. DUNN:

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, WE'RE IN PWS EXHIBIT 543,

SPECIFICALLY ON SLIDE 55. IT'S UP ON THE SCREEN. I'LL

IDENTIFY IT ON THE RECORD AS AVAA FEDERAL RESERVE WATER

RIGHTS EQUALS 7,600 AND THEN IT GOE~~ ON FROM THERE. NOW

DR. WILLIAMS, WAS THIS SLIDE PREPARED BY YOUR OFFICE OR

UNDER YOUR DIRECTION?

A. YES, IT WAS PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECTION.

Q. OKAY. AND WHAT DOES -- WHAT IS YOUR INTENT OR

WHY DID YOU HAVE THIS SLIDE PREPARED AS PART OF YOUR

ANALYSIS?

A. WELL, WE IN -- IN ORDER TO PUT ALL OF THE

EXTRACTIONS IN THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION, WE PREPARED ALL OF

THE DATA AND THIS SHOWS THE MAP OF '''HE -- WHERE THE FEDERAL

RESERVE RIGHTS OF 7,600 AND -- ACTUALLY THE PUMPING, THE
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UNUSED FEDERAL RESERVE RIGHT IS THE 7,600 MINUS THE 1,348

WHICH WAS REALLOCATED TO PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS. SO THIS

MAP SHOWS THE LOCATION OF THE -- YOU CAN SEE SOME DOTS,

YELLOW DOTS. THEY'RE THE SAME AS WE WERE DISCUSSING BEFORE

MR. BEEBY'S TESTIMONY IS THAT OF AL?., THE EXTRACTIONS AND

THE BASIN IN TERMS OF THE LOCATION AND RELATIVE AMOUNT BY

THESE COLORED CIRCLES.

Q. AND THE YELLOW DOTS REFLECT PUMPING BY WHICH

ENTITY?

A. THE FEDERAL AGENCY.

Q. THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT?

A. UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT, YES. EDWARDS AIR

FORCE-BASE AND THE AIR FORCE PLANT 42.

Q. AND HOW DID YOU RECEIVE THE INFORMATION

REGARDING THE WELL LOCATION AS DEPICTED HERE ON SLIDE 55?

A. WE RECEIVED THOSE, I THINK, FROM BEST, BEST &

KRIEGER.

Q. LET'S DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION NOW TO THE NEXT

SLIDE, SLIDE 56, THE TITLE IS "AVAA FEDERAL RETURN FLOW

LOCATIONS." AND WAS THIS SLIDE PREPARED BY YOU OR UNDER

YOUR DIRECTION?

A. IT WAS PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECTION AND THIS IS

A COMPANION SLIDE TO THE PREVIOUS OBE, WHICH SHOWS FROM THE

FEDERAL PUMPING WHERE THE RETURN FLOWS WERE USED. AND YOU

CAN SEE THAT EVEN THOUGH THE WELLS UP IN THE UPPER RIGHT --

YOU KNOW, THE WELLS WERE DOWN IN THIS AREA HERE, IT WAS

USED -- WE ASSUMED IT WAS USED ON THE BASE UP THERE.

Q. AND SO WE'RE CLEAR ON Tf~E RECORD, YOU'RE USING
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A LASER POINTER TO HIGHLIGHT WELLS THAT ARE LOCATED WHERE?

A. IN THIS AREA HERE, NEAR THIS LINE., YOU CAN SEE

THE GREEN DOTS. AND THEY WERE USED -- WE ASSUME THAT THE

WELLS WERE USED AND WATER WAS PUMPED UP OR USED UP ON THE

BASE.

Q. ALL RIGHT. SO LET'S MOVE TO THE NEXT SLIDE,

SLIDE 57, PLEASE. AND DO WE HAVE HERE WHAT'S MARKED AS --

EXCUSE ME WE HAVE A SLIDE 57. IT'S MARKED "AVAA STATE OF

CALIFORivIA WELLS." I TAKE IT, DR. WILLIA~ZS, THIS SLIDE

DEPICTS, AS PART OF A SEQUENCE OF SLIDES, THE LOCATION OF

WELLS BY PARTIES IN THE PHYSICAL SO:.,UTION PROPOSAL; IS THAT

CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. EACH ONE OF THESE PRODUCERS

HAS THREE SLIDES. ONE SHOWS THE LOCATION OF WELLS, THE

NEXT ONE WILL SHOW THE RELATIVE PUMPING WITH THE COLORED

CIRCLES AND THE THIRD ONE WOULD BE WHERE THE RETURN FLOW

WAS PLACED OR WENT INTO THE BASIN.

Q. AND SLIDE 57 IS -- SHOWS THE WELLS FOR WHICH

ENTITY?

A. STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

Q. AND --

A. SO YOU HAVE WELLS OVER HERE ON THE WEST SIDE

AND THEN ON THE TOP.

Q. THOSE ARE SHOWN BY BLACK DOTS?

A. YES.

Q. AND THE SOURCE OF THIS INFORMATION CAME FROM

WHERE?

A. FROM BEST, BEST & KRIEGER.
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Q. NEXT SLIDE IS SLIDE 58, AND IT IS MARKED OR

IDENTIFIED AS "AVAA STATE OF CALIFORNIA PRODUCTION RIGHTS."

AND DR. WILLIAMS, WHAT IS DEPICTED ~N THIS SLIDE?

A. THIS IS THE RELATIVE PUMPING FROM THOSE WELLS

IN THE PREVIOUS SLIDE. THE YELLOW CIRCLES SHOW THE

PUMPING, BASICALLY THE AMOUNTS ARE ZERO TO 500 ACRE FEET

PER YEAR.

Q. SO I TAKE IT, DR. WILLIAMS, WHAT YOU DID FOR

THE PARTIES IN THE PHYSICAL SGLUTIOI~ IS TO NOT OLdLY PLACE

OR IDENTIFY THE LOCATIbN OF THEIR RESPECTIVE WELLS, BUT YOU

ALSO DETERMINED THE AMOUNT OF PRODUCTION FOR THOSE WELLS?

A, YES.

Q. OKAY. AND EXHIBIT N0. 59 -- EXCUSE ME -- SLIDE

N0. 59 IS MARKED "AVAA STATE OF CALIFORNIA RETURN FLOW

LOCATIONS."

A. YES, THAT'S -- THAT'S CORRECT. AND IT ALSO

SHOWS THE GREEN DOTS WHERE THE RETUFZN FLOW OCCURRED IN THE

IMMEDIATE VICINITY OF THE WELLS THAT WERE PUMPING AND THE

WEST SIDE AND UP IN THE NORTH.

Q. AND SO THE RECORD IS CLEAR, WHEN WE TALK NOW IN

THESE -- IN THIS SLIDE AND THESE RECENT SERIES OF SLIDES

ABOUT RETURN FLOWS, ARE YOU REFERRING TO RETURN FLOWS FROM

NATIVE WATER OR FROM STATE WATER PROJECT USE?

A. THIS WOULD BE JUST PUMPING FROM THE WELLS AND

WHERE -- WHERE THE WELLS WERE USED, THE RETURN FLOW FROM --

USE OF THAT WATER FROM THE WELL.

Q. NEXT SLIDE IS SLIDE 60 AND IT'S MARKED "AVAA

SMALL PUMPER'S PARCELS." AND WHAT DO WE SEE HERE?
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A. WELL, THIS IS -- IT'S KIND OF HARD TO SEE HERE,

BUT THE SMALL PUMPERS -- WE GOT SOME INFORMATION FROM

WILDERMUTH ENGINEERS ON PARCEL LOCATION OF THIS -- ALL THE

SMALL PUMPERS AND WE ALSO GOT INFOR:",ATION ON IMPROVED

PARCELS, WHICH WE ASSUMED IF THEY WERE IMPROVED, THAT THEY

WERE GOING TO BE USING GROUNDWATER. SO WITH ALL OF THE

SMALL PUMPER PARCELS THAT HAVE IMPROVEMENTS, THAT'S WHAT'S

SHOWN HERE BY ALL OF THE YELLOW SQUARES AND AREAS.

Q. ALL RIGHT. APED NEXT SLIDE IS SLIDE 61.

A. YEAH, THE SECOND IS -- ALSO SHOWS THEN OF THE

PRODUCTION RIGHTS FROM THE SMALL PUMPERS OF 3806.4 WHERE WE

PUT THOSE WELLS IN THE MODEL, WHICH IF THE PARCEL HAD

IMPROVEMENTS, THEN WE ASSUMED THAT THEY IMPROVED IT USING A

WELL.

Q. OKAY. AND THEN THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 62.

A. YEAH, IT'S -- IT JUST SHOWS WHERE THE --

BASICALLY THE RETURN FLOW FROM PUMPING WAS ASSUMED TO OCCUR

IN THE VICINITY OF THE WELL WHERE IT WAS PUMPED.

Q. ALL RIGHT. AND SO WE'RE CLEAR, 62 IS MARKED

"AVAA SMALL PUMPERS RETURN FLOW LOCATIONS."

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. NOW, THERE'S A NOTE NEAP THE BOTTOM OF THIS

SLIDE THAT INDICATES APPLICATION EVENLY AND ACROSS ALL WELL

LOCATIONS. WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY THAT?

A. WELL, WHEN THE WELL, THE TOTAL 3808.4, WE

REALLY DIDN'T KNOW THE EXACT PUMPING FROM EACH WELL, BUT WE

DID KNOW THE NUMBER OF IMPROVED PARCELS, SO WE DISTRIBUTED

THAT EQUALLY ACROSS ALL OF THE AREAS WHERE THE WELLS AND
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THE IMPROVED PARCELS WERE.

Q. AND THEN THE NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE, THE SLIDE 63.

NOW, THIS SLIDE IS TITLED "IMPORTED WATER USE 201.1, 2012."

CAN YOU DESCRIBE TO THE COURT WHAT THIS SLIDE REPRESENTS?

A. YES. THIS IS WATER THAT WAS IMPORTED FROM AND

USED -- IT WAS IMPORTED BY -- FROM STATE PROJECT WATER BY

THE THREE AGENCIES, WHICH WOULD BE AVEK, LITTLEROCK CREEK

IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT. AND THEN

1̂ HIS -- THAT WATER WHICH IN THE AVERAGE FOR 2011 AP1D '12

WAS 65,503.4 ACRE FEET AND IT SHOWS THAT THE -- ALL OF THE

AGENCIES THAT USED THAT IMPORTED STATE PROJECT WATER.

Q. OKAY. WHERE DID YOU GET THE INFORMATION FOR

THIS SLIDE?

A. WELL, THIS WAS FROM BEST, BEST & KRIEGER.

Q. NEXT SLIDE IS SLIDE 64.

A. IT'S -- YES, SLIDE G4 IS JUST A PIE CHART OF

THE PREVIOUS SLIDE OF IMPORTED WATER USE FOR 2011 AND 2012.

AND WHAT'S INTERESTING IS YOU CAN SEE THAT THE -- WITHOUT

GOING BACK TO THE PREVIOUS TABLE, B(.1T THE TOP FIVE

IMPORTERS CONSTITUTE 94 PERCENT OF ALL OF THE IMPORTED

WATER. SO IF YOU ADD UP THE TOP FIVE -- ONE, TWO, THREE,

FOUR, FIVE, THIS IS 94 PERCENT OF ALL THE STATE PROJECT

WATER IMPORTED DURING 2011 AND 2012.

Q. AND LET'S MOVE TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 65

PLEASE. THIS ONE IS MARKED "AV~A RETURN FLOW LOCATIONS

FROM IMPORTED WATER USE." NOW, WE SEE THE TERM "RETURN

FLOW" USED AGAIN HERE. IS THIS A DIFFERENT TYPE OF RETURN

FLOW FROM WHAT WE'VE PREVIOUSLY SEEii?
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A. YES. THIS IS RETURN FLOWS FROM IMPORTED WATER

USE SO BASICALLY THE GREEN SHADED AREA REPRESENTS THE AREAS

WHERE THAT RETURN FLOW WAS DISTRIBUTED.

Q. AND AGAIN WE SEE A SIMILAR NOTATION AT THE

BOTTOM OF THIS SLIDE AS WE SAW IN A PREVIOUS SLIDE

REGARDING APPLICATION. CAN YOU EXPLAIN THAT, PLEASE?

A. WELL, IF IT'S A WELL, I2' WAS DISTRIBUTED NEAR

THE WELL LIKE THESE CIRCLES, OR IF IT WAS A WATER DISTRICT,

FGR EXAMPLE, IT WOULD BE DISTRIBUTED EVENLY THROUuHGL'T THAT

WATER DISTRICT AS A RETURN FLOW RECHARGE.

Q. SO THIS SLIDE SHOWS THE AREA FOR RETURN FLOW

LOCATIONS FROM IMPORTED WATER USE?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. ALL RIGHT. NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE. NOW, THIS IS

SLIDE 66. AND CAN YOU DESCRIBE WHAT'S ON THIS SLIDE,

PLEASE?

A. YEAH, IF YOU RECALL OUR SCENARIOS, SCENARIO 1,

FOR EXAMPLE, AND lA, ONE HAD IMPORTED WATER. IT HAD A

CURRENT PUMPING PLUS IMPORTED WATER AS PER DROUGHT

CONDITIONS SO WE CHOSE THE LAST TWO YEARS, WHICH WERE --

OBVIOUSLY WE'RE IN A FOUR-YEAR DROUGHT. WE LOOKED AT THE

AMOUNT OF WATER THAT WAS AVAILABLE TO STATE WATER PROJECT

CONTRACTORS. FOR EXAMPLE, IN 2014, IT WAS -- 2014 WAS FIVE

PERCENT AND I THINK 2015 WAS 20 PERCENT. LET ME MAKE SURE

I GOT THAT RIGHT AND NOT BACKWARDS. YEAH, YOU COULD SEE,

IF YOU READ DOWN HERE, THE FIVE PERCENT WAS DELIVERED IN

2014 AND 20 PERCENT IN 2015, SO FOR OUR SIMULATION OF

SCENARIO 1, WE AVERAGED THOSE WHICH IS 12-AND-A-HALF
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PERCENT AS SHOWN BACK HERE AS TO SUPPLEMENTAL WATER THAT

WAS IMPORTED IF CURRENT PUMPING CONDITIONS CONTINUED.

Q, AND THAT AVERAGE PERCENTAGE OF 12.5 PERCENT

APPLIES TO WHAT?

A. WELL, IF YOU GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, YOU CAN SEE

THE IMPORTED WATER DELIVERY CAPABILITY. THIS IS PERCENT OF

TABLE A WATER AND IT'S FROM A REPORT THAT'S PUT OUT CALLED

THE DRAFT DELIVERY REPORT. IT'S PUT OUT BY THE STATE.

Q. IS THAT THE DEPARTMENT OF 6dATER RESOURCES?

A. YES. SO IF YOU -- WHAT WE DID FOR OUR SCENARIO

1 IS WE LOOKED AT THIS TABLE A, TIMES 12-AND-A-HALF PERCENT

AND THAT WAS ASSUMED THAT THE AMOUNT OF SUPPLEMENTAL WATER

THAT WAS IMPORTED FOR THAT PARTICULAR SCENARIO.

Q. LET ME STOP YOU RIGHT THERE. COMMONLY, TABLE A

REFERS TO WHAT?

A. IT'S A CONTRACT BETWEEN STATE AND THE IMPORTING

AGENCY AS TO THE AMOUNT OF WATER THnT CAN BE IMPORTED FROM

STATE WATER PROJECT.

Q. AND THEN ACROSS THE TOP YOU HAVE SOME

ASSUMPTIONS BEGINNING WITH "ALL TABLE A." CAN YOU EXPLAIN

THOSE LABELS AND THE NUMBERS THAT ARE UNDERNEATH THEM?

A. YEAH. THESE ARE -- THESE ARE THE IMPORTS AVEK,

LITTLEROCK CREEK IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND PALMDALE WATER

DISTRICT. SO THIS ONE IS -- IS MORE OR LESS THE SUM OF ALL

OF THOSE THREE AND THEN -- SO THIS IS FOR EXISTING

CONDITION. IT'S ACTUALLY BASED ON THE 62 PERCENT, FOR

EXAMPLE, IS BASED ON LONG TERM STUDY FROM 1922 TO 2003 IN

THIS DRAFT DELIVERY REPORT. AND THESE VARIOUS OTHER ROWS,
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FOR EXAMPLE, DCR, ECO AND ECLOW AND ALL THESE ARE VARIOUS

ASSUMPTIONS THAT MAY OR MAY NOT HAPPEN REGARDING CLIMATE

CHANGE, SEA LEVEL RISE, A LOT OF DIFFERENT EXPLANATIONS TO

HOW THEY CAME UP WITH THIS. BUT ON AVERAGE, WE LOOKED AT

THIS 62 PERCENT, WHICH WOULD BE WHAT WE USED AT

12-AND-A-HALF PERCENT OF THIS -- I'M SORRY, NOT 62, BUT

12-AND-A-HALD PERCENT OF THE 168444 AS OUR SCENARIO 1.

Q. SO IN SCENARIO 1, IT REFLECTS THE EXISTING

DROUGHT CONDITIGP~S WHERE THERE'S LE~~S STATE WATER PROJECT

WATER AVAILABLE; IS THAT CORRECT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. BUT AS INDICATED HERE ON SLIDE 67, ACCORDING TO

THIS DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES DOCUMENT THAT YOU USED,

62 PERCENT IS THE APPROXIMATE LONG TERM AVERAGE?

A. YES, IT IS. AND BY THE WAY, WAS NOT JUST

SCENARIO 1, BUT SCENARIO 2 ALSO HAD THIS ASSUMPTION OF

DROUGHT CONDITIONS FOR IMPORTED WATER.

Q. LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SL;:DE, SLIDE 68, PLEASE.

NOW THIS ONE IS ENTITLED "CUMULATIVE ANNUAL CHANGE IN

GROUNDWATER STORAGE." DID YOU PREPARE THIS CHART OR WAS IT

PREPARED UNDER YOUR DIRECTION?

A. YEAH, I PREPARED THIS. IT WAS PREPARED UNDER

MY DIRECTION AND IT'S A VERY INTERESTING SLIDE BECAUSE IT

IS THE RESULTS OF THE MODEL -- THE FOUR MODEL SCENARIOS.

SCENARIO 1, WHICH IS PUMPING EXISTING PLUS THE DROUGHT

CONDITIONS SUPPLEMENTAL WATER. lA IS EXISTING PUMPING PLUS

IMPORTING THE TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL YILLD IMPORTED AND THEN 2

IS A RAMP DOWN WITH THE DROUGHT CONDITIONS AND 2A IS A RAMP
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DOWN WITH THE -- THE SUPPLEMENTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD. SO

YOU CAN SEE THIS -- THIS CHANGE IN STORAGE -- FIRST OF ALL,

THE TRIANGLES ARE FOR THE HISTORICAL PERIOD FROM 19 --

WELL, ACTUALLY IN THE '40S THROUGH THE 2000 -- EARLY 2000'S

THAT WERE THE CHANGE IN STORAGE FROM THE EXPERT REPORT.

AND THE SOLID LINE IS THE MODEL CALIBRATION, PERIOD 1915 TO

2005, AND YOU CAN SEE THAT GOES UP TO ABOUT HERE. AND THEN

THE PREDICTIONS FROM THE MODEL ONTO WHETHER THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTIOi~ IS A GOOD SOLUTION, YOU CAP1 SEE THAT THIS LOWER

CURVE, WHICH IS CONTINUE PRESENT PU1.IPING WITH DROUGHT

CONDITION IMPORTS OF SUPPLEMENTAL WATER, THE STORAGE IN THE

BASIN CONTINUES TO DROP VERY, VERY DRASTICALLY. SO THAT

TELLS ME THAT'S PROBABLY NOT A GOOD SOLUTION.

NOW EVEN IF YOU BRING IN 27,700 ACRE FEET BUT

CONTINUE EXISTING PUMPING OVERALL THE GROUNDWATER BASIN

STORAGE WILL STILL CONTINUE TO DROP, ALBEIT AT A SLIGHTLY

LESS STEEP SLOPE.

Q. LET ME STOP YOU RIGHT THERE, DR. WILLIAMS, SO

WE'RE ALL ON THE SAME PAGE HERE. THE SOLID DARK LINE AT

THE BOTTOM OF THE COLUMN THAT SAYS THE -- UNDER THE

PREDICTIVE PERIOD COLUMN, THAT'S CURRENT DROUGHT

CONDITIONS, 12 PERCENT -- 12.5 PERCENT DELIVERY STATE

PROJECT WATER AND CURRENT PUMPING -- WHAT WE CALL CURRENT

PUMPING BEING THE 2011, 2012 PUMPING CONTINUING FOR 50

YEARS?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THE ORANGE DOTTED LINE ABOVE THAT IS A

TOTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD OF 110,000? IN OTHER WORDS --
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A. N0. N0. I'M SORRY.

Q. OKAY.

A. THAT IS THE CURRENT PUMPING BUT BRINGING IN THE

SUPPLEMENTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD, WHICH HAS A RECHARGE OF

27,700, ASSUMING YOU CAN GET -- ASSUMING THAT YOU COULD GET

THAT FROM THE TABLE A IMPORTS UP TO 27 -- IN OTHER WORDS,

THE AMOUNT OF WATER THAT WOULD RESULT IN 27,700 RECHARGE

THAT IS THIS LINE. SO WHAT THIS SAYS IS THAT EVEN IF YOU

BRING IN SUPPLEMENTAL WATER, ABOUT AS P~1UCH AS I TfIINY. THE

HISTORICAL AVERAGE OF TABLE A WOULD PERMIT, THIS STILL IS

NOT A PHYSICAL SOLUTION TO THE BASIrI BECAUSE THE STORAGE IS

STILL DROPPING DRAMATICALLY. ONLY ln1HEN YOU RAMP DOWN YOU

START CUTTING BACK DO YOU SEE A STABILIZATION. SO SCENARIO

2, WHICH IS THE RAMP DOWN TO THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD PLUS THE

DROUGHT CONDITION SUPPLEMENT, YOU CAN SEE THE BASIN

STABILIZE RIGHT AWAY.

Q, EVEN WITH CURRENT DROUGHT CONDITIONS?

A. EVEN WITH CURRENT DROUGHT CONDITIONS IT

STABILIZES RIGHT AWAY. IT GOES FROM THE START AND IT TAKES

A FEW YEARS, BUT IT DOES STABILIZE. AND THEN SCENARIO 2A,

IF YOU RAMP DOWN TO NATIVE SAFE YIET~D AND BRING IN ENOUGH

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER TO ALLOW A SUSTAINABLE YIELD,

SUPPLEMENTAL YIELD OF 27,700 THE BASIN IN THE STORAGE

REFILLS. SO THIS TELLS ME THAT THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION,

WHICH IS 2 OR 2A, WOULD BRING THE BASIN AND SUBSIDENCE INTO

BALANCE OR MINIMIZE THE SUBSIDENCE AND ACTUALLY ALLOW AN

INCREASE OR REFILLING OF THE BASIN UNDER 2A. SO RAMPING

DOWN PLUS BRINGING IN THE SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD AMOUNT OF
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27,700 WOULD RESULT, IN MY OPINION, A VERY VALID PHYSICAL

SOLUTION.

Q. OKAY. SO AGAIN, SO WE'RE CLEAR LET'S LOOK AT

THE TOP DOTTED GREEN LINE.

A. OKAY.

Q. SO THAT REPRESENTS SCENARIO 2A?

A. YES.

Q. SO THE BASIN HAS A NATIVE SAFE YIELD OF 82,300,

CUk1ZECT?

A. RIGHT.

Q. THEN WE'RE ADDING FOR THAT DOTTED GREEN LINE

THE SUPPLEMENTAL SUSTAINABLE YIELD OF 27,000 --

A. 700.

Q. -- 700?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. AND THAT TOTALS THE 110,000 TOTAL SAFE YIELD IN

THE BASIN. CORRECT?

A. THAT DOES, YES.

Q. SO ASSUMING A TOTAL SAFE YIELD OF THE BASIN OF

110,000 AND THE RAMP DOWN PROPOSED IN THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION, THE DOTTED GREEN LINE, THE HIGHEST OF THE FOUR

LINES ON THE RIGHT-HAND COLUMN MARKED PREDICTIVE PERIOD,

WOULD SHOW NOT JUST A LEVELLING OFF OF WATER LEVELS, BUT

THE POTENTIAL OVER A 50-YEAR TIME PERIOD TO INCREASE WATER

LEVELS IN THE BASIN?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. INCREASE IN STORAGE.

Q. AND AGAIN SO WE'RE CLEAR, THE SOLID GREEN LINE

IS THE RAMP DOWN AS PROPOSED IN THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION, BUT
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THE CURRENT DROUGHT CONDITIONS SOMEHOW CONTINUES OVER THE

NEXT 50 YEARS. NO ONE KNOWS FOR SURE?

A. THAT'S CORRECT. THIS IS THE RAMP DOWN, THE

SOLID GREEN LINE AND ASSUMING 2014, 2015, 12-AND-A-HALF

PERCENT IMPORTED WATER AVAILABILITY.

Q. IN TERMS OF THE SOLID GREEN LINE, THE SCENARIO

2, THE CURRENT DROUGHT CONDITION, IS IT -- WOULD YOU

CHARACTERIZE THAT AS SORT OF THE WOF:ST-CASE SCENARIO WITH

REGARDS TO SUPPLEMENTAL WATER OR ONE OF THE WORST-CASE

SCENARIOS?

A. WELL, I CAN'T SAY FOR SURE, BUT THAT'S WHY WE

PICKED THE LAST TWO YEARS BECAUSE IT IS VERY, VERY LOW.

AND IT'S BEEN -- IT'S BEEN -- YOU KNOW, WE'RE IN FOUR, FIVE

YEARS OF DROUGHT NOW.

Q. SO EVEN IN A DROUGHT CONDITION, THE PROPOSED

PHYSICAL SOLUTIO[V WITH ITS RAMP DOWN WILL SHOW SLIGHTLY

RECOVERING WATER LEVELS IN THE BASITI OVER THE NEXT 50

YEARS?

A. IT WILL STABILIZE THE BASIN -- THE RAMP DOWN

WILL STABILIZE THE BASIN.

Q. LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 69.

A. THIS IS -- THIS IS A SIMILAR MODEL RESULTS, BUT

SHOWING WHAT HAPPENS WITH VARIOUS WALLS THROUGHOUT THE

BASIN. YOU CAN SEE THERE'S ONE, TWO, THREE, FOUR, FIVE,

SIX PANELS AND THESE ARE ALL HYDROGRAPHS AT VARIOUS

PORTIONS OF THE BASIN FOR THE FOUR CENARIOS. AND IF WE GO

TO THE NEXT SLIDE, WHICH IS A BLOWUP SO YOU CAN SEE IT

EASIER.
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Q. THIS IS SLIDE 70?

A. SLIDE 70, YES. SLIDE 70 IS A PORTION IN THE

BASIN KIND OF MID IN HERE AND YOU CAN SEE THE SAME THING.

FIRST OF ALL, THE DOTS ARE OBSERVED WATER LEVELS SO YOU CAN

SEE THE MODEL DURING THE HISTORICAL PERIOD IT'S PRETTY WELL

CALIBRATED, IT MATCHES THAT. AND THEN WE START IN WITH THE

SCENARIO 1 WHICH IS THIS LOW LINE, SO IF YOU CONTINUE

PRESENT PUMPING THE BASIN'S GOING TO CONTINUE TO DROP THE

WATER LEVELS. hND EVEN IF YOU BRINi.~ IN 27,700 BUT HAVE

CURRENT PUMPING, THE BASIN WILL DROP. NOT QUITE AS MUCH AS

THE DROUGHT CONDITION IMPORTS, BUT IT WILL CONTINUE TO

DECLINE FOR -- THROUGH THE 50 YEAR MARK. ONLY WHEN YOU

RAMP DOWN THE PUMPING, AS SHOWN BY THE SOLID LINE, DOES THE

BASIN STABILIZE OR IMPROVE. AND FINALLY, IF YOU RAMP DOWN

PLUS BRING IN THE 27,700, THEN YOU GET QUITE AN INCREASE.

AND THIS IS PRETTY MUCH THE SIGNATURE THAT I'VE SEEN WITH

TWO 2 AND 2A. SO THIS, TO ME, REPRESENTS A GOOD, YOU KNOW,

EXAMPLE OF WHY THE PHYSICAL SOLUTIOid WILL WORK, THE RAMPING

DOWN PLUS THE IMPORTED WATER SUPPLIES.

Q. OKAY. LET'S GO TO SLIDE 70 -- EXCUSE ME. I'M

SORRY. SLIDE 71.

A. SLIDE 71 IS JUST A SERIES OF HISTORICAL

HYDROGRAPHS AND IT -- IT SHOWS VARIOUS WATER LEVELS IN THE

BASIN SOME IN SOME AREAS SHOWING A STEEP DECLINE RESULTING

TO THE SEVERE OVERDRAFT, BUT IT DOES SHOW WATER LEVEL

STABLE IN SOME AREAS. AND THE REASON I'M SHOWING THIS IS

BECAUSE IN THESE AREAS IS WHERE IMP~~RTED -- HISTORICAL USE

OF IMPORTED WATER. SO IT'S DEFINITELY IN THE MID '705, I
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THINK '72, WHEN IMPORTED WATER WAS FIRST BROUGHT INTO THE

BASIN. YOU CAN SEE IT HAD A DRASTIC AFFECT SO THAT FURTHER

STRENGTHENS AND REENFORCES MY BELIEF THAT IMPORTING

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER PLUS A RAMP DOWN OR REDUCTION OF PUMPING

WILL BE A GOOD PHYSICAL SOLUTION FOR THIS BASIN.

Q, THEN LOOK -- LET'S LOOK AT SLIDE 72.

A. HERE AGAIN IT JUST SHOWS A CLOSE-UP OF ONE OF

THE HYDROGRAPHS SHOWING THAT IN THE MID '70S WHEN IMPORTED

WATER WAS BROUGHT IP1, IT HAD A MAJOR AFFECT IN THOSE AP.E~S

WHERE THE WATER WAS BROUGHT IN.

Q. NOW LET`S MOVE TO SLIDE 73. THIS ONE'S

ENTITLED "WATER LEVEL CHANGES IN 50 YEARS, SC-l." CAN YOU

DESCRIBE WHAT IS DEPICTED HERE?

A. THIS IS A CALLED A COLOR FLOOD MAP, BUT IT'S

GROUNDWATER LEVEL CHANGES IN 50 YEARS AFTER THE END OF THE

MODEL, BETWEEN THE START OF THE MODLL, AFTER THE RAMP DOWN.

BETWEEN THE STRRT OF THE MODEL RUN AFTER THE RAMP DOWN TO

THE 50 YEAR IT SHOWS THE CHANGE IN WATER LEVELS. AND THE

RED DENOTES WATER LEVEL DECLINE SO YOU CAN SEE IN 50 YEARS

THIS WHOLE -- MOST OF THE AREA OF ANTELOPE VALLEY IS GOING

TO CONTINUE TO HAVE PRETTY SEVERE DECLINES. AND WE SAW

THAT IN THE PREVIOUS SLIDES BY THE DECLINING STORAGE AND

THE DECLINING HYDROGRAPHS. THIS IS JUST A CONJURE MAP

REFLECTING THE SAME VERY, SEVERE DECLINES WITH DARK REDS

OVER IN THIS AREA HERE. THAT'S THE CENTRAL OF -- THE SOUTH

CENTRAL AREA.

Q. THEN MOVING TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 74.

A. THEN EVEN IF WE BRING IN SUPPLEMENTAL WATER, IT
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STILL SHOWS DECLINES IN THE BASIN. SO -- AND THIS IS

REFLECTED WHAT WE SAW AS -- STILL A DECREASE IN STORAGE AND

STILL A DECREASE IN WATER LEVEL, BUT NOT AS SEVERE THAT

SCENARIO lA.

Q. SO AGAIN, SCENARIO lA HAS THE TOTAL SAFE YIELD

OF 82,300 NATIVE YIELD?

A. N0. N0. EXCUSE ME. NU. SCENARIO 1A IS

CURRENT PUMPING BUT BRINGING IN THE SUSTAINABLE YIELD OF

27,700.
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Q. RIGHT. BUT THE MODEL WOULD ALSO TAKE INTO

ACCOUNT THAT THERE'S AN 82,300 NATI~TE YIELD COMPONENT

THERE?

A. YES, THAT'S TRUE.

Q. SO THIS TOGETHER WITH THE TOTAL -- EXCUSE

ME -- WITH THE SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD OF THE 27,000,

APPROXIMATELY, FOR TOTAL SAVE YIELD OF 110,000 IS BEING

DEPICTED HERE?

A. WELL, THIS IS 1A, WHICH MEANS EXISTING PUMPING

WITH SUFFICIENT IMPORTED WATER TO EQUAL SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE

YIELD. YOU'RE STILL VERY MUCH EXCEEDING THE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD BECAUSE THE PUMPING IS STARTING OUT IT`S SO HIGH.

YOU HAVEN'T RAMPED DOWN PUMPING.

Q. OKAY.

A. IT'S ONLY WHEN YOU GO TO THE NEXT ONE, YOU CAN

SEE THE EFFECT OF NOW YOU`RE LOOKING AT 2, WHICH IS A RAMP

DOWN WITH DROUGHT CONDITIONS IMPORTED WATER. AND ALL OF A

SUDDEN NOW YOU SEE CHANGES FROM REDS TO GREENS AND YOU SEE

INCREASES IN WATER LEVELS, LIKE WE SAW IN A STORAGE OF 30,
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45 FEET IN THIS AREAS SO THE BASIN IS REBOUNDING EVEN

WITHOUT BRINGING IN MORE THAN DROUGHT CONDITION

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER. SO THIS ITSELF IS A PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. DR. WILLIAMS, LET ME JUST IDENTIFY SLIDE 75.

IT'S WATER LEVEL CHANGES IN 50 YEARS SC-2. SO WHAT YOU

HAVE DEPICTED HERE IS THE MODEL ANALYSIS OF PUMPING OF THE

NATIVE SAFE YIELD BEING RAMPED DOWN TO THE NATIVE SAFE

YIELD, CORRECT?

A. YES.

Q. AND BUT YOU HAVE THE EXISTING DROUGHT

CONDITIONS CONTINUING REGARDING STATE PROJECT DELIVERIES,

THE AVERAGE OF THE 12.5 PERCENT, CORRECT?

A. YES, THAT'S CORRECT. AND YOU CAN SEE THE BASIN

IS STABILIZING IN MOST AREAS.

Q, AND THEN FINALLY, LET'S -- WELL, NOT FINALLY,

BUT LET'S GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE, SLIDE 75.

A. SO THIS IS THE -- THIS iS THE CONDITION CALLED

2A, WHICH WAS THE RAMP DOWN AND NATIVE SAFE YIELD PLUS

SUFFICIENT IMPORTED WATER TO EQUAL SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD

OF 27,700. AND YOU CAN SEE NOW THE BASIN IS ACTUALLY

REFILLING ITSELF QUITE RAPIDLY WITH THESE DARK GREEN AREAS,

WHICH YOU SEE INCREASES OF 60 OR 70 FEET OF RECOVERY IN

THESE AREAS. SO THE BASIN IS REALLY STABILIZED AND

ACTUALLY IMPROVING THE STORAGE LOSS.

Q. SO TO SUMMARIZE THIS DEPICTION HERE, WE HAVE A

50-YEAR SIMULATION OF THE PROPOSED £'HYSICAL SOLUTION WITH

ALLOCATIONS OF THE NATIVE YIELD EQUALING THE NATIVE YIELD

SUPPLY OF 82,300, CORRECT?
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A. YES.

Q. AND THEN WE HAVE ON TOP OF THAT APPROXIMATELY

27,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR AND SUPPLEMENTAL YIELD TO THE BASIN

FROM IMPORTED WATER?

A. RIGHT 27,700.

Q. YOU WOULD AGREE WITH ME, WHEN YOU ADD THE 823

THE NATIVE YIELD PLUS THE 27,000, APPROXIMATELY, WE GET TO

THE TOTAL SAFE YIELD OF 110,000?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. SO HERE WE HAVE TOTAL SAFE YIELD OF 110,000

WITH A RAMP DOWN AS PROPOSED IN THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION

DOCUMENT?

A. THAT'S CORRECT.

Q. OKAY. LET'S TAKE A LOOK, IF WE COULD, PLEASE,

AT SLIDE 77.

A. THIS IS JUST A SUMMARY, BASICALLY THE

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE SCENARIO 1 AND 2A. SCENARIO 1 IS

THE ONE SHOWING THE MOST DRAMATIC LOWERING OF STORAGE IN

THE BASIN AND 2A, WHICH IS THE BEST, AS FAR AS REFILLING

THE BASIN, STABILIZING AND REFILLING. SO YOU CAN SEE OVER

THE 50 YEARS YOU HAVE 40, 50, 60 FEET OF RECOVERY IN A

MAJOR PORTION OF THE BASIN.

Q. AND THAT IS MARKED OR IDENTIFIED AS WATER LEVEL

CHANGES BETWEEN SC-1 AND SC-2A IN 50 YEARS AND IT'S SLIDE

77. LET'S GO TO SLIDE -- THE NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE.

A. THIS KIND OF SUMMARIZES THE WHOLE MODEL

PHYSICAL SOLUTION RUNS. YOU HAVE -- UP ON THE TOP ROW, YOU

HAVE SCENARIO 1 WHICH IS CURRENT PUMPING WITH THE DROUGHT
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CONDITION IMPORTED WATER. SCENARIO lA, WHICH IS CURRENT

PUMPING PLUS THE SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD WATER. AND THEN 2

IS THE RAMP DOWN WITH DROUGHT CONDITION IMPORT, AND 2A IS

RAMP DOWN WITH SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD IMPORT. SO YOU CAN

SEE HERE THE GROUND LEVEL PUMPING OF 161, WHICH IS

EXISTING, IS THE ONE'S WHERE THE BASIN DID NOT STABILIZE,

NO MATTER HOW MUCH WATER YOU BROUGHT IN. FOR EXAMPLE, IF

YOU BROUGHT IN FOR SCENARIO 1A YOU BROUGHT IN 27,700, YOU

STILL HAD A DECREASE IN STORAGE OF ALMOST 31,C00 ACRE FEET

A YEAR. SCENARIO 1, WHICH IS JUST CURRENT PUMPING PLUS

DROUGHT CONDITION IMPORTS, THE BASIN'S STILL GOING DOWN TO

52,300 ACRE FEET PER YEAR AND THAT'S BOTH WHAT THE STORAGE

AND THE HYDROGRAPHS REFLECTED. NOW, IF YOU RAMP DOWN TO

THE NATIVE SAFE YIELD ON THE PUMPING AND STILL BRING IN

DROUGHT CONDITION SUPPLEMENT, THE BASIN STARTS -- IT'S

PRETTY WELL STABILIZED. IT'S PLUS 2,200 ACRE FEET A YEAR.

NOW YOU BRING IN 27,700 ON TOP OF RAMPING DOWN ON THE BASIN

REFILLS AT 24,000 ACRE FEET A YEAR. SO IN MY OPINION,

SCENARIO 2 AND 2A REPRESENT A GOOD PHYSICAL SOLUTION.

Q. LET'S MOVE TO THE NEXT SLIDE, PLEASE, WHICH IS

NOT REALLY A SLIDE, BUT IT'S GOING TO BE A SIMULATION OR A

MODEL RUN.

A. YEAH, WHAT I THOUGHT WOULD BE ILLUSTRATIVE,

JUST KIND OF SHOW AN ANIMATION, THIc IS A STILL SHOT,

BUT -- WELL, IT'S NOT. THIS IS THE -- THESE -- BEFORE WE

START -- OKAY, IT'S -- IT'S SHOWING. DID YOU START THE

ANIMATION?

Q. NOT YET.
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A. OKAY. SORRY. IT SHOWS THE -- ON THE RIGHT IS

THE ANTELOPE VALLEY LOOKING SOUTH. IN OTHER WORDS, IF YOU

LOOK AT THIS INSET MAP, NORMALLY WE PLOT TO THE NORTH OUT,

BUT WE'RE LOOKING THIS WAY FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE PICTURE

UP TO THE TOP THROUGH PALMDALE SO THIS IS THE ROGERS LAKE

AREA AND THIS IS THE PALMDALE AREA (INDICATING). SO THESE

ARE -- REPRESENT GROUNDWATER LEVELS, GREEN IS GOOD, RED IS

DECLINING. SO THIS IS WHERE THE GROUNDWATER LEVELS WERE IN

1915. SO GO AHEAD AND START THE ANIP~ATION. SO THIS IS

GOING TO RUN THROUGH -- YOU CAN SEE THE YEARS UP HERE AND

YOU CAN SEE THE GROUNDWATER LEVELS DROPPING. AND THIS IS

JUST SIMULATING WHAT THE MODEL HAS PREDICTED FOR EVERY ONE

OF THOSE YEARS AND EVERY ONE OF THOSE CELLS. AND WE CAN

CREATE THIS KIND OF ANIMATION FROM THAT DATA, BUT YOU CAN

SEE IT'S CONTINUING TO DROP TO -- BASICALLY REFLECTING THE

SEVERE OVERDRAFT THAT THE BASIN HAS EXPERIENCED. AND NOW

THE -- IT'S GOING FROM GREEN TO CHA~7GING TO THE RED COLORS

AND IT'S -- YOU CAN SEE IT'S STABILIZED A LITTLE BIT WHEN

THEY BROUGHT IN IMPORTED WATER IN THE '70S, BUT IT'S STILL

CONTINUING TO DROP, SO -- OKAY, SO THAT WAS -- THAT WAS

HISTORICAL PERIOD. IF WE GO TO THE NEXT SLIDE.

Q. N0. 80 -- EXCUSE ME. 8i AND 82?

A. YEAH. NOW THIS -- THIS IS GOING TO BE -- THIS

IS AN INTERESTING COMPARISON. ON THE LEFT PANEL WE HAVE

SCENARIO 1, WHICH IS CURRENT PUMPING WITH SEVERE DROUGHT

CONDITIONS. AND ON THE RIGHT PANEL, WE HAVE SCENARIO 2A,

WHICH WAS THE RAMP DOWN TO NATIVE SAFE YIELD PLUS IMPORTED

SUPPLEMENTAL SAFE YIELD. SO THE SAME DEAL, WE START OFF
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WITH A WATER LEVELS THE SAME AND THEN WE'RE GOING TO GO 50

YEARS INTO THE FUTURE. SO YOU CAN WATCH THE COLORS CHANGE.

OKAY, GO AHEAD. SO HERE WE ARE AND YOU CAN SEE ON THE

RIGHT WHERE THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION IT'S REFILLING ITSELF

WHILE UNDER SCENARIO 1, CURRENT PUMPING, NO MATTER -- YOU

KNOW, WITH THE SEVERE DROUGHT, IT CONTINUES TO DROP, A LOT

OF REDS AND ON THE RIGHT, THE BASIN IS GETTING THE HEALTH

BACK, IT'S REFILLING, STORAGE IS RECOVERING, WATER LEVELS

ARE RECOVERIPIG. SO THIS IS -- IT' S Ard EASY TO UNCEP.STI~ND

GRAPHIC THAT WE PRESENTED TO SHOW THE PHYSICAL SOLUTION, IN

MY OPINION, WILL WORK.

Q. OKAY. LET'S MOVE TO SLIDE 83, PLEASE.

A. SO IN ADDITION TO WATER LEVEL STABILITY, THE

LAND SUBSIDENCE WAS ALSO WHAT WE MODELED AND HERE'S THE

SAME. IF WE -- THIS -- THIS SLIDE 83 SHOWS REPRESENTATIVE

LAND SUBSIDENCE AND THE EFFECTS OF THE FOUR SCENARIOS. AND

I THINK IT'S MORE ILLUSTRATIVE IF WE GO TO THE NEXT ONE

BECAUSE IT'S GOT SOMETHING YOU CAN SEE A LITTLE GETTER.

Q. SLIDE 84?

A. SLIDE 84 SHOWS THE BENCHMARK AND IT'S PRETTY

MUCH THE CENTER OR THE HIGHEST SUBSIDENCE WAS. SO AGAIN,

THE DOTS RRE -- IN THE INSET ARE THE MEASURED LAND

ELEVATIONS FROM BENCHMARKS, AND THEN WE HAVE THE FOUR

SCENARIOS. SO THE SCENARIO 1, WHICH IS THE LOWEST ONE,

SUBSIDENCE WILL INCREASE WITH TIME. EVEN BRINGING IN

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER OF 27,700 SUBSIDENCE WON'T STOP AND IT

WILL KEEP GOING. AND IT'S ONLY WHEN YOU GO TO SCENARIO 2

OR 2A DOES, IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE, THE SUBSIDENCE
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ACTUALLY STOP. NOW, YOU'LL SEE THAT SUBSIDENCE WON'T STOP

EVERYWHERE IN THE BASIN AND THE REASON FOR THAT IS THAT YOU

HAVE VERY THICK BEDS AND SOMETIMES IT TAKES CENTURIES FOR

THESE -- EVEN IF YOU STOP PUMPING, IT TAKES CENTURIES FOR

THESE THICK BEDS TO SLOWLY DRAIN OUT THE WATER AND YOU CAN

SEE THAT IN SOME OF THE HYDROGRAPHS EVEN UNDER SCENARIO 2A

THERE'S STILL A SLIGHT DECREASE. BUT IF YOU JUST STOP

PUMPING EVERYTHING, IT WOULDN'T STOP THAT. THAT'S JUST

SOMETHIYIG THAT GCE' VE LEARi'~IED ABOUT THE NATURE OF'

SUBSIDENCE.

THE COURT: MR. DUNN, IT`S 4:00, SO YOU CAN STEP

DOWN, DOCTOR. SO WE ARE GOING TO Tn.KE OUR RECESS NOW SO

YOU CAN MOVE. I WANT TO KNOW WHAT WE'RE GOING TO DO

TOMORROW. WE'RE GOING TO FINISH, OBVIOUSLY, YOUR DIRECT.

MR. DUNN: YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: THERE MAY BE SOME CROSS-EXAMINATION OR

SOME OF THE OTHER PARTIES MAY WISH ~l'O ENGAGE IN

EXAMINATION; IS THAT CORRECT? OTHER THAN -- I MEANT

PROPONENTS OF THE SOLUTION HERE, IS THERE GOING TO BE ANY

EXAMINATION BY THE WILLIS COUNSEL.

MR. KALFAYAN: YES, YOUR HONnR.

THE COURT: YOU'RE NOT A PROPONENT.

MR. JOYCE: I MAY HAVE A ONE QUESTION OR TWO.

THE COURT: OKAY. SO ESSENTIALLY MR. DUNN, YOU'RE

GOING TO FINISH WITH THIS WITNESS TOMORROW?

MR. DUNN: IN THE MORNING, YES.

THE COURT: HOW MUCH MORE -- I NOTICE WE DON'T HAVE

A LOT OF THE EXHIBITS.
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MR. DUNN: WE DON'T HAVE A LET LEFT. I WOULD --

MAYBE ANOTHER --

THE COURT: HOUR.

MR. DUNN: OH, I WOULD SUSPECT LESS THAN THAT, YOUR

HONOR.

THE COURT: OKAY. AND THEN WHAT ARE WE GOING TO DO?

MR. DUNN: AFTER THE CROSS-EXAMINATION, THE PUBLIC

WATER SUPPLIERS, WE PUT ON OUR WITNESSES.

THE COURT: SO YOU'RE GOIP~G TO REST IN TERMS OF THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION. THE DEFAULTED PARTIES, IS THERE

ANYTHING ELSE THAT YOU'RE GOING TO OFFER DURING THIS PHASE2

MR. DUNN: JUST ONE MOMENT, YOUR HONOR. WE HAVE A

SMALL AMOUNT OF DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE, WHICH DOESN'T REQUIRE

A WITNESS, IT'S JUST THE BUSINESS RECORDS OF OUR IMPORTED

WATER PURCHASES. THAT'S IT. THAT WILL TAKE MAYBE A

MINUTE.

THE COURT: ALL RIGHT. LET ME ASK MS. AILIN: D0.

YOU INTEND TO EXAMINE THIS WITNESS?

MS. AILIN: I DO, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: CAN YOU GIVE ME A TIME ESTIMATE OF WHAT

YOU THINK WILL BE INVOLVED?

MS. AILIN: ABOUT 45 MINUTES.

THE COURT: OKAY. SO WE SHOULD CERTAINLY FINISH HIM

BEFORE NOON?

MS. AILIN: THAT DEPENDS ON MR. KALFAYAN.

THE COURT: WITH YOUR EXAMINATION, AND MR. DUNN.

MS. AILIN: YES, I WOULD EXPECT SO.

THE COURT: THEN WE'LL DEAL WITH YOUR EXAMINATION,
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MR. KALFAYAN, OKAY? AND THEN WHAT ELSE ARE WE GOING TO DO

TOMORROW, ASSUMING THAT YOU FINISH WITH THIS WITNESS

TOMORROW?

MR. JOYCE: YOUR HONOR, MR. JOYCE ON BEHALF OF

DIAMOND FARMING. I WILL SIMPLY BE PROVIDING TO THE COURT A

SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION AS DIRECTED BY THE COURT TO

ADDRESS THE EARLY YEARS, PUMPING NUMBERS.

THE COURT: OKAY. MR. DAVIS.

MR. DAVIS: WE HAVE THE SAME THIIQG. WE HAVE

DOCUMENTS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEEN MARKED AND THEY'RE WITH

THE COURT HALF OF THOSE HAVE BEEN ALREADY ADMITTED IN PHASE

FOUR. WE'RE JUST GOING TO GO THROUGH THOSE, MOST ALL

BUSINESS RECORDS WITH SOME EXPLANATIONS.

THE COURT: MR. ZIMMER.

MR. ZIMMER: JUST TO ADDRESS BOTH MR. JOYCE'S AND

MR. DAVIS'S CONCERNS, WE WILL BE MOVING INTO EVIDENCE

THE -- ALL THE INFORMATION THAT WAS PROVIDED TO THE EXPERT

THAT INCLUDES THE SAME INFORMATION THAT THEY'RE TALKING

ABOUT. WE TALKED EARLIER ABOUT THAT DOING THAT IN A

SUMMARY FASHION SO WE'RE NOT HERE FOR WEEKS. AND THEN

THERE'S ANOTHER EXHIBIT 66, WHICH SETS -- IT'S ALREADY IN

EVIDENCE. IT SETS FORTH THE PUMPIN~:~ THAT -- BOTH PUBLIC

AND PRIVATE PUMPING SINCE 1925. AND THEN THE QUESTION IS

WHATEVER THESE FOLKS DO ON CROSS, THERE ARE TWO ADDITIONAL

WITNESSES THAT WE HAVE AVAILABLE, MR. WAGNER IS ONE WITNESS

AND MR. WAGNER WOULD TESTIFY SOMEWHAT SIMILARLY TO THE

TESTIMONY GIVEN BY MR. BEEBY BUT IN MORE DETAIL IF WE NEED

IT REGARDING CROP DUTIES. HE HAS LOOKED AT ALL PUMPING AND
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WITH REGARD TO MR. BINDER, WHO ALSO HAS LOOKED AT THE

PHYSICAL SOLUTION, BUT PART OF THAT WILL DEPEND UPON WHAT

HAPPENS TOMORROW. SOME OF THOSE WITNESSES ARE NOT

AVAILABLE UNTIL NEXT WEEK, BUT WE'RE GOING TO -- WE WANT TO

MAKE THIS AS EXPEDITIOUS AS POSSIBLE: AND WE WILL BE DOING

THAT DEPENDING UPON WHAT HAPPENS TOMORROW.

THE COURT: OKAY. NOW, ONE OF THE THINGS THAT I

THINK IS CLEAR, BUT MAYBE IT'S NOT, IS THAT IN TERMS OF THE

PROPONENTS, THEY ARE ESSENTIALLY STIPULATING TO THIS

EVIDENCE COMING IN AND THE POSITIONS TAKEN BY THE

VARIOUS -- THE OPINIONS TAKEN BY THE VARIOUS WITNESSES THAT

HAVE BEEN PRESENTED THUS FAR; IS THAT RIGHT?

MR. DAVIS: SO STIPULATED.

THE COURT: IN OTHER WORDS, ''HIS IS A JOINT

PROPONENT -- YOU ARE JOINT PROPONENTS OF THE PHYSICAL

SOLUTION AND THE PARTIES THAT ARE OPPOSED TO IT ARE NOT

DIRECTLY PARTIES IN THE LITIGATION BETWEEN THE LAND OWNERS

AND THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS, BUT THEY

OBVIOUSLY HAVE AN ASPECT OF INTEREST IN TERMS OF

CONSISTENCY WITH THE STIPULATED JUDGMENT THAT THEY ENTERED

INTO WITH THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS. SO IN TERMS OF THE

COURT'S VIEW, THERE'S NO OPPOSITION FROM ANY OF THE

PROPONENTS AS TO THIS EVIDENCE, BUT THERE OBVIOUSLY IS

GOING TO BE OPPOSITION TO THE GLOBAL, SO-CALLED, SETTLEMENT

BY THE WILLIS CLASS AND I DON'T KNOW ABOUT OTHERS.

WHAT ABOUT THE CLAIMS AGAINST -- THAT MR. TAPIA HAS?

WHERE DOES THAT FIT INTO THIS?

MR. ZIMMER: LET ME ADDRESS BOTH ISSUES. ONE, YES,
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YOU'RE CORRECT ON WHAT YOU SAID IN TERMS OF THE JOINT

PROPONENTS SUBJECT TO RESERVATION OF' RIGHTS AND THE

COMMENTS ON THE MODEL. IN TERMS OF MR. TAPIR, I THINK THAT

TESTIMONY WAS BEING OFFERED THROUGH MR. BEEBY BECAUSE HE

WAS HERE TODAY AS A MATTER OF REBUTTAL. THERE'S BEEN NO

CASE PRESENTED BY THE TAPIR'S SO FAR SO IT COULD BE SUBJECT

TO NONSUIT IF THEY PRESENT NOTHING. BUT IF THEY DID

PRESENT SOMETHING, THEN IT'S MY VIEW THAT THE TESTIMONY OF

MR. BEEBY WOULD EE TY.EN USED AS REBUTTAL TO THAT.

MR. JOYCE: JOYCE REBUTTAL.

THE COURT: SO THE QUESTION Z'HAT NATURALLY OCCURS TO

ME IS WHERE MR. BEEBY'S COUNSEL?

MR. JOYCE: TAPIR'S --

THE COURT: I'M SORRY. MR. TAPIR'S COUNSEL, WHERE

IS HE?

MR. ZIMMER: THAT, I CAN'T ANSWER FOR YOU.

THE COURT: WHO IS IT?

MR. KUHS: MR. BRUMFIELD, A BAKERSFIELD LAWYER. H~

WAS CERTAINLY GIVEN NOTICE OF THE TRIAL TIME AND PLACE.

MR. JOYCE: YOUR HONOR, I HAVE NO EXPLANATION. IT'S

NOT MY OBLIGATION.

MR. DUNN: I DON'T KNOW WHERE HE IS TODAY. I WAS

INFORMED BY MR. BRUMFIELD OR HIS OFFICE THAT HE WAS ENGAGED

IN TRIAL YESTERDAY IN BAKERSFIELD. I DON'T KNOW WHERE HE

IS TODAY. WE HAVE HAD COMMUNICATION WITH MR. BRUMFIELD AND

HIS COLLEAGUE. THEY HAVE REQUESTED OCTOBER 14TH, 1-4, FOR

MR. TAPIR TO PRESENT HIS CASE. I'M JUST A MESSENGER, YOUR

HONOR.
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THE COURT: NO, WHAT I'M INTERESTED IN, THOUGH, IS

THAT WE GET TOGETHER SO THAT WE CAN HAVE SOME AGREEMENT AS

TO WHEN WE'RE GOING TO BE IN SESSI0~1. AND ONE OF THE

THINGS THAT I'M SOMEWHAT CONCERNED ABOUT IS THIS WEEK AND

I'D LIKE TO BE ABLE TO FILL IT OUT SO THAT WE'RE WORKING

UNTIL NOON ON FRIDAY. AND SO FAR, I'M NOT HEARING THAT.

NOW MR. KALFAYAN, YOU INDICATED THAT YOU WERE GOING

TO CALL SOME WITNESSES. IS MR. ESTkADA AVAILABLE?

MR. KALFAYAN: PAR. ESTRADA IS IN FRANCE. HE WGNT BE

BACK UNTIL OCTOBER 9TH. IT'S KIND OF --

THE COURT: I THOUGHT YOU TOLD ME THAT HE WAS GOING

TO BE ABLE TO BE HERE MONDAY AND --

MR. KALFAYAN: I THOUGHT THAT --

THE COURT: WHEN DID HE LEAVE FOR FRANCE?

MR. KALFAYAN: IT WAS MONDAY MORNING THAT HE HAD TO

LEAVE TO FRANCE.

MR. ZIMMER: WHO'S LEAVING FUR FRANCE?

THE COURT: MR. ESTRADA WHO WAS GOING TO BE THE

FIRST WITNESS ON MONDAY AND NOW HE'S IN FRANCE FOR HOW

LONG?

MR. KALFAYAN: UNTIL OCTOBER 9TH. AND I WAS WAITING

UNTIL THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS -- I THOUGHT THEY WERE

GOING TO TAKE MORE TIME AND THEY HAD MORE WITNESSES. AND

WE HAVE ADDITIONAL EXPERT WITNESSES, BUT I'M WAITING UNTIL

THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLIERS AND STIPULATING PARTIES REST.

THE COURT: THAT'S ABOUT READY TO HAPPEN, I THINK.

MR. ZIMMER: IS THERE A POSSIBILITY WE COULD GET

PROPOSED TESTIMONY FROM MR. ESTRADA, SEE WHETHER MIGHT BE A
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STIPULATION TO THAT OR A DISCUSSION AS TO WHETHER IT'S

RELEVANT OR NOT?

MR. KALFAYAN: IT'S POSSIBLE.

THE COURT: MAYBE YOU CAN WOi~K ON THAT, BUT WHAT

ABOUT YOUR EXPERTS?

MR. KALFAYAN: YES, YOUR HONOR.

THE COURT: ARE YOU GOING TO OFFER THOSE AND THE

COURT HAS TO RULE ON THAT AND HOPEFULLY MAYBE WE CAN DO

THAT TOMORROW.

MR. KALFAYAN: THAT'S FINE, YOUR HONOR. THEY HAVE

EXPERT REPORTS AND I'VE SHARED THOSE REPORTS. I POSTED

THEM ONLINE. THERE IS ONE OTHER REPORT, MAYBE TWO REPORTS,

THAT I HAVE NOT, BUT I INTEND TO DO THAT. AND I'M HOPING

THAT I CAN GET THEM IN NEXT WEEK.

MR. ZIMMER: MY SUGGESTION ON HIS EXPERTS, YOUR

HONOR, IS THAT THIS -- FROM MEMORY WHAT SOME OF THOSE

EXPERTS WERE PLANNING TO TESTIFY TO, I THINK THERE'S SOME

ISSUES THERE AS TO RELEVANCE 352. AND JUST OUT OF RESPECT

TO MR. KALFAYAN, RATHER THAN HAVING HIM PAY TO BRING THOSE

EXPERTS HERE, WE MIGHT WANT TO HAVE A HEARING ON TO WHAT

EXTENT THEIR TESTIMONY WOULD BE.

THE COURT: THAT'S WHAT I WAS SUGGESTING, THAT WE

START HEARING SOME OFFERS AND SOME DISCUSSION ABOUT WHETHER

OR NOT THOSE WITNESSES ARE ACTUALLY GOING TO BE TESTIFYING.

AND IT MAY WELL BE THAT JUST THIS SUBMISSION OF THEIR

REPORTS MIGHT BE A POSSIBILITY, TOO, I DON'T KNOW. IN ANY

EVENT, IF IT'S POSSIBLE, I WOULD LIKE TO MAKE SURE THAT WE

ARE BUSY THE REST OF THE WEEK. AND PERHAPS IT'S KIND OF A
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FAINT HOPE EXCEPT FOR ARGUMENT AND LEGAL ARGUMENT AND

ISSUES THAT WE ESSENTIALLY FINISH THIS WEEK, AND THAT WOULD

BE IDEAL FOR ME -- FOR ,THE COURT. I THINK IT WOULD BE

IDEAL FOR COUNSEL, ECONOMICALLY AS WELL, AND THERE ARE

SOME, YOU KNOW, SERIOUS ISSUES HERE THAT THE COURT

APPRECIATES AND I WANT TO MAKE SURE THAT WE HAVE A FULL

HEARING REGARDING THOSE, BUT I'M NOT SURE THAT IT TAKES

FURTHER EVIDENTIARY BEYOND THE THINGS THAT WE TALKED ABOUT.

AND I -- I CAN TELL YOU RIGHT NOW THAT I'M GOIPdG TO BE

ASKING FOR MORE BRIEFING ON A COUPLE OF THE ISSUES THAT

HAVE ARISEN WITH THE OPPOSITION TO 'PHE SETTLEMENT. AND THE

COURT ALSO IS GOING TO HAVE TO MAKE FINDINGS WITH REGARD TO

THE DEFAULTS AS WELL AS ANY CONTESTED ISSUES AND WE ALSO

HAVE PHELAN PINION HILLS, WHICH I THINK IS STILL KIND OF

FLOATING AROUND OUT THERE IN TERMS FURTHER CAUSES OF

ACTION.

MS. AILIN: ALSO IN TERMS OF SOME ADDITIONAL

EVIDENCE BECAUSE WE DO PROPOSE TO HAVE MR. HARDER TESTIFY

REGARDING THE MODEL THAT'S BEEN USED BY MR. WILLIAMS. HE'S

AVAILABLE THE 5TH AND THE 9TH NEXT WEEK. THE FOLLOWING

WEEK HE'S AVAILABLE ANY DAY, BUT HE'S NOT AVAILABLE THIS

wEEx.

THE COURT: I'M JUST TRYING TO PUT THAT INTO MY

LITTLE COMPUTER HERE ABOUT THE FACT HE'S ALREADY TESTIFIED

SIGNIFICANTLY DIFFERENT, SOMEWHAT BUT NOT TOTALLY,

DIFFERENTLY THAN WHAT I'VE HEARD FROM THE EVIDENCE IN THIS

CASE, AT THIS POINT.

MS. AILIN: AND I THINK HIS 'I'~STIMONY ABOUT THE
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MODEL SYSTEM ACTUALLY IN TERMS OF WHAT'S OCCURRED IN COURT

AS OPPOSED TO A DEPOSITION.

THE COURT: WE MAY HAVE TO EVALUATE THAT ISSUE. IN

ANY EVENT, LET'S TALK ABOUT THAT AND I SUSPECT I'M GOING TO

HEAR SOME OPPOSITION.

MR. MCLACHLAN: THERE WAS ONE; OTHER ISSUE YESTERDAY

WHICH I DON'T THINK WE CLOSED THE LOOP ON, WHICH WAS

MR. KALFAYAN INDICATED THAT HE WAS GOING TO IDENTIFY SOME

OF THE STIPULATING PARTY WITNESSES THAT HE IP~TENDED TO

CROSS—EXAMINE AND I DON'T BELIEVE THAT'S OCCURRED.

THE COURT: N0, HE HAS NOT DONE THAT TO THIS POINT,

BUT I SUSPECT THAT HE AND MS. BRENNAN ARE GOING TO BE

TALKING ABOUT THAT THIS EVENING SO THAT HE'LL GIVE US AN

ANSWER TOMORROW MORNING.

MR. JOYCE: YOUR HONOR, IF IId FACT THEY CHOSE TO

WANT TO CROSS EXAMINE MR. VOSS, MY DECLARANT, I NEED TO

KNOW THAT SOONER RATHER THAN LATER.

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR, I RENEW THE OBJECTION

THAT I MADE YESTERDAY. IT'S 140 PARTIES THAT ARE TAPPING

ME ON THE SHOULDER SAYING, PLEASE LOOK AT MY EVIDENCE, MY

WITNESS CAN ONLY COME ON THIS TIME, THIS TIME. IT'S JUST

AN UNDULY -- UNREASONABLY SHIFTING THE BURDEN ON THE CLASS

TO LOOK AT ALL THIS INFORMATION DIGEST THE INFORMATION AND

DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT -- WHETHER OR NOT TO

CROSS—EXAMINE.

THE COURT: EVERY COUNSEL HAS BURDENS. THE COURT'S

CONCERNED WITH, NO. 1, THE BURDEN OF PROOF, AND COUNSEL

SHOULD BE CONCERNED ABOUT THE RISK OF FAILURE TO SUSTAIN
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THEIR OWN BURDEN AND RISK OF LOSS, SO THAT'S ALL I CAN TELL

YOU AT THIS POINT.

MR. KALFAYAN: YOUR HONOR --

THE COURT: WE'LL HAVE SOME MORE TIME TO TALK BUT WE

NEED TO GET THIS STUFF MOVED.

MR. KALFAYAN: MAY I INQUIRE, WILL MR. WAGNER AND

MR. BINDER BE CALLED TO TESTIFY THIS WEEK?

MR. ZIMMER: THEY'RE NOT AVAILABLE THIS WEEK. WHAT

I WOULD SUGGEST WITH REGARD TO THE EXPERTS, YGUR HONOR, IS

WHAT YOU SUGGESTED. I THINK THAT IF THERE ARE ASPECTS OF

EXPERT TESTIMONY, THE FIRST QUESTION IS, IS IT RELEVANT?

IS IT ADMISSIBLE? THE SECOND QUESTION IS IF WE CAN DO IT

BY STIPULATION, I THINK THAT CAN WORK BOTH WAYS. MS. AILIN

HAS SOMETHING FROM PHELAN, IF IT'S SOMETHING FROM MR.

CARTER, IT'S --

THE COURT: THIS DOESN'T HAVE TO BE ON THE RECORD.

WE'RE DONE.

(PROCEEDINGS ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY,

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AT 9:00 A.M.)

(THE NEXT PAGE NUMBER IS 25601.)
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Total Current Water Requirements
Average Uses for 2011 and 2012
(values in acre feet per year)

Groundwater Uses
Rural Residential (Small Pumpers) Groundwater Production s,~as (7), (2)
Edwards AFB and Plant 42 (Federal Rights) x,348 (3)
State of California 27s (1)
Public Water Suppliers 34,198 (~)
Overlying Landowners 84,650 (3), (4)
City of Lancaster 506 (3)
Phelan Pinon Hills CSD 1,044 (3)

Subtotal--Groundwater Uses 731,73

Supplemental Water Uses
Local Surface Water Supplies 4,000 (5)
Recycled Water X5,400
Environmental Uses 3,500 (6}
Agricultural Uses 11,so0 {~)
M8~1 Uses o (s)

State Water Project Supplies 87,000
Agricultural Uses 18,400 (9)
M&I Uses 48,600 (9)

Subtotal--Supplemental Water Uses ss,400

TOTAL CURRENT WATER REQUIREMENTS 218,173

Notes:
(1) Page 42, Exhibit 1 from September 23, 2015 deposition of Dennis E. Williams.
(2) Based on GSI Water Solutions, Inc. Technical Report, July 2015.
(3) Amended Statement of Partial Decision for Phase IV Trial, June 29, 2013.
(4) Proposed Judgment, Exhibit 4, March 3, 2015.
(5) Palmdale Water District 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2011.
(6) Page D-23; Phase 3 Expert Report.
(7) Average for Period 2005-2009, Appendix G, Phase 3 Expert Report.
(8) Assumed value.
{9) DWR Bulletin Nos. 132-12 and 132-13; and AVEK Customer Water Use Reports.
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Illustration of Average Water Supplies Provided by Physical Solution

With SWP Supplies Limited to Embedded Amount in Supplemental Safe Yield
{values In acre feet per year)

A. TOTAL SAFE YIELD
Natural Safe Yield

Overlying Production Rights (Exhibit 4) 58,342 (7), (2)
Non-Overlying Production Rights {Exhibit 3) 12,345 (1)
Federal Reserved Right (Paragraph 5.1.4) 7,600 (1)
State of California Production Rights (Paragraph 5.1.5) 207 (1)
Small Pumper Class Production Rights (Paragraph 5.1.3) 3,806 (1)

Subtotal--Natural Safe Yield 82,300

Supplemental Safe Yield
Agricultural Return Flows from 9,400 AF SWP Deliveries 3,200 (3)
M8~1 Return Flows from 62,840 AF SWP Deliveries 24,500 (3)

Subtotal--Supplemental Safe Yield 27,700

Subtotal--Total Safe Yield 110,000 (4)

8. LOCAL SUPPLEMENTAL SURFACE WATER SUPPLIES 4,000 (5)

C. RECYCLED WATER
Environmental Purposea 3,500 (6)

Paiute Ponds 3,3U0
Apo!!o Lakes 200

Delivery to Agricultural lJsers 11,800 (7)
Delivery to M&I Users 8,400 (8)

Subtotal--Recycled Water 23,800

D. SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT DELIVERIES FROM SWP
SWP Dellverles to Agricultural Users (Embedded in Supplemental Safa Yield) 9,400 (9)
SWP Deflverles to M&I Users (Embedded in Supplemental Safe Yield) 62,800 (10}

Subtotal--Supplemental Direct Deliveries from SWP 72,20a
{Percentage of Table A Amount of 168,444 AFY) 43°Yo (11)

TOTAL WATER SUPPLIES 210,000

Notes:
(1) Stipulation Exhibit 1--Proposed Judgment and Physical Solution (PJPS).
(2) Amount for Overlying Produc~on Rights adjusted upward to result in total of 82,300 AFY.
(3) Split derived from Appendix F, Table F.4-1; Phase 3 Expert Report.
(4) Court set total safe yield at 110,000 AFY per Statement of Decision Phase Three Trial.
{5} Palmdale Water District 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2011.
(6} Page D-23; Phase 3 Expert Report.
(7) Total 23,800 AFY minus 3,540 AFY equals 20,300 AFY; assume current use for Ag.
(8) Total 23,800 AFY minus 3,500 AFY equals 20,300 AFY; assume remainder for M&I.
(9) 3,200 AF/0.34; Agricultural Return Flow Percentage per Paragraph 5.2.1, PJPS.
{10) 24,500/0.39; M8~1 Return Flow Percentage per Paragraph 5.2.1, PJPS.
{11) Percerrtege equals 72,200 AFY divided by 168,444 AFY,

0



Illustration of Average Water Supplies Provided by Phyaical Solution

With Additional SWP Supplies to Meet Current Water Requirements {Average for 2011 and 2012)
(values In acre feet per year)

A. TOTAL SAFE YIELD
Natural Sale Yfeld

Overlying Production Rights (Exhibit 4) 58,342 (1), (2)
Non-Overlying Production Rights (Exhibit 3) 12,345 {t}
Federel Reserved Right (Paragraph 5.1.4) 7,600 (1)
State of California Production Rights (Paragraph 5.4.5) 207 (1)
Small Pumper Class Production Rights (Paragraph 5.1.3) 3,808 (7 )

Subtotal--Natural Safe Yeld 82,300

Supplemental Safe Yield
Agricultural Return Flows from 9,400 AF SWP Deliveries 3,200 {3)
M&I Return Flows from 62,800 AF SWP Deliveries 24,500 (3)

Subtotal-Supplemental Safe Yield 27,70Q

Subtotal--Total Safe Yield 110,000 (4)

B. LOCAL. SUPPLEMENTAL SURFACE WATER SUPPLIES 4,000 (5)

C. RECYCLED WATER
Environmental Purposes 3,500 (ej

Paiute Ponds 3,300
Apollo Lakes 200

Delivery to Agricultural Users 11,900 (7)
Delivery to M81 Users 8,400 (8)

Subtotal-Recycled Water 23,800

D. SUPPLEMENTAL DIRECT DELNERIES FROM SWP
SWP Diroct Dellver(es to Agricultural Users (Embedded in Supplemental Safe Yield) 9,400 (s)
SWP Direct DeIlveHes to M81 Users (Embedded in Supplemental Safe Yield) 82,800 (10)
Additional SWP Direct Deliveries to Satisfy Unmet 2011!2012 Water Raqulromsnts 6,099 (11)

Subtotal-Supplemental Direct Deliveries from SWP 78,299
(Percentage of Table A Amourrt of 968,444 AFY) 48% (12)

E. ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPLIES FROM PUMPING 2,074 {13)
OF IMPORTED WATER RETURN FLOWS NOT PART OF SAFE YIELD

TOTAL WATER SUPPLIES 218,178

Notes:
(1) Stipulatlon Exhibit 1--Proposed Judgment and Physical Solution (PJPS).
(2) Amount for Overlying Production Rights adjusted upward to result in total of 82,300 AFY.
(3) Split derived from Appendix F, Table F.41; Phase 3 Expert Report.
(4) Court set total safe yield at 110,000 AFY per Statement of Decision Phase Three Trlai.
(5) Palmdale Water DlsMct 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2011.
(6} Page D-23; Phase 3 Expert Report.
(7) Total 23,800 AFY minus 3,500 AFY equals 20,300 AFY; assume current use for Ag.
(8) Total 23,800 AFY minus 3,500 AFY equals 20,300 AFY; assume remainder for M8~1.
(9) 3,200 AF/0.34; Agricultural Return Flow Percentage per Paragraph 5.2.1, PJPS.
(10) 24,500/0.39; M&I Return Flow Percentage per Paragraph 5.Z.1, PJPS.
(11) Unmet water requirements not distinguished between agricultural, M&I, and small pumper categories.
{12} Peroentage equals 78,299 AFY divided by 188,444 AFY.
(f3} Pumped from wells; assume return flow credit equals 34 percent. ~ O
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